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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for the historical statements contained herein, the matters discussed in this Form 10-K, including those matters discussed in Item 7.
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, are forward-looking statements that are subject to
certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Such forward-looking statements are intended to be identified in this document by the words
anticipate , believe , estimate , expect , intend , objective , plan , possible , potential , project and similar expressions. Actual result:
materially. In addition to the specific risk factors discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors and Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to:

general economic conditions, including the availability of credit, actions of rating agencies and their impact on capital expenditures;

OGE Energy Corp. s (collectively, with its subsidiaries, the Company ) ability and the ability of its subsidiaries to obtain financing on
favorable terms;
prices and availability of electricity, coal, natural gas and natural gas liquids, each on a stand-alone basis and in relation to each other;

business conditions in the energy industry;

competitive factors including the extent and timing of the entry of additional competition in the markets served by the Company;
unusual weather;

availability and prices of raw materials for current and future construction projects;

federal or state legislation and regulatory decisions (including the approval of future regulatory filings with the Oklahoma Corporation
Commission ( OCC ) or the Arkansas Public Service Commission ( APSC ) related to its proposed construction of a new power plant
and the outcome of Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company s ( OG&E ) current Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ( FERC ) audit)
and initiatives that affect cost and investment recovery, have an impact on rate structures or affect the speed and degree to which
competition enters the Company s markets;

environmental laws and regulations that may impact the Company s operations;

changes in accounting standards, rules or guidelines;

the discontinuance of regulated accounting principles under Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard ( SFAS ) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation ;
creditworthiness of suppliers, customers and other contractual parties;

the higher degree of risk associated with the Company s nonregulated business compared with the Company s regulated utility

business; and

other risk factors listed in the reports filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission including those listed in
Item 1A. Risk Factors and in Exhibit 99.01 to this Form 10-K.
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PART I

Item 1. Business.

THE COMPANY

The Company is an energy and energy services provider offering physical delivery and related services for both electricity and natural gas
primarily in the south central United States. The Company conducts these activities through two business segments, the Electric Utility and the
Natural Gas Pipeline segments. For financial information regarding these segments, see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Electric Utility segment generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. Its operations are
conducted through OG&E and are subject to regulation by the OCC, the APSC, and the FERC. OG&E was incorporated in 1902 under the laws
of the Oklahoma Territory. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma and its franchised service territory includes the Fort Smith,
Arkansas area. OG&E sold its retail gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the gas distribution business.

The operations of the Natural Gas Pipeline segment are conducted through Enogex Inc. and its subsidiaries ( Enogex ) and consist of three related
businesses: (i) the transportation and storage of natural gas, (ii) the gathering and processing of natural gas and (iii) the marketing of natural gas.
Enogex s focus is to utilize its gathering, processing, transportation and storage capacity to execute physical, financial and service transactions to
capture margins across different natural gas related commodities, locations or time periods. The vast majority of Enogex s natural gas gathering,
processing, transportation and storage assets are located in the major gas producing basins of Oklahoma. Prior to October 31, 2005, Enogex
owned, through a 75 percent interest in the NOARK Pipeline System Limited Partnership ( NOARK ), a controlling interest in and operated
Ozark Gas Transmission, L.L.C. ( OGT ), a FERC regulated interstate pipeline that extends from southeast Oklahoma through Arkansas to
southeast Missouri. On October 31, 2005, Enogex sold its interest in Enogex Arkansas Pipeline Corporation ( EAPC ), which held its NOARK
interest. Also, during the third quarter of 2005, Enogex Compression Company, LLC ( Enogex Compression ) sold it majority interest in Enerven
Compression Services, LLC ( Enerven ), a joint venture focused on the rental of natural gas compression assets. In May 2006, Enogex Gas
Gathering, L.L.C. ( Gathering ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enogex Inc., sold certain gas gathering assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma, area (the
Kinta Assets ). The EAPC and Enerven businesses and the sale of the Kinta Assets have been reported as discontinued operations in the
Company s Consolidated Financial Statements and are discussed further in Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. In December
2006, Enogex entered into a joint venture arrangement with a third party. The joint venture, Atoka Midstream LLC, intends to construct, own
and operate a gathering system and processing plant and related facilities relating to production in certain areas in southeastern Oklahoma.
Enogex holds its 50 percent membership interest in Atoka Midstream LLC through Enogex Atoka LLC ( Enogex Atoka ), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Enogex Inc. Enogex Atoka will act as the managing member and operator of the facilities owned by the joint venture.

The Company was incorporated in August 1995 in the state of Oklahoma and its principal executive offices are located at 321 North Harvey,
P.O. Box 321, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73101-0321; telephone (405) 553-3000.

Company Strategy
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The Company s vision is to be a regional utility-focused energy business recognized for operational excellence and strong financial performance.
The Company intends to execute its vision by focusing on its regulated electric utility business and unregulated midstream gas business. As
explained below, the Company intends to maintain the majority of its assets in the regulated utility business complemented by its natural gas
pipeline business. The Company s long-term financial goals include earnings growth of four to five percent on a weather-normalized basis, an
annual total return in the top third of its peer group, dividend growth, maintenance of a dividend payout ratio consistent with its peer group,
maintenance of strong credit ratings and appropriate returns on invested capital. The Company believes it can accomplish these financial goals
by, among other things, pursuing multiple avenues to build its business, maintaining a diversified asset position, continuing to develop a wide
range of skills to succeed with changes in its industries, providing products and services to customers efficiently, managing risks effectively and
maintaining strong regulatory and legislative relationships.

OG&E has been focused on its Customer Savings and Reliability Plan, which provides for increased investment at the utility to improve

reliability and meet load growth, replace infrastructure equipment, replace aging transmission and distribution system and deploy newer
technology that improves operational, financial and environmental performance. As part of this plan, OG&E purchased, for approximately $160
million, a 77 percent interest in the 520 megawatt ( MW ) natural gas-fired combined cycle NRG McClain Station (the McClain Plant ) in July
2004. Capacity payment savings from
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reduced cogeneration payments and fuel savings from the McClain Plant will be utilized to help mitigate the price increases associated with this
investment. Also, as part of this plan, on February 20, 2006, OG&E entered into an agreement to engineer, procure and construct a wind
generation energy system for a 120 MW wind farm ( Centennial ) in northwestern Oklahoma. The wind farm was fully in service in January 2007.
Through December 31, 2006, OG&E has spent approximately $171.1 million related to the Centennial wind farm. On January 17, 2007, OG&E
sent notice to the OCC to trigger the Centennial wind farm rider for the first billing cycle in February 2007. OG&E has announced a six-year
construction initiative that is estimated to include up to $3.3 billion in major projects designed to expand capacity, enhance reliability and
improve environmental performance. The first part of this initiative involved OG&E entering into an agreement for the proposed construction of
a 950 MW coal unit at OG&E s existing Sooner plant location near Red Rock, Oklahoma. OG&E expects construction to begin in 2007 and is
targeting the completion of the power plant in the 2011/2012 timeframe. OG&E s share of the projected $1.8 billion construction cost for the
plant will be about $759 million. OG&E s six-year construction initiative also includes strengthening and expanding the electric transmission,
distribution and substation systems and replacing aging infrastructure. Other projects involve installing new emission-control equipment at
existing OG&E power plants to help meet OG&E s commitment to meet environmental requirements. OG&E also expects to incur a significant
amount of capital and operating expenditures in the next several years to comply with current and future environmental laws and regulations. For
additional information regarding the above items and other regulatory matters, see Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Enogex plans to continue to implement improvements to enhance long-term financial performance of its mid-continent assets through more
efficient operations and effective commercial management of the assets. In addition, Enogex is seeking to diversify its gathering, processing and
transportation businesses principally by expanding into other geographic areas that are complementary with the Company s strategic capabilities.
In August 2006, Enogex completed a project to expand its gathering pipeline capacity on the west side of its system in western Oklahoma and
the Texas Panhandle that should enable Enogex to benefit from growth opportunities in that marketplace. Enogex continues to consider
additional opportunities to expand this project. In addition to focusing on growing its earnings, Enogex has reduced its exposure to changes in
commodity prices and minimized its exposure to keep-whole processing arrangements. Enogex s profitability increased significantly from 2003
to 2006 due to the performance improvement plan initiated in 2002 as well as an overall favorable business environment coupled with higher
commodity prices. While the Company believes substantial progress has been achieved, additional opportunities remain. Enogex continues to
review its work processes, evaluate the rationalization of assets, negotiate better terms for both new contracts and replacement contracts, manage
costs and pursue opportunities for organic growth, all in an effort to further improve its cash flow and net income, while at the same time
decreasing the volatility associated with commodity prices. Enogex s marketing business, which concentrates principally on origination of
physical sales of natural gas, has expanded into the Gulf Coast and Rocky Mountain markets. Also, Enogex s marketing business utilizes a
strategy that seeks to minimize the amount of capital employed and to complement better the natural gas pipeline business. The Company
expects to continue to pursue a disciplined approach to continuous improvement and efficiency of operations. As discussed above, during 2005
and 2006, Enogex sold its interests in EAPC and Enerven and the Kinta Assets and will continue to review its asset portfolio and seek to divest
underperforming or non-strategic assets. Also, on December 15, 2006, Enogex announced that it had entered into a firm capacity lease
agreement with Midcontinent Express Pipeline, LLC for a primary term of 10 years (subject to possible extensions) for certain capacity on the
Enogex system. The leased capacity provided for in this agreement is up to 0.5 billion cubic feet ( Bcf ) per day and is dependent on the shipper
volumes that commit to the project. The Enogex capacity will be a part of the proposed Midcontinent Express Pipeline ( MEP ), a joint venture
between Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. In addition to the Enogex leased capacity, the proposed MEP
project includes a new pipeline originating near Bennington, Oklahoma and terminating in Butler, Alabama. Pending necessary regulatory
approval, the MEP pipeline project is currently expected to be in service by February 2009. Depending on the final capacity that MEP subscribes
to pursuant to the agreement, Enogex expects its revenues from this firm capacity lease agreement to be between $12 million and $30 million
annually. Enogex currently estimates that its capital expenditures related to this project during the next two to three years could be
approximately $100 million. The Enogex lease agreement with MEP is subject to certain contingencies including regulatory approval. Prior to
such approval, Enogex may incur expenditures of between approximately $20 million and $40 million with the majority being for certain
commitments for materials that can be sold or used in normal operations in the event the MEP project does not proceed and the amount not
recovered or utilized for such expenditures is not expected to be material. Enogex also is seeking to provide lease capacity to Boardwalk s Gulf
Crossings project. Boardwalk Pipeline Partners, LP, has announced plans to build the Gulf Crossings pipeline, which includes 355 miles of new
interstate natural gas pipeline. It initially is expected to transport gas from the supply areas in Sherman, Texas, Bennington, Oklahoma, and
Paris, Texas to the Perryville, Louisiana Hub. Subject to regulatory approvals, the Gulf Crossings project is expected to be in service during the
fourth quarter of 2008.

The Company s business strategy is to continue maintaining the diversified asset position of OG&E and Enogex so as to provide competitive
energy products and services to customers primarily in the south central United States. The
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Company will continue to focus on those products and services with limited or manageable commodity exposure. In addition to the incremental
growth opportunities that Enogex provides, the Company believes that many of the risk management practices, commercial skills and market
information available from Enogex provide value to all of the Company s businesses. See Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations Executive Overview for a further discussion.

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS - OG&E

General

The Electric Utility segment generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. Its operations are
conducted through OG&E. OG&E furnishes retail electric service in 269 communities and their contiguous rural and suburban areas. During
2006, five other communities and two rural electric cooperatives in Oklahoma and western Arkansas purchased electricity from OG&E for
resale. The service area, with an estimated population of 2.0 million, covers approximately 30,000 square miles in Oklahoma and western
Arkansas, including Oklahoma City, the largest city in Oklahoma, and Fort Smith, Arkansas, the second largest city in that state. Of the 269
communities that OG&E serves, 243 are located in Oklahoma and 26 in Arkansas. OG&E derived approximately 89 percent of its total electric
operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 from sales in Oklahoma and the remainder from sales in Arkansas.

OG&E s system control area peak demand as reported by the system dispatcher during 2006 was approximately 6,473 MW s on August 10, 2006.
OG&E s load responsibility peak demand was approximately 6,033 MW s on August 10, 2006. As reflected in the table below and in the

operating statistics on page 5, there were approximately 26.4 million megawatt-hour ( MWH ) sales to OG&E s customers ( system sales ) in 2006
as compared to approximately 26.0 million in 2005 and 24.7 million in 2004. System sales increased approximately 1.5 percent in 2006

primarily due to warmer weather during 2006. Variations in system sales for the three years are reflected in the following table:

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 Increase 2005 Increase 2004 Decrease

System Sales (A) 26.4 1.5% 26.0 5.3% 24.7 1.2)%
(A) Sales are in millions of MWH s.

OG&E is subject to competition in various degrees from government-owned electric systems, municipally-owned electric systems, rural electric
cooperatives and, in certain respects, from other private utilities, power marketers and cogenerators. Oklahoma law forbids the granting of an
exclusive franchise to a utility for providing electricity. In a citywide election in May 2006, Oklahoma City voters approved a 25-year franchise
for OG&E, which as noted above is the largest city in OG&E s service territory.

Besides competition from other suppliers or marketers of electricity, OG&E competes with suppliers of other forms of energy. The degree of
competition between suppliers may vary depending on relative costs and supplies of other forms of energy. See Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the potential impact on competition from federal and state legislation.

10
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OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
CERTAIN OPERATING STATISTICS

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005 2004

ELECTRIC ENERGY (Millions of MWH)

Generation (exclusive of station use) 24.6 24.8 22.6
Purchased 3.9 33 4.2

Total generated and purchased 28.5 28.1 26.8
Company use, free service and losses 2.1) 2.0 2.0)
Electric energy sold 26.4 26.1 24.8

ELECTRIC ENERGY SOLD (Millions of MWH)

Residential 8.7 8.5 7.9
Commercial 6.2 6.0 5.7
Industrial 7.1 7.2 7.0
Public authorities 2.9 2.8 2.7
Sales for resale 1.5 1.5 1.4
System sales 26.4 26.0 24.7
Off-system sales --- 0.1 0.1
Total sales 26.4 26.1 24.8

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (In millions)

Residential $ 698.8 $ 663.6 $ 611.4
Commercial 428.3 418.9 389.9
Industrial 345.0 355.6 326.7
Public authorities 171.0 173.1 158.5
Sales for resale 65.4 67.7 57.0
Provision for rate refund 0.9) 2.0 (6.9)
System sales revenues 1,707.6 1,676.9 1,536.6
Off-system sales revenues 2.7 4.9 0.8
Other 354 38.9 40.7
Total Electric Operating Revenues $ 1,745.7 $ 1,720.7 $ 1,578.1

ACTUAL NUMBER OF ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS (At end of period)

Residential 647,548 639,733 630,736
Commercial 82,974 81,728 80,786
Industrial 9,505 9,472 9,420
Public authorities 14,769 14,515 14,022
Sales for resale 44 45 44
Total 754,840 745,493 735,008
AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER SALES

Average annual revenue $ 1,084.31 $ 1,043.60 $ 975.08
Average annual use (kilowatt-hour ( KWH )) 13,526 13,455 12,630
Average price per KWH (cents) $ 8.02 $ 7.76 $ 7.72
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Regulation and Rates

OG&E s retail electric tariffs are regulated by the OCC in Oklahoma and by the APSC in Arkansas. The issuance of certain securities by OG&E
is also regulated by the OCC and the APSC. OG&E s wholesale electric tariffs, short-term borrowing authorization and accounting practices are
subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC. The Secretary of the Department of Energy has jurisdiction over some of OG&E s facilities and
operations. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 87 percent of OG&E s electric revenue was subject to the jurisdiction of the
OCC, nine percent to the APSC and four percent to the FERC.

The OCC issued an order in 1996 authorizing OG&E to reorganize into a subsidiary of the Company. The order required that, among other
things, (i) the Company permit the OCC access to the books and records of the Company and its affiliates relating to transactions with OG&E;
(i1) the Company employ accounting and other procedures and controls to protect against subsidization of non-utility activities by OG&E s
customers; and (iii) the Company refrain from pledging OG&E assets or income for affiliate transactions. In addition, the Energy Policy Act of
2005 enacted the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005, which in turn granted to the FERC access to the books and records of the
Company and its affiliates as the FERC deems relevant to costs incurred by OG&E or necessary or appropriate for the protection of utility
customers with respect to the FERC jurisdictional rates.

OG&E has been and will continue to be affected by competitive changes to the utility industry. Significant changes already have occurred and
additional changes are being proposed to the wholesale electric market. Although it appears unlikely in the near future that changes will occur to
retail regulation in the states served by OG&E due to the significant problems faced by other states in their electric deregulation efforts and other
factors, significant changes are possible, which could significantly change the manner in which OG&E conducts its business. These
developments at the federal and state levels are described in more detail in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recent Regulatory Matters

OG&E Wind Power Filing. On February 20, 2006, OG&E entered into an agreement to engineer, procure and construct the 120 MW
Centennial wind farm planned for construction in northwestern Oklahoma. The wind farm was fully in service in January 2007. Through
December 31, 2006, OG&E has spent approximately $171.1 million related to the Centennial wind farm. On April 28, 2006, the OCC approved
a settlement agreement approving the wind power contract and a recovery rider for up to $205 million in construction costs and allowance for
funds used during construction. The settlement also indicated that OG&E shall file for a general rate review during 2009 that will permit the
OCC to issue an order no later than December 31, 2009 placing the Centennial wind farm in OG&E s rate base. On January 17, 2007, OG&E
sent notice to the OCC to trigger the Centennial wind farm rider for the first billing cycle in February 2007. The recovery rider is designed to
recover approximately $22.6 million in the first year of operations, which amount will decline over the life of the facility. Because the wind farm
rider was implemented in February 2007, OG&E expects to recover approximately $20.7 million under the rider during the remaining 11 months
of 2007. OG&E expects the recovery rider to remain in effect through late 2009. As explained below, the recent rate order from the APSC
allows for the recovery of the portion of the Centennial wind farm allocable to OG&E s customers in Arkansas.

OG&E Arkansas Rate Case Filing. On July 28, 2006, OG&E filed with the APSC an application for an annual rate increase of approximately
$13.5 million to recover, among other things, its investment in, and the operating expenses of, the McClain Plant, the Centennial wind power
project and the costs of electric system expansion and upgrades based on a return on equity of 11.75 percent. On November 29, 2006, OG&E
reached a settlement with the other parties in this case for an annual rate increase of approximately $5.4 million. In the settlement agreement, the
parties also agreed that OG&E would be allowed to recover the full Arkansas portion of the Centennial wind farm. On January 5, 2007, the

APSC approved the settlement and issued a rate order that provides for a $5.4 million annual increase in OG&E s electric rates and a 10.0 percent
return on equity. The new Arkansas rates became effective in February 2007.

13
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Proposed Construction of Power Plant. On July 18, 2006, the Company announced plans for OG&E to partner with American Electric Power s
subsidiary, Public Service Company of Oklahoma ( PSO ), and the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority ( OMPA ) to build a new 950 MW coal
unit at OG&E s existing Sooner plant location near Red Rock, Oklahoma. The estimated $1.8 billion project is the result of PSO s December

2005 request for proposals in which it sought bids for up to 600 MW s of new base load generation to be available to PSO. The unit, to be called
Red Rock, is expected to be one of the cleanest of its size using coal from the Powder River Basin, which is located near Gillette, Wyoming.

OG&E will operate the facility and expects to spend approximately $759 million in construction costs related to its 42 percent ownership

percentage in the project and approximately $30 million in transmission costs for the project. PSO will own 50 percent and the OMPA will own
eight percent. On December 1, 2006, OG&E submitted an application to the Oklahoma

14
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Department of Environmental Quality ( ODEQ ) for an air permit for the Red Rock plant. OG&E is seeking to have the air permit approved by
the ODEQ by August 1, 2007. OG&E expects construction to begin in 2007 and is targeting the completion of the power plant in the 2011/2012
timeframe. OG&E filed an application with the OCC on January 17, 2007 asking the OCC to find that its portion of the construction costs are
prudent and that a recovery mechanism should be established to recover OG&E s overall cost of capital on the investment during the construction
period. The OCC rules provide that the OCC has up to 240 days to issue an order determining OG&E s pre-approval request, however OG&E s
application requested that the OCC issue an order by July 20, 2007. The project is contingent upon numerous factors, including the successful
completion of contract negotiations and the necessary regulatory and environmental approvals. Under the construction, ownership and operating
agreement between OG&E, PSO and the OMPA, the parties could incur up to $60 million (of which approximately $25 million would be borne
by OG&E) prior to the receipt of acceptable regulatory approvals and permits. If such approvals and permits were not obtained and the Red
Rock project was abandoned, the Company can provide no assurance that these expenditures incurred by OG&E would be recoverable in future
rates.

See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of certain regulatory matters including, among other things, the gas
transportation and storage contract between OG&E and Enogex, OG&E s 2005 Oklahoma rate case order, security enhancements, national
energy legislation and state legislative initiatives.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to the accounting principles prescribed by SFAS No. 71. SFAS No. 71 provides that certain actual or
anticipated costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from
customers in future rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce expense can be deferred as regulatory
liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management s expected recovery of deferred costs and flowback of
deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators granting such ratemaking treatment.

OG&E records certain actual or anticipated costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, that the cost or obligation will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund in future rates.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, OG&E had regulatory assets of approximately $319.2 million and $189.2 million, respectively, and regulatory
liabilities of approximately $224.5 million and $118.1 million, respectively. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
further discussion.

As discussed in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, legislation was enacted in Oklahoma that was to restructure the electric
utility industry in that state. The implementation of the Oklahoma restructuring legislation has been delayed and seems unlikely to proceed

during the near future. Yet, if and when implemented, this legislation could deregulate OG&E s electric generation assets and cause OG&E to
discontinue the use of SFAS No. 71 with respect to its related regulatory balances. The previously-enacted Oklahoma legislation would not

affect OG&E s electric transmission and distribution assets and OG&E believes that the continued use of SFAS No. 71 with respect to the related
regulatory balances is appropriate. Based on a current evaluation of the various factors and conditions that are expected to impact future cost
recovery, management believes that its regulatory assets, including those related to generation, are probable of future recovery.

Rate Structures

Oklahoma
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OG&E has had several different customer programs and rate options. The Guaranteed Flat Bill ( GFB ) option for residential and small general
service accounts allows qualifying customers the opportunity to purchase their electricity needs at a set price for an entire year. Budget-minded
customers that desire a fixed monthly bill may benefit from the GFB option. The GFB option received OCC approval for permanent rate status

in OG&E s rate case completed in December 2005. A second tariff rate option provides a renewable energy resource to OG&E s Oklahoma retail
customers. This renewable energy resource is a wind power purchase program and is available as a voluntary option to all of OG&E s Oklahoma
retail customers. OG&E s ownership and access to wind resources makes the renewable wind power option a possible choice in meeting the
renewable energy needs of our conservation-minded customers and provides the customers with a means to reduce their exposure to increased

prices for natural gas used by OG&E as boiler fuel. A third rate offering available to commercial and industrial customers is levelized demand
billing. This program is beneficial for medium to large size customers with seasonally consistent demand levels who wish to reduce the

variability of their monthly electric bills.
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Another program being offered to OG&E s commercial and industrial customers is a voluntary load curtailment program. This program provides
customers with the opportunity to curtail on a voluntary basis when OG&E s system conditions merit curtailment action. Customers that curtail
their usage will receive payment for their curtailment response. This voluntary curtailment program seeks customers that can curtail on most
curtailment event days, but may not be able to curtail every time that a curtailment event is required.

The previously discussed rate options coupled with OG&E s other rate choices provide many tariff options for OG&E s Oklahoma retail
customers. OG&E s rate choices, reduction in cogeneration rates, acquisition of additional generation resources and overall low costs of
production and deliverability are expected to provide valuable benefits for our customers for many years to come. The revenue impacts
associated with these options are indeterminate in future years since customers may choose to remain on existing rate options instead of
volunteering for the new rate option choices. There was no overall material impact in 2005 or 2006 associated with these rate options, but
revenue variations may occur in the future based upon changes in customers usage characteristics if they choose these programs.

As part of the rate order issued by the OCC in December 2005, OG&E received OCC approval for the creation of two new rate classes, Public
Schools-Demand and Public Schools Non-Demand. These two classes of service will provide OG&E flexibility to provide targeted programs for
load management to public schools and their unique usage patterns. Another item approved in the order was the creation of service level fuel
differentiation that allows customers to pay fuel costs that better reflect operational energy losses related to a specific service level. The OCC
order also approved a military base rider that demonstrates Oklahoma s continued commitment to our military partners.

Arkansas

Energy efficiency hearings are also currently being held by the APSC for all Arkansas utilities. These hearings are expected to lead to various
conservation options and programs in the near future and result in better use of energy resources.

Fuel Supply

During 2006, approximately 67 percent of the OG&E-generated energy was produced by coal-fired units and 33 percent by natural gas-fired

units. Of OG&E s 6,079 total MW capability reflected in the table under Item 2. Properties, approximately 3,480 MW s, or 57 percent, are from
natural gas generation and approximately 2,599 MW s, or 43 percent, are from coal generation. Though OG&E has a higher installed capability

of generation from natural gas units, it has been more economical to generate electricity for our customers using lower priced coal. A slight

decline in the percentage of coal generation in future years is expected to result from increased usage of natural gas generation required to meet
growing energy needs. Over the last five years, the weighted average cost of fuel used, by type, per million British thermal unit ( MMBtu ) was as
follows:

Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Coal $1.10 $0.98 $1.00 $0.93 $0.93
Natural Gas $7.10 $8.76 $6.57 $6.46 $3.78
Weighted Average $2.98 $3.21 $2.69 $2.27 $1.77

The decrease in the weighted average cost of fuel in 2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily due to decreased natural gas prices partially offset
by increased amounts of natural gas being burned. The increase in the weighted average cost of fuel in 2005 and in 2004 was primarily due to
increased natural gas prices and increased amounts of natural gas being burned. The increase in the weighted average cost of fuel in 2003 as
compared to 2002 was primarily due to increased natural gas prices in 2003 partially offset by a lower amount of natural gas burned in 2003. A
portion of these fuel costs is included in the base rates to customers and differs for each jurisdiction. The portion of these fuel costs that is not
included in the base rates is recoverable through OG&E s regulatorily approved automatic fuel adjustment clauses.
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Coal

All of OG&E s coal-fired units, with an aggregate capability of approximately 2,599 MW s, are designed to burn low sulfur western coal. OG&E
purchases coal primarily under long-term contracts expiring in years 2010 and 2011. During 2006, OG&E purchased approximately 10.1 million
tons of coal from various Wyoming suppliers. The combination of all coal has a weighted average sulfur content of less than 0.3 percent and can
be burned in these units under existing federal, state and local environmental standards (maximum of 1.20 Ibs. of sulfur dioxide per MMBtu)
without the addition of sulfur dioxide removal systems. Based upon the average sulfur content, OG&E s coal units have an approximate emission
rate of
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0.52 1bs. of sulfur dioxide per MMBtu, well within the limitations of the current provisions of the Federal Clean Air Act discussed in Note 17 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

OG&E has continued its efforts to maximize the utilization of its coal-fired units at its Sooner and Muskogee generating plants. See
Environmental Laws and Regulations in Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of environmental matters which
may affect OG&E in the future.

Coal Shipment Disruption

In July 2005, OG&E received notification from Union Pacific Railroad ( Union Pacific ) that, in May 2005, Union Pacific and BNSF Railway
( BNSF ) experienced successive derailments on the jointly-owned rail line serving the Southern Powder River Basin coal producers. According
to Union Pacific, these two derailments were caused by track that had become unstable from an accumulation of coal dust in the roadbed
combined with unusually heavy rainfall. BNSF, which maintains and operates the line, concluded that a significant part of the line needed to be
repaired before normal train operations could resume. While the repairs were taking place, Union Pacific was unable to operate at full capacity
from the Powder River Basin. In November 2005, Union Pacific notified OG&E that the South Powder River Basin joint line force majeure
condition that was declared in May 2005 had ended. On December 2, 2005, BNSF completed the enhanced joint line maintenance program
which opened the way for a return to normal operating conditions. It is expected that as rail traffic improves, OG&E will be able to increase its
level of coal inventories. At December 31, 2006, OG&E had slightly more than 30 days of coal supply for each of its coal-fired units at its
Sooner and Muskogee generating plants. Furthermore, if no other significant disruptions occur going forward, OG&E now expects to replenish
its coal inventory to pre-disruption levels by the end of 2008.

Natural Gas

In October 2006, OG&E issued and completed a request for proposal ( RFP ) for gas supply purchases for periods that began in November 2006
through March 2007, which accounted for approximately eight percent of its projected 2007 natural gas requirements. All of these contracts are
tied to various gas price market indices and will expire in 2007. OG&E s remaining 2007 natural gas requirements will be met with additional
RFP s issued in early to mid-2007. OG&E will meet additional natural gas requirements with monthly and daily purchases as required.

In 1993, OG&E began utilizing a natural gas storage facility for storage services that allowed OG&E to maximize the value of its generation
assets. Storage services are now provided by Enogex as part of Enogex s gas transportation and storage contract with OG&E. At December 31,
2006, OG&E had approximately 1.6 million MMBtu s in natural gas storage that it acquired for approximately $5.9 million.

Purchased Power

In October 2006, OG&E issued an RFP for firm economy energy purchases during the summer of 2007 and expects to select a supplier in early
2007. Also, in early 2007, OG&E expects to issue an RFP for capacity and/or firm energy purchases for the summer periods of 2008 through
2010 and expects to select a supplier by the early summer of 2007.

NATURAL GAS PIPELINE OPERATIONS - ENOGEX
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Overview

The operations of the Natural Gas Pipeline segment are conducted through Enogex and consist of three related businesses: (i) the transportation
and storage of natural gas, (ii) the gathering and processing of natural gas and (iii) the marketing of natural gas. Enogex s focus is to utilize its
gathering, processing, transportation and storage capacity to execute physical, financial and service transactions to capture margins across
different natural gas related commodities, locations or time periods. The vast majority of Enogex s natural gas gathering, processing,
transportation and storage assets are located in the major gas producing basins of Oklahoma. Enogex and its subsidiaries operate approximately
7,757 miles of intrastate natural gas gathering and transportation pipelines.

Strategy

The transportation, storage and gathering assets of Enogex provide OG&E with strategic access to natural gas supplies, and flexible and reliable
delivery terms that are required to fuel OG&E s natural gas-fired generation facilities. Natural gas generation peaking units require the ability to
quickly change their status, to meet both the peak and off-peak
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demands of the retail load particularly when coal units have an unscheduled outage. The gathering assets access major wellhead supply sources
primarily located across Oklahoma, and the integrated transportation and storage assets provide the ability to regulate the receipt and delivery of
natural gas to match the instantaneous needs of these generation units.

Natural gas-fired generation units contribute their highest value when they have the capability to provide load following service to the customer
(i.e., the ability of the generation unit to regulate generation to respond to and meet the instantaneous changes in customer demand). While the
physical characteristics of natural gas units are known to provide quick start-up and on-line functionality, and while their ability to efficiently
provide varying levels of electric generation relative to other forms of generation is further acknowledged, their ultimate effectiveness is
contingent upon having access to an integrated pipeline and storage system that can respond in a short term fashion to meet the corresponding
fluctuating operational fuel requirements. The combination of these assets is critical to a generator s ability to provide reliable generation service
at reasonable prices to the consumer.

Not only is Enogex providing firm gas transportation service to OG&E, but Enogex s same assets provide firm and interruptible services to a
significant portion of the other natural gas-fired generation loads in Oklahoma. Enogex understands the needs of generators, and more
importantly has the appropriately-sized pipelines, compression and integrated storage assets necessary to meet their requirements.

Through Enogex s gathering and processing assets, Enogex aggregates gas supplies for its markets and also for those markets accessible via its
numerous intrastate and interstate pipeline connections. It aggressively pursues new supplies from wells drilled by producers primarily in the
Arkoma and Anadarko basins (including recent growth activity in western Oklahoma, the Texas Panhandle and in the Woodford Shale
developments in southeastern Oklahoma). Oklahoma ranks second in the nation in onshore natural gas production and ranks third in the nation
as a natural gas exporting state. Enogex s system capacity, due to its large diameter gathering pipelines and its natural gas processing plants, is
capable of adapting to the varying pressure and quality requirements of mid-continent production. Enogex is able to provide low-pressure
service to extend the production life of older wells and to provide high-pressure service to meet the requirements of new exploration. Through its
processing plants, Enogex also is able to remove natural gas liquids from the wellhead gas streams, which is necessary for such gas to meet
quality specifications of the downstream marketplace.

Besides the core activities described above, the transportation capabilities and markets of Enogex s pipeline assets provide other business
opportunities. These include the ability of Enogex to use its pipeline system and storage assets as a market hub . At December 31, 2006, Enogex
was connected to 13 other major pipelines at approximately 64 pipeline interconnect points providing access to markets in the western United
States, the Midwest, Northeast, and Gulf Coast in addition to Oklahoma and adjoining states. As a result, Enogex s assets sit in a key geographic
region of the United States, with sufficient capacity to provide crosshaul transportation and storage services to a variety of utility and industrial
customers that need to access mid-continent natural gas supply for their own needs, or to suppliers from other regions seeking to provide gas to
on-system markets which Enogex serves.

Enogex s marketing business provides products and services that support the market hub concept and are an important element in the Company
realizing the full value of its transportation and storage assets. The marketing business offers the Company real-time and longer-term price
discovery and valuation of energy commodities (natural gas and associated natural gas liquids) associated with the Company s assets. The
marketing business is instrumental in providing increased liquidity for these energy commodities by focusing on developing supplies and
markets that can access the Enogex systems either directly or via interconnections with intrastate and interstate pipelines. The marketing
business also provides the Company the capability to provide risk management services to the Company and to its customers.

The Company intends to continue to build upon the foundation of services and products that these natural gas assets can provide. In addition, the
Company expects to generate additional margins by improving its ability to aggregate gas, maximize the operational capabilities of its assets and
utilize commercial information available from the marketplace.
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On December 15, 2006, Enogex announced that it had entered into firm capacity lease agreement with Midcontinent Express Pipeline, LLC for a
primary term of 10 years (subject to possible extensions) for certain capacity on the Enogex system. The leased capacity provided for in this
agreement is up to 0.5 Bef per day and is dependent on the shipper volumes that commit to the project. The Enogex capacity will capacity be a
part of the proposed MEP, a joint venture between Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. In addition to the
Enogex leased capacity, the proposed MEP project includes a new pipeline originating near Bennington, Oklahoma and terminating in Butler,
Alabama. Pending necessary regulatory approval, the MEP pipeline project is currently expected to be in service by February 2009. Depending
on the final capacity that MEP subscribes to pursuant to the agreement, Enogex expects its revenues from this firm capacity lease agreement to
be between $12 million and $30 million annually. Enogex currently

10
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estimates that its capital expenditures related to this project during the next two to three years could be approximately $100 million. The Enogex
lease agreement with MEP is subject to certain contingencies including regulatory approval. Prior to such approval, Enogex may incur
expenditures of between approximately $20 million and $40 million with the majority being for certain commitments for materials that can be
sold or used in normal operations in the event the MEP project does not proceed and the amount not recovered or utilized for such expenditures
is not expected to be material. Enogex also is seeking to provide lease capacity to Boardwalk s Gulf Crossings project. Boardwalk Pipeline
Partners, LP, has announced plans to build the Gulf Crossings pipeline, which includes 355 miles of new interstate natural gas pipeline. It
initially is expected to transport gas from the supply areas in Sherman, Texas, Bennington, Oklahoma and Paris, Texas to the Perryville,
Louisiana Hub. Subject to regulatory approvals, the Gulf Crossings project is expected to be in service during the fourth quarter of 2008.

Enogex had previously announced that it had entered into a letter of intent with El Paso Corporation ( El Paso ) relating to El Paso s Continental
Connector Project. The letter of intent contemplated arrangements by which El Paso or an affiliate would execute a lease of capacity on the
Enogex pipeline system and the leased Enogex pipeline capacity would become part of the Continental Connector Project. The letter of intent
expired on April 28, 2006. In early October 2006, El Paso determined not to proceed with its proposed Continental Connector project. Enogex

did not incur any material expenditures relating to this proposed project.

Dispositions

Transportation and Storage. During September 2004, Enogex received notification from a customer that a transportation agreement involving
four of Enogex s non-contiguous pipeline asset segments located in West Texas and used to serve the customer s power plants would be
terminated effective December 31, 2004. In response to this notification, the Company recognized, during the third quarter of 2004, a pre-tax
impairment loss of approximately $8.6 million in the Natural Gas Pipeline segment related to Enogex natural gas pipeline assets that were used
to provide service to this customer. In December 2004, the Company received notification that all of this customers plants in West Texas were
shut down and service was no longer required. In November 2006, Enogex sold the four non-contiguous pipeline asset segments for
approximately $1.0 million. Enogex recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $1.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 related to the sale of
these assets.

Enogex regularly evaluates the long term stability, profitability and core competency of each of its businesses within the regulatory and market
framework in which each business operates. Based on these evaluations, in September 2005, Enogex announced that it had entered into an
agreement to sell its interest in EAPC, which held its NOARK interest. This sale was completed on October 31, 2005. The Company received
approximately $177.4 million in cash proceeds and recognized an after tax gain of approximately $36.7 million from the sale of this business in
the fourth quarter of 2005. Enogex used approximately $31.9 million of the proceeds to repay principal and accrued interest on long-term debt
and approximately $46.7 million to pay taxes associated with EAPC. The balance of the proceeds of approximately $98.8 million, was used,
among other things, to reduce short-term debt levels and fund capital expenditures.

In March 2006, Enogex announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Gathering, had entered into an agreement to sell certain gas gathering
assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma, area. The Gathering assets included in the transaction were approximately 568 miles of gas gathering pipeline and
22 compressor units with current volumes of approximately 145 million cubic feet per day, all in eastern Oklahoma. The sale price was
approximately $93 million. This transaction closed on May 1, 2006 and Enogex recorded an after tax gain of approximately $34.1 million during
the second quarter of 2006. The proceeds from the sale, were used, among other things, to reduce short-term debt levels and fund capital
expenditures.

Capital Expenditures; Improvement Projects.

As discussed above, in August 2006, Enogex completed a project to expand its gathering pipeline capacity on the west side of its system in
western Oklahoma and the Texas Panhandle that should enable Enogex to benefit from growth opportunities in that marketplace. Enogex
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continues to consider additional opportunities to expand this project.

In 2005, Enogex completed a major upgrade of its information systems that began in 2003. Enogex believes that these upgrades have been a
major step towards obtaining the data required to allow it to capture available economic opportunities on its assets, provide improved customer
service and enable management to better determine the earnings potential of its various assets and service offerings. One information system
implemented provided a single system for pipeline equipment control, data collection, management and measurement of gas volumes and
pressures, which has improved Enogex s access to critical data for daily system management decisions. Another information system
implemented, together with the Company s primary enterprise-wide general ledger software, has been used to accumulate

11
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and analyze financial data used in financial reporting. This change in information systems was made to eliminate previous stand alone systems
and integrate them into one system. Also, the Company is investing in upgrades and enhancements to continue to improve the functionality of its
information systems.

On a company-wide basis, the Company implemented an enhanced digital asset mapping technology for both OG&E and Enogex in May 2006.
The new system supports a significant increase in the number of our members who use this technology in their jobs, expanding the productive
use of geographic asset information in a variety of ways, including daily operations, maintenance, budgeting, planning, purchasing and
accounting. Also, Enogex began work on a flow data access project called ProductionWatch at the end of the second quarter of 2005. Initial
phases of implementation were completed by June 2006 with the final phases of implementation of this project being completed by the end of
2007. ProductionWatch is a service that provides data (volume, pressure, temperature, etc.) from the Enogex meter to Enogex s customers for a
fee. ProductionWatch data will be available to customers via the internet and it may also be downloaded by customers from Enogex network
servers. Such data is attractive because it enables Enogex customers to increase gas production and reduce operating costs. From Enogex s
perspective, ProductionWatch provides Enogex with an additional revenue stream while helping Enogex operate more efficiently.

Transportation and Storage

General. One of Enogex s primary lines of business is the transportation of natural gas, with current throughput of approximately 1.4 trillion
British thermal units ( Btu ) per day. Enogex delivers natural gas to most interstate and intrastate pipelines and end-users connected to its systems
from the Arkoma and Anadarko basins (including recent growth activity in western Oklahoma, the Texas Panhandle and in the Woodford Shale
developments in southeastern Oklahoma). At December 31, 2006, Enogex was connected to 13 other major pipelines at approximately 64

pipeline interconnect points. These interconnections include Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line, Southern Star Central Gas Pipeline (formerly

Williams Central), Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America, Oneok Gas Transmission, Northern Natural Gas Company, ANR Pipeline,

Western Farmers Electric Cooperative, CenterPoint Energy Gas Transmission Co., El Paso Natural Gas Pipeline, Enbridge Pipelines, Oneok
WesTex Transmission L.P. and Ozark Gas Transmission, L.L.C. Further, Enogex is connected to various end-users including numerous electric
generation facilities in Oklahoma that are fueled by natural gas. At December 31, 2006, the net property, plant and equipment balance for

Enogex s transportation and storage business was approximately $514.0 million.

Enogex owns two storage facilities in Oklahoma, the Wetumka Storage Facility and the Stuart Storage Facility. These storage facilities are

currently being operated at a working gas level of approximately 23 Bcf with an approximate withdrawal capability of 650 million cubic feet per

day ( MMcfd ) and similar injection capability. Enogex offers both firm and interruptible storage services to third parties, under Section 311 of

the Natural Gas Policy Act ( NGPA ), under terms and conditions specified in its Statement of Operating Conditions ( SOC ) for gas storage and at
market-based rates negotiated with each customer. Both facilities also are used to support Enogex s intrastate transportation and storage services

for OG&E.

Enogex offers firm intrastate transportation services and derives the majority of its transportation revenues from these services. To the extent
pipeline capacity is not needed for such firm intrastate service, Enogex offers interruptible interstate transportation services pursuant to Section
311 of the NGPA as well as interruptible intrastate transportation services.

Enogex provides firm intrastate transportation and storage services to several customers on its system. Enogex s major customers are OG&E as
well as PSO, the second largest electric utility in Oklahoma, serving the Tulsa market. Enogex provides gas transmission delivery services to all
of PSO s natural gas-fired electric generation units in Oklahoma under a firm intrastate transportation contract. The PSO contract, which expires
January 1, 2013, and the OG&E contract, which expires April 30, 2009, provide for a monthly demand charge plus variable transportation
charges (including fuel). As part of the contract with OG&E, Enogex provides natural gas storage services for OG&E. Enogex has been
providing natural gas storage services to OG&E since August 2002 when Enogex acquired the Stuart Storage Facility from Central Oklahoma
Oil and Gas Corp. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, Enogex s revenues from its firm intrastate transportation and storage contracts were
approximately $98.1 million, $95.0 million and $95.6 million, respectively.
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Relationship with OG&E. From its inception, Enogex has been the transporter of natural gas to OG&E s natural gas-fired generation facilities.
OG&E s rates are subject to OCC jurisdiction. Following a consideration of competitive bidding by OG&E as required by a prior order from the
OCC, OG&E s contract with Enogex was amended by an agreement dated May 1, 2003 with no-notice load following requirements and a
termination date of April 30, 2009. The amount collected from OG&E by Enogex under the current contract for transportation services was
approximately $34.9 million,
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26



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

$34.9 million and $34.3 million, respectively, during 2006, 2005 and 2004. This amount collected from OG&E by Enogex under the current
contract for storage services was approximately $12.7 million, $12.7 million and $15.3 million, respectively, during 2006, 2005 and 2004. In
July 2005, OG&E received an OCC order related to its application to recover the costs of gas transportation and storage services provided to
OG&E by Enogex pursuant to the contract between OG&E and Enogex. See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further
discussion of this matter.

Competition. Enogex s transportation and storage assets compete with interstate and other intrastate pipelines and storage facilities in providing
transportation and storage services for natural gas. The principal elements of competition are rates, terms of services, flexibility and reliability of
service.

Natural gas competes with other forms of energy available to Enogex s customers and end-users, including electricity, coal and fuel oils. The
primary competitive factor is price. Changes in the availability or price of natural gas or other forms of energy as well as weather and other
factors affect the demand for natural gas on the Enogex system.

Regulation. The rates charged by Enogex for transporting natural gas on behalf of an interstate natural gas pipeline company or a local
distribution company served by an interstate natural gas pipeline company are subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC under Section 311 of the
NGPA. Rates to provide such service must be fair and equitable under the NGPA and are subject to review and approval by the FERC at least
once every three years. This rate review may, but will not necessarily, involve an administrative-type hearing before the FERC Staff panel and
an administrative appellate review. Offering interruptible Section 311 transportation gives Enogex the opportunity to utilize any unused capacity
on an interruptible basis in interstate commerce and thus increase its transportation revenues without increasing its regulatory burden
appreciably. Beginning January 1, 2006, Enogex s approved Section 311 rate structure includes a provision for Enogex to charge a fixed fuel
percentage, by zone, for the fuel usage for natural gas shipped on its system. The fixed zonal fuel percentages are adjusted annually and remain
in effect for a calendar fuel year (unless Enogex files with the FERC to adjust the zonal percentages more frequently). The mechanism used to
recover such fuel is a fuel tracker that establishes the zonal fixed fuel factors (expressed as a percentage of natural gas shipped in the zone) that
is trued-up over a two year period and based on the value of the gas at the time of usage. Prior to January 1, 2006, Enogex recovered a
system-wide fixed fuel percentage as opposed to the current zonal fixed fuel percentages.

On September 1, 2004, Enogex made a filing at the FERC to revise its previously approved SOC to permit, among other things, the unbundling,
effective October 1, 2004, of its previously bundled gathering and transportation services. As a result, effective October 1, 2004, the FERC
regulates Enogex s Section 311 transportation but does not regulate Enogex s gathering.

On September 30, 2004, Enogex made its required triennial filing at the FERC to update its Section 311 maximum interruptible transportation
rate. On September 29, 2004, Enogex filed an updated fuel factor with the FERC for the last quarter of 2004. Finally, on November 15, 2004,
Enogex filed its annual updated system-wide fuel factor for fuel year 2005 (calendar year 2005). The proceedings were resolved by a unanimous
settlement that the FERC approved without modification or condition, by order of September 19, 2005. The Settlement established new
maximum interruptible Section 311 zonal rates for an East Zone and a West Zone on the Enogex system, confirmed that Enogex could unbundle
its gathering and transportation services and permitted the fuel factor percentages for the last quarter of 2004 and for fuel year 2005 to become
effective, as filed. The FERC order concluded all four proceedings which resulted in no refunds being due. Enogex must file its next rate case no
later than October 1, 2007 to comply with the FERC s requirement for triennial filings.

As required by the fuel tracker provisions of its SOC, Enogex files annually to update its fuel percentages. On November 15, 2006, Enogex filed
zonal fuel percentages for the 2007 calendar fuel year. As had been agreed in the settlement of the 2004 Section 311 rate case, Enogex
established an East Zone fixed fuel percentage and a West Zone fixed fuel percentage to be recalculated annually to replace the system-wide
fixed fuel percentage previously established annually for the Enogex system. By order dated December 19, 2006, the FERC approved and
accepted Enogex s November 15, 2006 zonal fuel factors as fair and equitable effective January 1, 2007.
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The rates charged by Enogex for transporting natural gas for OG&E and other shippers within Oklahoma are not subject to FERC regulation
because they are intrastate transactions. The rates charged by Enogex for any intrastate transportation service is not subject to direct state
regulation by the OCC. The OCC, the APSC and the FERC (all of which approve various electric rates of OG&E) have the authority to examine
the appropriateness of any transportation charges or other fees paid by OG&E to Enogex which OG&E seeks to recover from its ratepayers in its
cost-of-service for electric service. See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the OCC order OG&E
received in July 2005 related to the amounts charged OG&E by Enogex for gas transportation and storage services.
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Enogex s pipeline operations are subject to various Oklahoma safety and environmental and pipeline transportation laws.

Gathering and Processing

General. Natural gas gathering operations are conducted through Gathering and natural gas processing operations are conducted through
Enogex Products Corporation ( Products ). The streams of processable natural gas gathered from wells and other sources are gathered through
Enogex s gas gathering systems and delivered to processing plants for the extraction of natural gas liquids. During 2006, Gathering connected
206 new producing wells, located in the Arkoma and Anadarko basins (including recent growth activity in western Oklahoma, the Texas
Panhandle and in the Woodford Shale developments in southeastern Oklahoma), to its gathering systems. The Company provides connection,
measurement, treating, dehydration and compression services for various types of producing wells owned by various sized producers who are
active in the region. Where the quality of natural gas received dictates that removal of natural gas liquids may be in order, such gas is aggregated
via the gathering system to the inlet of one or more of the Company s fleet of processing plants owned and operated by Products. The resulting
processed stream of natural gas is then delivered via the Enogex pipeline system to one or more delivery points into the web of transmission
pipelines in the region. Products is one of the largest gas processors in Oklahoma, operating six natural gas processing plants with a total inlet
capacity of 723 MMcfd. Products has been active since 1968 in the processing of natural gas and extraction and marketing of natural gas liquids.
The liquids extracted include condensate, marketable ethane, propane, butanes and natural gasoline mix. The residue gas remaining after the
liquid products have been extracted consists primarily of ethane and methane. In 2006, approximately 371 million gallons of natural gas liquids
were sold. At December 31, 2006, the net property, plant and equipment balance for Enogex s gathering and processing business was
approximately $351.2 million.

Approximately 19 percent of the commercial grade propane produced at Products plants is sold on the local market. The balance of propane and
the other natural gas liquids produced by Products is delivered into pipeline facilities of a third party and transported to Conway, Kansas and
Mont Belvieu, Texas, where they are sold under contract or on the spot market. Ethane, which may be optionally produced at all of Products
plants except one, is sold under contract or on the spot market.

Competition. Enogex competes with gatherers and processors of all types and sizes, including those affiliated with various producers, other
major pipeline companies, and various independent midstream entities. In processing and marketing natural gas liquids, Products competes
against virtually all other gas processors extracting and selling natural gas liquids in its market area. Competition for natural gas supply is based
on efficiency and reliability of operations, reputation, proximity to existing assets, access to markets and pricing. Enogex believes it will be able
to continue to compete effectively.

With respect to the profitability of the natural gas processing industry, generally if the price of natural gas liquids falls without a corresponding
decrease in the cost of natural gas, it may become uneconomical to extract certain natural gas liquids. This factor has had a significant adverse
impact on the results of Enogex in the past, but, as discussed above, the potential adverse impact has been materially mitigated, but not entirely
eliminated. In addition to the commodity pricing impact that affects the entire industry, the profitability of Products is also largely affected by
the volume of natural gas processed at its plants which is highly dependent upon the volume and Btu content of natural gas gathered. Generally,
if the volume of natural gas gathered increases, then the volume of natural gas liquids extracted by Products should also increase.

Marketing

General. Enogex s commodity sales and services related to natural gas are conducted primarily through its subsidiary, OGE Energy Resources,
Inc. ( OERI ). OERI is engaged in the business of natural gas marketing. OERI provides marketing services to Enogex for natural gas volumes
purchased at the wellhead from customers. As a service to the producers on the Enogex system, Enogex may agree to purchase the gas at the
wellhead in conjunction with gathering their gas for transportation to other markets. OERI also purchases and sells natural gas pursuant to
contracts with Enogex and Products relating to Enogex s gathering, processing and storage assets.
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OERI focuses on serving customers along the natural gas value chain, from producers to end-users, by purchasing natural gas from suppliers and
reselling to pipelines, local distribution companies and end-users, including the electric generation sector. The geographic scope of marketing
efforts has been focused largely in the mid-continent area of the United States. These markets are natural extensions of OERI s business on

the Enogex system. OERI contracts for pipeline capacity with Enogex and other pipelines to access multiple interconnections with the interstate
pipeline system network that moves natural gas from the production basins primarily in the south central United States to the major consumption
areas in Chicago, New York and other north central and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States. In 2005, OERI implemented a refocused
strategy that seeks to minimize the amount of capital employed and to complement better the natural gas pipeline
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business. OERI has expanded into the Gulf Coast and Rocky Mountain markets to diversify its business and to facilitate Enogex s business
development efforts.

OERI primarily participates in both intermediate-term markets (less than three years) and short-term spot markets for natural gas. Although
OERI continues to increase its focus on intermediate-term sales, short-term sales of natural gas are expected to continue to play a critical role in
the overall strategy because they provide an important source of market intelligence as well as an important portfolio balancing function. OERI s
average daily sales volumes dropped from approximately 1.4 Bcf in 2005 to approximately 0.8 Bef in 2006. This reflects selective deal
execution to assure adequate margin in light of credit and other risks in the current high commodity price environment. OERI s risk management
skills afford its customers the opportunity to tailor the risk profile and composition of their natural gas portfolio. The Company follows a policy
of hedging price risk on gas purchases or sales contracts entered into by OERI by buying and selling natural gas futures contracts on the New
York Mercantile Exchange futures exchange and other derivatives in the over-the-counter market, subject to daily and monthly trading stop loss
limits of $2.5 million and daily value-at-risk limits of $1.5 million in accordance with corporate policies.

Competition. OERI competes in marketing natural gas with major integrated oil companies, marketing affiliates of major interstate and
intrastate pipelines and commercial banks, national and local natural gas brokers, marketers and distributors for natural gas supplies.
Competition for natural gas supplies is based primarily on reputation, credit support, the availability of gathering and transportation to
high-demand markets and the ability to obtain a satisfactory price for the producer s natural gas. Competition for sales to customers is based
primarily upon reliability, services offered and the price of delivered natural gas.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 54.4 percent of OERI s service volumes were with electric utilities, local gas distribution
companies, pipelines and producers. The remaining 45.6 percent of service volumes were to marketers, municipals, cooperatives and industrials.

At December 31, 2006, approximately 82.4 percent of the payment exposure was to companies having investment grade ratings with Standard &

Poor s Ratings Services ( Standard & Poor s ) and approximately 1.2 percent having less than investment grade ratings. The remaining 16.4 percent
of OERI s exposure is with privately held companies, municipals or cooperatives that were not rated by Standard & Poor s. OERI applies internal
credit analyses and policies to these non-rated companies.

FINANCE AND CONSTRUCTION

Future Capital Requirements

Capital Requirements

The Company s primary needs for capital are related to acquiring or constructing new facilities and replacing or expanding existing facilities at
OG&E and at Enogex. Other working capital requirements are primarily related to maturing debt, operating lease obligations, hedging activities,
natural gas storage, delays in recovering unconditional fuel purchase obligations and fuel clause under and over recoveries. The Company
generally meets its cash needs through a combination of internally generated funds, short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank
borrowings and commercial paper) and permanent financings. See Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and
Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Requirements for a discussion of the Company s capital requirements.

Capital Expenditures
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The Company s current 2007 to 2012 construction program includes continued investment in OG&E s distribution, generation and transmission
system and Enogex s pipeline assets. The Company s current estimates of capital expenditures for 2007 through 2012 are approximately $568.1
million, $838.6 million, $815.9 million, $659.9 million, $550.2 million and $436.0 million, respectively, which include capital expenditures of
approximately $94.0 million, $278.8 million, $285.7 million, $97.7 million and $34.1 million, respectively, in 2007 through 2011 related to the
construction of the proposed Red Rock power plant discussed below. OG&E also has approximately 550 MW s of contracts with qualified
cogeneration facilities ( QF ) and small power production producers ( QF contracts ) to meet its current and future expected customer needs.
OG&E will continue reviewing all of the supply alternatives to these QF contracts that minimize the total cost of generation to its customers,
including exercising its options (if applicable) to extend these QF contracts at pre-determined rates.

In July 2006, the Company announced plans for OG&E to partner with PSO and the OMPA to build a new 950 MW coal unit at OG&E s
existing Sooner plant location near Red Rock, Oklahoma. The estimated $1.8 billion project is the result
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of PSO s December 2005 request for proposals in which it sought bids for up to 600 MW s of new base load generation to be available to PSO.
The unit, to be called Red Rock, is expected to be one of the cleanest of its size using coal from the Powder River Basin, which is located near
Gillette, Wyoming. OG&E will operate the facility and expects to spend approximately $759 million in construction costs related to its 42
percent ownership percentage in the project and approximately $30 million in transmission costs for the project. PSO will own 50 percent and
the OMPA will own eight percent. For additional information regarding the proposed construction of this power plant, see Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

During 2006 and 2005, the Company made contributions to its pension plan of approximately $90.0 million and $32.0 million, respectively, to
ensure that the pension plan maintains an adequate funded status. During 2007, the Company may contribute up to $50 million to its pension

plan. See Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Requirements
for a discussion of the Company s pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Future Sources of Financing

Management expects that internally generated funds, the issuance of long and short-term debt and proceeds from the sales of common stock to
the public through the Company s Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan or other offerings will be adequate over the next
three years to meet anticipated cash needs. The Company utilizes short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank borrowings and
commercial paper) to satisfy temporary working capital needs and as an interim source of financing capital expenditures until permanent
financing is arranged.

Short-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings generally are used to meet working capital requirements. In December 2006, the Company and OG&E increased their
aggregate available borrowing capacity under their revolving credit agreements from $750.0 million to $1.0 billion, $600 million for the
Company and $400 million for OG&E. Also, OG&E has the necessary regulatory approvals to incur up to $800 million in short-term
borrowings at any time for a two-year period beginning January 1, 2007 and ending December 31, 2008. See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the Company s short-term debt activity.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Approximately $16.5 million and $97.5 million, respectively, of the Company s capital expenditures budgeted for 2007 and 2008 are to comply
with environmental laws and regulations. The Company s management believes that all of its operations are in substantial compliance with
present federal, state and local environmental standards. It is estimated that the Company s total expenditures for capital, operating, maintenance
and other costs to preserve and enhance environmental quality will be approximately $84.4 million during 2007 as compared to approximately
$60.1 million in 2006. The Company continues to evaluate its environmental management systems to ensure compliance with existing and
proposed environmental legislation and regulations and to better position itself in a competitive market. See Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of environmental matters, including the impact of existing and proposed environmental legislation and
regulations.
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EMPLOYEES

The Company and its subsidiaries had 3,123 employees at December 31, 2006.

ACCESS TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FILINGS

The Company s web site address isvww.oge.com. Through the Company s web site under the heading Investors , SEC Filings, the Company
makes available, free of charge, its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all

amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after

such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ).
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In the discussion of risk factors set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms OGE Energy , we , our and us refer to
OGE Energy Corp., OG&E refers to our subsidiary Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company and Enogex refers to our subsidiary Enogex
Inc. and its subsidiaries. In addition to the other information in this 10-K and other documents filed by us and/or our subsidiaries with

the SEC from time to time, the following factors should be carefully considered in evaluating OGE Energy and its subsidiaries. Such

factors could affect actual results and cause results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by

or on behalf of us or our subsidiaries. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently view as

immaterial may also impair our business operations.

REGULATORY RISKS

Our profitability depends to a large extent on the ability of OG&E to fully recover its costs from its customers and there may be changes in
the regulatory environment that impair its ability to recover costs from its customers.

We are subject to comprehensive regulation by several federal and state utility regulatory agencies, which significantly influences our operating
environment and OG&E s ability to fully recover its costs from utility customers. With rising fuel costs, recoverability of under recovered
amounts from our customers is a significant risk. The utility commissions in the states where OG&E operates regulate many aspects of our
utility operations including siting and construction of facilities, customer service and the rates that we can charge customers. The profitability of
our utility operations is dependent on our ability to fully recover costs related to providing energy and utility services to our customers. As
indicated in the settlement agreement with the OCC related to OG&E s Centennial wind farm, OG&E is to file for a general rate review during
2009.

In recent years, the regulatory environments in which we operate have received an increased amount of public attention. It is possible that there
could be changes in the regulatory environment that would impair our ability to fully recover costs historically absorbed by our customers. State
utility commissions generally possess broad powers to ensure that the needs of the utility customers are being met. We cannot assure that the
OCC, APSC and the FERC will grant us rate increases in the future or in the amounts we request, and they could instead lower our rates.

We are unable to predict the impact on our operating results from the future regulatory activities of any of the agencies that regulate us. Changes
in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

OG&E s rates are subject to regulation by the states of Oklahoma and Arkansas, as well as by a federal agency, whose regulatory paradigms
and goals may not be consistent.

OG&E is currently a vertically integrated electric utility and most of its revenue results from the sale of electricity to retail customers subject to
bundled rates that are approved by the applicable state utility commission and from the sale of electricity to wholesale customers subject to rates
and other matters approved by the FERC.

OG&E operates in Oklahoma and western Arkansas and is subject to regulation by the OCC and the APSC, in addition to the FERC. Exposure
to inconsistent state and federal regulatory standards may limit our ability to operate profitably. Further alteration of the regulatory landscape in
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which we operate may harm our financial condition and results of operations.

Costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations are significant and the cost of compliance with future environmental laws and
regulations may adversely affect our results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules and regulations relating to air quality, water quality, waste
management, wildlife mortality, natural resources and health and safety that could, among other things, restrict or limit the output of certain
facilities or the use of certain fuels required for the production of electricity and/or require additional pollution control equipment and otherwise
increase costs. There are significant capital, operating and other costs associated with compliance with these environmental statutes, rules and
regulations and those costs may be even more significant in the future.

We may incur additional costs or delays in power plant construction and may not be able to recover our investment.
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OG&E s business plan includes the construction of an estimated 950 MW coal-fired generating plant. OG&E has not recently managed a
construction program of this magnitude. There are risks in the completion of this project including, among other things, that actual costs may
exceed budget estimates, negotiation of satisfactory engineering, procurement and construction agreements, delays may occur in obtaining
permits and materials, construction delays, supplier and contractor performance shortfalls, shortages and inconsistent quality of equipment,
materials and labor, work stoppages, adverse weather conditions, environmental and geological conditions, and events beyond OG&E s control
may occur that may materially affect the schedule, budget and performance of this project. These risks may increase the costs of this project,
require OG&E to purchase additional electricity to supply its retail customers until the project is completed, or both, and may materially affect
OG&E s results of operations and financial position. In addition, construction delays and contractor performance shortfalls can result in the loss
of revenues and may, in turn, adversely affect our net income and financial position. Furthermore, if the construction project is not completed
according to specification, we may incur liabilities and suffer reduced plant efficiency, higher operating costs and reduced net income. If we are
unable to complete the construction of the facility or decide to delay or cancel construction of the facility, we may not be able to recover our
investment in that facility.

We may not be able to recover the costs of our substantial planned investment in capital improvements and additions.

Our business plan calls for extensive investment in capital improvements and additions, including the installation of environmental upgrades and
retrofits and modernizing existing infrastructure as well as other initiatives. Significant portions of our facilities were constructed many years
ago. Older generation equipment, even if maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may require significant capital expenditures
to maintain efficiency, to comply with changing environmental requirements or to provide reliable operations. OG&E currently provides service
at rates approved by one or more regulatory commissions. If these regulatory commissions do not approve adjustments to the rates we charge,
we would not be able to recover the costs associated with our planned extensive investment. This could adversely affect our results of operations
and financial condition. While we may seek to limit the impact of any denied recovery by attempting to reduce the scope of our capital
investment, there can no assurance as to the effectiveness of any such mitigation efforts, particularly with respect to previously incurred costs
and commitments.

Our planned capital investment program coincides with a material increase in the historic prices of the fuels used to generate electricity. Many of
our jurisdictions have fuel clauses that permit us to recover these increased fuel costs through rates without a general rate case. While prudent
capital investment and variable fuel costs each generally warrant recovery, in practical terms our regulators could limit the amount or timing of
increased costs that we would recover through higher rates. Any such limitation could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

Enogex has announced plans to lease capacity to several proposed new pipeline projects. As part of this process, Enogex may incur significant
costs to upgrade and expand its facilities. If the proposed pipeline projects are not completed, Enogex may not be able to recover the costs it
incurred to upgrade and expand its facilities.

The regional power market in which OG&E operates has changing transmission regulatory structures, which may affect the transmission
assets and related revenues and expenses.

OG&E currently owns and operates transmission facilities as part of a vertically integrated utility. OG&E is a member of the Southwest Power
Pool ( SPP ) regional transmission organization ( RTO ) and has transferred operational authority (but not ownership) of OG&E s transmission
facilities to the SPP RTO. The SPP RTO implemented a regional energy imbalance service market on February 1, 2007. Without significant

actual operating experience in this market, we cannot fully assess the impact this market will have on our business. OG&E s revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities may be adversely affected by changes in the organization, operation and regulation by the FERC or the SPP RTO.
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Increased competition resulting from restructuring efforts could have a significant financial impact on us and OG&E and consequently
decrease our revenue.

We have been and will continue to be affected by competitive changes to the utility and energy industries. Significant changes already have
occurred and additional changes have been proposed to the wholesale electric market. Although retail restructuring efforts in Oklahoma and
Arkansas have been postponed for the time being, if such efforts were renewed, retail competition and the unbundling of regulated energy
service could have a significant financial impact on us due to an impairment of assets, a loss of retail customers, lower profit margins and/or
increased costs of capital. Any such restructuring could have a significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and
cash flows. We cannot predict when we will be subject to changes in legislation or regulation, nor can we predict the impact of these changes on
our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Recent events that are beyond our control have increased the level of public and regulatory scrutiny of our industry. Governmental and
market reactions to these events may have negative impacts on our business, financial condition and access to capital.

As a result of the volatility of natural gas prices in North America, accounting irregularities at public companies in general, and energy
companies in particular, and investigations by governmental authorities into energy trading activities, companies in the regulated and
unregulated utility business have been under an increased amount of public and regulatory scrutiny and suspicion. The accounting irregularities
have caused regulators and legislators to review current accounting practices, financial disclosures and relationships between corporations and
their independent auditors. The capital markets and rating agencies also have increased their level of scrutiny. We believe that we are complying
with all applicable laws and accounting standards, but it is difficult or impossible to predict or control what effect these types of events may have
on our business, financial condition or access to the capital markets. It is unclear what additional laws or regulations may develop, and we
cannot predict the ultimate impact of any future changes in accounting regulations or practices in general with respect to public companies, the
energy industry or our operations specifically. Any new accounting standards could affect the way we are required to record revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities. These changes in accounting standards could lead to negative impacts on reported earnings or increases in liabilities that
could, in turn, affect our reported results of operations.

We are subject to substantial utility and energy regulation by governmental agencies. Compliance with current and future utility and energy
regulatory requirements and procurement of necessary approvals, permits and certifications may result in significant costs to us.

We are subject to substantial regulation from federal, state and local regulatory agencies. We are required to comply with numerous laws and
regulations and to obtain numerous permits, approvals and certificates from the governmental agencies that regulate various aspects of our
businesses, including customer rates, service regulations, retail service territories, sales of securities, asset acquisitions and sales, accounting
policies and practices and the operation of generating facilities. We believe the necessary permits, approvals and certificates have been obtained
for our existing operations and that our business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, we are unable to predict the impact
on our operating results from future regulatory activities of these agencies.

The Energy Policy Act of 2005 gave the FERC authority to establish mandatory electric reliability rules enforceable with monetary penalties.
The FERC has approved the North American Electric Reliability Corporation ( NERC ) as the Electric Reliability Organization for North
America and delegated to it the development and enforcement of electric transmission reliability rules. It is the Company s intent to comply with
all applicable reliability rules and expediently correct a violation should it occur. The Company is subject to periodic NERC compliance audits
and cannot predict the outcome of those audits.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Our results of operations may be impacted by disruptions beyond our control.

We are exposed to risks related to performance of contractual obligations by our suppliers. We are dependent on coal for much of our electric
generating capacity. We rely on suppliers to deliver coal in accordance with short and long-term contracts. We have certain coal supply contracts
in place; however, there can be no assurance that the counterparties to these agreements will fulfill their obligations to supply coal to us. The
suppliers under these agreements may experience financial or technical problems that inhibit their ability to fulfill their obligations to us. In
addition, the suppliers under these agreements may not be required to supply coal to us under certain circumstances, such as in the event of a
natural disaster. Coal delivery may be subject to short-term interruptions or reductions due to various factors, including transportation problems,
weather and availability of equipment. Failure or delay by our suppliers of coal deliveries could disrupt our ability to deliver electricity and
require us to incur additional expenses to meet the needs of our customers. In addition, as agreements with our suppliers expire, we may not be
able to enter into new agreements for coal delivery on equivalent terms.
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Also, because our generation and transmission systems are part of an interconnected regional grid, we face the risk of possible loss of business
due to a disruption or black-out caused by an event (severe storm, generator or transmission facility outage) on a neighboring system or the
actions of a neighboring utility, similar to the August 14, 2003 black-out in portions of the eastern U.S. and Canada. Any such disruption could
result in a significant decrease in revenues and significant additional costs to repair assets, which could have a material adverse impact on our
consolidated financial condition and results of operations.
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Weather conditions such as tornadoes, thunderstorms, ice storms, wind storms, as well as seasonal temperature variations may adversely
affect our results of operations and financial position.

Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electric power. In OG&E s service area, demand for power peaks during the hot summer
months, with market prices also typically peaking at that time. As a result, overall operating results may fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly
basis. In addition, we have historically sold less power, and consequently received less revenue, when weather conditions are milder. Unusually
mild weather in the future could reduce our revenues, net income, available cash and borrowing ability. Severe weather, such as tornadoes,
thunderstorms, ice storms and wind storms, may cause outages and property damage which may require us to incur additional costs that are
generally not insured and that may not be recoverable from customers. The effect of the failure of our facilities to operate as planned, as
described above, would be particularly burdensome during a peak demand period.

FINANCIAL AND MARKET RISKS

Increasing costs associated with our defined benefit retirement plans, health care plans and other employee-related benefits may adversely
affect our results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

We have defined benefit retirement and postretirement plans that cover substantially all of our employees. Assumptions related to future costs,
returns on investments, interest rates and other actuarial assumptions have a significant impact on our earnings and funding requirements. Based
on our assumptions at December 31, 2006, we expect to continue to make future contributions to maintain required funding levels. It is our
practice to also make voluntary contributions to maintain more prudent funding levels than minimally required. These amounts are estimates and
may change based on actual stock market performance, changes in interest rates and any changes in governmental regulations.

In addition to the costs of our retirement plans, the costs of providing health care benefits to our employees and retirees have increased
substantially in recent years. We believe that our employee benefit costs, including costs related to health care plans for our employees and
former employees, will continue to rise. The increasing costs and funding requirements with our defined benefit retirement plan, health care
plans and other employee benefits may adversely affect our results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

All employees hired prior to February 1, 2000 participate in defined benefit and postretirement plans. If these employees retire when they
become eligible for retirement over the next several years, or if our plan experiences adverse market returns on its investments, or if interest
rates materially fall, our pension expense and contributions to the plans could rise substantially over historical levels. The timing and number of
employees retiring and selecting the lump sum payment option could result in pension settlement charges that could materially affect our results
of operations if we are unable to recover these costs through our electric rates. In addition, assumptions related to future costs, returns on
investments, interest rates and other actuarial assumptions, including projected retirements, have a significant impact on our results of operations
and consolidated financial position.

We face certain human resource risks associated with the availability of trained and qualified labor to meet our future staffing requirements

Workforce demographic issues challenge employers nationwide and are of particular concern to the electric utility industry. The median age of
utility workers is significantly higher than the national average. Over the next three years, approximately 28% of our current employees will be
eligible to retire with full pension benefits. Failure to hire and adequately train replacement employees, including the transfer of significant
internal historical knowledge and expertise to the new employees, may adversely affect our ability to manage and operate our business.
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We are a holding company with our primary assets being investments in our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company and thus our investments in our subsidiaries are our primary assets. Substantially all of our operations are conducted
by our subsidiaries. Consequently, our operating cash flow and our ability to pay our dividends and service our indebtedness depends upon the
operating cash flow of our subsidiaries and the payment of funds by them to us in the form of dividends. At December 31, 2006, we had
outstanding indebtedness and other liabilities of approximately $3.3 billion. Our subsidiaries are separate legal entities that have no obligation to
pay any amounts due on our indebtedness or to make any funds available for that purpose, whether by dividends or otherwise. In addition, each
subsidiary s ability to pay dividends to us depends on any statutory and contractual restrictions that may be applicable to such subsidiary, which
may include requirements to maintain minimum levels of working capital and other assets. Claims of creditors, including
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general creditors, of our subsidiaries on the assets of these subsidiaries will have priority over our claims generally (except to the extent that we
may be a creditor of the subsidiaries and our claims are recognized) and claims by our shareowners.

In addition, as discussed above, OG&E is regulated by state utility commissions in Oklahoma and Arkansas which generally possess broad
powers to ensure that the needs of the utility customers are being met. To the extent that the state commissions attempt to impose restrictions on
the ability of OG&E to pay dividends to us, it could adversely affect our ability to continue to pay dividends.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantially more indebtedness, which may increase the risks created by our indebtedness.

The terms of the indentures governing our debt securities do not fully prohibit us or our subsidiaries from incurring additional indebtedness. If
we or our subsidiaries are in compliance with the financial covenants set forth in our revolving credit agreements and the indentures governing
our debt securities, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness. If we or any of our subsidiaries incur
additional indebtedness, the related risks that we and they now face may intensify.

Certain provisions in our charter documents and rights plan have anti-takeover effects.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as the Oklahoma corporations statute, may have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a change in control of OGE Energy. Such provisions, including those regulating the nomination of directors, limiting
who may call special stockholders meetings and eliminating stockholder action by written consent, together with the possible issuance of
preferred stock of OGE Energy without stockholder approval, may make it more difficult for other persons, without the approval of our board of
directors, to make a tender offer or otherwise acquire substantial amounts of our common stock or to launch other takeover attempts that a
stockholder might consider to be in such stockholder s best interest. Additionally, our rights plan may also delay, defer or prevent a change of
control of OGE Energy. Under the rights plan, each outstanding share of common stock has one half of a right attached that trades with the
common stock. Absent prior action by our board of directors to redeem the rights or amend the rights plan, upon the consummation of certain
acquisition transactions, the rights would entitle the holder thereof (other than the acquiror) to purchase shares of common stock at a discounted
price in a manner designed to result in substantial dilution to the acquiror. These provisions could limit the price that investors might be willing
to pay in the future for shares of our common stock, discourage third party bidders from bidding for us and could significantly impede the ability
of the holders of our common stock to change our management.

Any reductions in our credit ratings could increase our financing costs and the cost of maintaining certain contractual relationships.

We cannot assure that any of our current ratings or our subsidiaries will remain in effect for any given period of time or that a rating will not be
lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances in the future so warrant. Any future downgrade could
increase the cost of short-term borrowings but would not result in any defaults or accelerations as a result of the rating changes. Any downgrade
could lead to higher borrowing costs and, if below investment grade, could require us to issue guarantees on behalf of Enogex to support some of
OERI s marketing operations.

We are subject to commodity price risk.

43



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

We are exposed to commodity price risk in the operations of our Electric Utility segment and our Natural Gas Pipeline segment. To minimize
the risk of commodity prices, we may enter into physical or financial derivative instrument contracts to hedge purchase and sale commitments,
fuel requirements and inventories of natural gas, distillate fuel oil, electricity, coal and emission allowances. However, financial derivative
instrument contracts do not eliminate the risk. Specifically, such risks include commodity price changes and market supply shortages. The
impact of these variables could result in our inability to fulfill contractual obligations and significantly higher energy or fuel costs relative to
corresponding sales contracts. However, exposure to commodity price risk related to OG&E s retail customers is partially mitigated by its fuel
adjustment clause, although we cannot assure that all increases in our commodity prices, including fuel costs, will be completely recovered, or
that any such recovery will be timely.

We are also subject to processing margin volatility from keep-whole processing arrangements. Keep-whole processing arrangements generally
require a processor of natural gas to keep its shippers whole on a Btu basis by replacing the Btu s of the liquids extracted from the well stream
with Btu s of natural gas valued at market prices. Therefore, if natural
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gas prices increase and liquids prices do not increase by a corresponding amount, processing margins are negatively affected. In order to
minimize the negative impact on processing margins, processors generally have the flexibility to not recover ethane or ethane/propane
depending upon market conditions and residue gas pipeline specifications. Exposure to these keep-whole processing arrangements was reduced,
but not eliminated, through new contracts and changes in the SOC that provides for a default processing fee in the event the natural gas liquids
revenue less the associated fuel and shrinkage costs is negative. In addition, the Company actively monitors current and future commodity prices
for opportunities to hedge its processing margin. Enogex uses forward physical sales and financial instruments to capture these spreads. Despite
these activities, we cannot assure that our exposure to keep-whole processing arrangements has been eliminated.

We mark our energy trading portfolio to estimated fair market value on a daily basis (mark-to-market accounting), which causes earnings
variability. Market prices are utilized in determining the value of natural gas and related derivative commodity instruments. For longer-term
positions, which are limited to a maximum of 60 months, and certain short-term positions for which market prices are not available, models
based on forward price curves are utilized. These models incorporate estimates and assumptions as to a variety of factors such as pricing
relationships between various energy commodities and geographic locations. Actual experience can vary significantly from these estimates and
assumptions.

We are subject to credit risk.

We are exposed to credit risks in our generation, retail distribution, pipeline and energy trading operations. Credit risk includes the risk that
counterparties that owe us money or energy will breach their obligations. If the counterparties to these arrangements fail to perform, we may be
forced to enter into alternative arrangements. In that event, our financial results could be adversely affected, and we could incur losses.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2. Properties.

At December 31, 2006, OG&E owns and operates an interconnected electric generation, transmission and distribution system, located in
Oklahoma and western Arkansas, which includes eight generating stations with an aggregate capability of approximately 6,079 MW s. The
following table sets forth information with respect to OG&E s electric generating facilities, all of which are located in Oklahoma. Also, in
January 2007, OG&E s 120 MW Centennial wind farm was fully in service.

2006 Unit Station
Station & Year Fuel Unit Capacity Capability Capability
Unit Installed  Unit Design Type Capability Run Type Factor (A) MW) MW)
Muskogee 3 1956 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 8.6% 156.5
4 1977 Steam-Turbine Coal Base Load 76.3% 510.5
5 1978 Steam-Turbine Coal Base Load 78.9% 521.6
6 1984 Steam-Turbine Coal Base Load 70.5% 515.0 1,703.6
Seminole 1 1971 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 18.4% 506.0
IGT 1971 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking 0.1% B) 17.0
1973 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 23.5% 500.5
3 1975 Steam-Turbine Gas/Oil Base Load 27.4% 519.0 1,542.5
Sooner 1 1979 Steam-Turbine Coal Base Load 69.5% 540.0
2 1980 Steam-Turbine Coal Base Load 69.9% 512.0 1,052.0
Horseshoe 6 1958 Steam-Turbine Gas/Oil Base Load 16.5% 171.7
Lake 7 1963 Combined Cycle Gas/Oil Base Load 10.3% 234.0
8 1969 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 9.5% 387.0
9 2000 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking 5.9% B) 455
10 2000 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking 5.3% (B) 455 883.7
McClain (C) 1 2001 Combined Cycle Gas Base Load 83.2% 363.2 363.2
Mustang 1 1950 Steam-Turbine Gas Peaking 1.1% B) 54.0
2 1951 Steam-Turbine Gas Peaking 0.7% B) 430
3 1955 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 8.9% 117.5
4 1959 Steam-Turbine Gas Base Load 21.0% 241.0
5SA 1971 Combustion-Turbine Gas/Jet Fuel Peaking 1.0% B) 340
5B 1971 Combustion-Turbine Gas/Jet Fuel Peaking 1.1% B) 34.0 523.5
Woodward 1 1963 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking 0.2% B) 102 10.2
Enid 1 1965 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking - D) --
2 1965 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking - Oy -
3 1965 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking - ») -
4 1965 Combustion-Turbine Gas Peaking - ») - ---
Total Generating Capability (all stations) 6,078.7

(A) 2006 Capacity Factor = 2006 Net Actual Generation / (2006 Net Maximum Capacity (Nameplate Rating in MW s) x Period Hours
(8,760 Hours)).

(B) Peaking units, which are used when additional capacity is required, are also necessary to meet the SPP reserve margins.

(C) Represents OG&E s 77 percent ownership interest in the McClain Plant.

(D) These units are currently inactive.

At December 31, 2006, OG&E s transmission system included: (i) 28 substations with a total capacity of approximately 7.7 million kilo
Volt-Amps ( kVA ) and approximately 4,026 structure miles of lines in Oklahoma; and (ii) two substations with a total capacity of approximately
1.9 million kVA and approximately 252 structure miles of lines in Arkansas. OG&E s distribution system included: (i) 347 substations with a
total capacity of approximately 10.4 million kVA, 23,486 structure miles of overhead lines, 794 miles of underground conduit and 9,459 miles

of underground conductors in Oklahoma; and (ii) 36 substations with a total capacity of approximately 1.59 million kVA, 2,082 structure miles
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of overhead lines, 73 miles of underground conduit and 619 miles of underground conductors in Arkansas.

At December 31, 2006, Enogex and its subsidiaries owned: (i) approximately 7,757 miles of intrastate natural gas gathering and transportation
pipelines in Oklahoma and Texas; (ii) two natural gas storage fields in Oklahoma operating at a
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working gas level of approximately 23 Bcf with an approximate withdrawal capability of 650 MMcfd and similar injection capability; and (iii)
six operating natural gas processing plants with a total inlet capacity of 723 MMcfd, all located in Oklahoma. The following table sets forth
information with respect to Enogex s natural gas processing plants:

2006 Inlet 2006 Inlet
Processing Year Fuel Volumes Capacity
Plant Installed Type of Plant Capability (MMcfd) (MMcftd)
Calumet 1969 Lean Oil Gas 111 250
Canute 1996 Cryogenic Electric 42 60
Cox City 1994 Cryogenic Gas/Electric 174 180
Harrah 1994 Cryogenic Refrigeration Gas/Electric 26 38
Thomas 1981 Cryogenic Gas 93 135
Wetumka 1983 Cryogenic Gas 37 60

483 723

During the three years ended December 31, 2006, the Company s gross property, plant and equipment (excluding construction work in progress)
additions were approximately $1,090.2 million and gross retirements were approximately $291.1 million. These additions were provided by
internally generated funds from operating cash flows, short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank borrowings and commercial paper)
and permanent financings. The additions during this three-year period amounted to approximately 17.3 percent of total property, plant and
equipment at December 31, 2006.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In the normal course of business, the Company is confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent liability. These generally relate
to lawsuits, claims made by third parties, environmental actions or the action of various regulatory agencies and income tax related items.
Management consults with legal counsel and other appropriate experts to assess the claim. If, in management s opinion, the Company has
incurred a probable loss as set forth by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, an estimate is made of the loss and the
appropriate accounting entries are reflected in the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements. Except as set forth below and in Notes 17 and
18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, management, after consultation with legal counsel, does not currently anticipate that liabilities
arising out of these pending or threatened lawsuits, claims and contingencies will have a material adverse effect on the Company s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

1. United States of America ex rel., Jack J. Grynberg v. Enogex Inc., Enogex Services Corporation and OG&E. (United States District
Court for the Western District of Oklahoma, Case No. CIV-97-1010-L.) United States of America ex rel., Jack J. Grynberg v. Transok Inc. et al.
(United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana, Case No. 97-2089; United States District Court for the Western District of
Oklahoma, Case No. 97-1009M.). On June 15, 1999, the Company was served with Plaintiff s complaint, which is a qui tam action under the
False Claims Act. Plaintiff Jack J. Grynberg, as individual relator on behalf of the United States Government, alleges: (i) each of the named
defendants have improperly or intentionally mismeasured gas (both volume and Btu content) purchased from federal and Indian lands which
have resulted in the under-reporting and underpayment of gas royalties owed to the Federal Government; (ii) certain provisions generally found
in gas purchase contracts are improper; (iii) transactions by affiliated companies are not arms-length; (iv) excess processing cost deduction; and
(v) failure to account for production separated out as a result of gas processing. Grynberg seeks the following damages: (a) additional royalties
which he claims should have been paid to the Federal Government, some percentage of which Grynberg, as relator, may be entitled to recover;
(b) treble damages; (c) civil penalties; (d) an order requiring defendants to measure the way Grynberg contends is the better way to do so; and
(e) interest, costs and attorneys fees.
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In qui tam actions, the United States Government can intervene and take over such actions from the relator. The Department of Justice, on behalf
of the United States Government, decided not to intervene in this action.

Plaintiff filed over 70 other cases naming over 300 other defendants in various Federal Courts across the country containing nearly identical
allegations. The Multidistrict Litigation Panel entered its order in late 1999 transferring and consolidating for pretrial purposes approximately 76
other similar actions filed in nine other Federal Courts. The consolidated cases are now before the United States District Court for the District of
Wyoming.
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In October 2002, the Court granted the Department of Justice s motion to dismiss certain of Plaintiff s claims and issued an order dismissing
Plaintiff s valuation claims against all defendants. Various procedural motions have been filed. A hearing on the defendants motions to dismiss
for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, including public disclosure, original source and voluntary disclosure requirements was held in 2005 and
the special master ruled that OG&E and all Enogex parties named in these proceedings should be dismissed. This ruling was appealed to the
District Court of Wyoming.

On October 20, 2006, the District Court of Wyoming ruled on Grynberg s appeal, following and confirming the recommendation of the special
master dismissing all claims against Enogex Inc., Enogex Services Corp., Transok, Inc. and OG&E, for lack of subject matter jurisdiction.
Judgment was entered on November 17, 2006 and Grynberg filed his notice of appeal with the District Court of Wyoming. The defendants filed
motions for attorneys fees regarding issues of liability and Rule 11 motions on January 8, 2007. The defendants also filed for other legal costs on
December 18, 2006. A hearing on these motions is currently scheduled for April 24, 2007. Grynberg has also filed appeals with the Tenth

Circuit Court of Appeals. The Company intends to vigorously defend this action. At this time, the Company is unable to provide an evaluation of
the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and an estimate of the amount or range of potential loss to the Company.

2. Will Price (Price I)  On September 24, 1999, various subsidiaries of the Company were served with a class action petition filed in
United States District Court, State of Kansas by Quinque Operating Company and other named plaintiffs, alleging mismeasurement of natural
gas on non-federal lands. On April 10, 2003 the Court entered an order denying class certification. On May 12, 2003, Plaintiffs (now Will Price,
Stixon Petroleum, Inc., Thomas F. Boles and the Cooper Clark Foundation, on behalf of themselves and other royalty interest owners) filed a
motion seeking to file an amended petition and the court granted the motion on July 28, 2003. In this amended petition, OG&E and Enogex Inc.
were omitted from the case. Two subsidiaries of Enogex remain as defendants. The Plaintiffs amended petition alleges that approximately 60
defendants, including two Enogex subsidiaries, have improperly measured natural gas. The amended petition reduces the claims to: (1)
mismeasurement of volume only; (2) conspiracy, unjust enrichment and accounting; (3) a putative Plaintiffs class of only royalty owners; and
(4) gas measured in three specific states. A hearing on class certification issues was held April 1, 2005. The Company intends to vigorously
defend this action. At this time, the Company is unable to provide an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and an estimate of
the amount or range of potential loss to the Company.

3. Will Price (Price 1I)  On May 12, 2003, the Plaintiffs (same as those in Price I above) filed a new class action petition (Price II) in the
District Court of Stevens County, Kansas, relating to wrongful Btu analysis against natural gas pipeline owners and operators, naming the same
defendants as in the amended petition of the Price I case. Two Enogex subsidiaries were served on August 4, 2003. The Plaintiffs seek to
represent a class of only royalty owners either from whom the defendants had purchased natural gas or measured natural gas since January 1,
1974 to the present. The class action petition alleges improper analysis of gas heating content. In all other respects, the Price II petition appears
to be the same as the amended petition in Price I. A hearing on class certification issues was held April 1, 2005. The Company intends to
vigorously defend this action. At this time, the Company is unable to provide an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and an
estimate of the amount or range of potential loss to the Company.

4. A Notice of Enforcement Action ( NOE ) by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission (now known as the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality ( TCEQ )) was issued to Products, a subsidiary of Enogex, by letter dated July 26, 2002. The NOE relates
to the operation of a sulfur recovery unit owned and operated by Belvan Corp., Belvan Limited Partnership and Todd Ranch Limited Partnership

( Belvan ) at its Crockett County, Texas natural gas processing facility. Products sold its interest in Belvan in March 2002. By agreed order dated
October 19, 2006, the TCEQ agreed to a fine of less than $0.1 million. Pursuant to the Agreement of Sale and Purchase with the purchaser,
Products retained some liability for amounts that Belvan pays to the TCEQ relating to this NOE not to exceed approximately $0.1 million. This
amount is fully reserved on Products books.

5. On July 22, 2005, Enogex along with certain other unaffiliated co-defendants was served with a purported class action which had been
filed on February 7, 2005 by Farris Buser and other named plaintiffs in the District Court of Canadian County, Oklahoma. The plaintiffs own
royalty interests in certain oil and gas producing properties and allege they have been under-compensated by the named defendants, including
the Enogex companies, relating to the sale of liquid hydrocarbons recovered during the transportation of natural gas from the plaintiffs wells.
The plaintiffs assert breach of contract, implied covenants, obligation, fiduciary duty, unjust enrichment, conspiracy and fraud causes of action
and claim actual damages in excess of $10,000, plus attorneys fees and costs, and punitive damages in excess of $10,000. The Enogex
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companies filed a motion to dismiss which was granted on November 18, 2005, subject to the plaintiffs right to conduct discovery and the
possible re-filing of their allegations in the petition against Enogex companies. On September 19, 2005, the co-defendants, BP America, Inc. and
BP America Production Co. (collectively, BP ), filed a cross claim against Enogex
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Products Corporation ( Products ) seeking indemnification and/or contribution from Products based upon the 1997 sale of a third party interest in
one of Products natural gas processing plants. On May 17, 2006, the plaintiffs filed an amended petition against the Enogex companies. The
Enogex companies filed a motion to dismiss the amended petition on August 2, 2006. The hearing on the dismissal motion was held on

November 20, 2006 and the court denied the Enogex companies motion. The Enogex companies filed an answer to the amended petition and

BP s cross claim on January 16, 2007. Based on its investigation to date, the Company believes these claims and cross claims in this lawsuit are
without merit and intends to continue vigorously defending this case.

6. On June 19, 2006, two OG&E customers brought a putative class action, on behalf of all similarly situated customers, in the District
Court of Creek County, Oklahoma, challenging certain charges on OG&E s electric bills. The plaintiffs claim that OG&E improperly charged
sales tax based on franchise fee charges paid by its customers. The plaintiffs also challenge certain franchise fee charges, contending that such
fees are more than is allowed under Oklahoma law. OG&E s motion for summary judgment was denied by the trial judge. OG&E has filed a writ
of prohibition at the Oklahoma Supreme Court asking the court to direct the trial court to dismiss the class action suit. At the present time,

OG&E believes that this case is without merit and intends to continue vigorously defending this case.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The following persons were Executive Officers of the Registrant as of February 16, 2007:

Name Age Title

Steven E. Moore 60 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Peter B. Delaney 53 President and Chief Operating Officer

James R. Hatfield 49 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Danny P. Harris 51 Senior Vice President - OGE Energy Corp. and President and

Chief Operating Officer - Enogex Inc.

Carla D. Brockman 47 Vice President - Administration / Corporate Secretary
Steven R. Gerdes 50 Vice President - Utility Operations - OG&E

Gary D. Huneryager 56 Vice President - Internal Audits

Jesse B. Langston 44 Vice President - Utility Commercial Operations - OG&E
Cary W. Martin 54 Vice President - Human Resources

Howard W. Motley 58 Vice President - Regulatory Affairs - OG&E

Reid Nuttall 49 Vice President - Enterprise Information and Performance
Melvin H. Perkins, Jr. 58 Vice President - Transmission - OG&E

Paul L. Renfrow 50 Vice President - Public Affairs

Deborah S. Fleming 51 Treasurer; Vice President - Treasurer - OG&E

Scott Forbes 49 Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
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Jerry A. Peace 44 Chief Risk and Compliance Officer

No family relationship exists between any of the Executive Officers of the Registrant. Messrs. Moore, Delaney, Hatfield, Huneryager, Martin,
Nuttall, Renfrow, Forbes and Peace and Ms. Brockman are also officers of OG&E. Each Officer is to hold office until the Board of Directors
meeting following the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders, currently scheduled for May 17, 2007.
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The business experience of each of the Executive Officers of the Registrant for the past five years is as follows:

Name Business Experience
Steven E. Moore 2007 Present: Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
2002  2007: Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
Peter B. Delaney 2007 Present: President and Chief Operating Officer
2004 2007: Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
2002 2004: Executive Vice President, Finance and Strategic Planning
OGE Energy Corp. and Chief Executive Officer Enogex Inc.
2002: Principal, PD Energy Advisors (consulting firm)
James R. Hatfield 2002 Present: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Danny P. Harris 2005 Present: Senior Vice President OGE Energy Corp. and President and
Chief Operating Officer Enogex Inc.
2002 2005: Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Enogex Inc.
Carla D. Brockman 2005 Present: Vice President  Administration / Corporate Secretary
2002  2005: Corporate Secretary
2002: Assistant Corporate Secretary
2002: Client Manager  Strategic Planning
Steven R. Gerdes 2003 Present: Vice President  Ultility Operations - OG&E
2002 2003: Vice President ~ Shared Services
Gary D. Huneryager 2005 Present: Vice President Internal Audits
2002  2005: Internal Audit Officer
2002: Assistant Internal Audit Officer
Jesse B. Langston 2006 Present: Vice President  Utility Commercial Operations - OG&E
2005 2006: Director  Utility Commercial Operations - OG&E
2004  2005: Director Corporate Planning - OG&E
2002 2003: Manager Corporate Planning - OG&E
Cary W. Martin 2006 Present: Vice President Human Resources
2005 2006: Vice President  Global Human Resources SPX Corporation
2004 2005: Vice President Human Resources, Technical and Industrial Systems
SPX Corporation
2002 2004: Vice President Human Resources, Communication and Technology

Systems SPX Corporation (global industrial ~manufacturer)

Howard W. Motley 2006 Present: Vice President Regulatory Affairs - OG&E
2004 2006: Director Regulatory Affairs and Strategy - OG&E
2003  2004: Director Regulatory Strategies and Utility Resources - OG&E
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2002  2003:
2002:
Reid Nuttall 2006 Present:
2005 2006:
2002  2005:
Melvin H. Perkins, Jr. 2004 Present:
2002 2003:
2002:

28

Manager Regulatory Strategies and Utility Resources - OG&E

Manager, Rate Strategies - OG&E

Vice President  Enterprise Information and Performance

Vice President  Enterprise Architecture National Oilwell
Varco (oil and gas equipment company)

Chief Information Officer, Vice President Information
Technology Varco International (oil and gas equipment
company)

Vice President Transmission - OG&E
Director Transmission Policy - OG&E
Manager, Power Delivery Operations - OG&E
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Name
Paul L. Renfrow

Deborah S. Fleming

Scott Forbes

New Mexico Power Company

Jerry A. Peace
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2005
2002

2002:

2006
2003
2002

2005
2003
2002

2002:

2004
2002

2002:

Present:

2005:

Present:
Present:

2003:

Present:

2005:
2005:

Present:

2004:

Business Experience
Vice President  Public Affairs
Director Public Affairs
Manager, Corporate Communications

Vice President  Treasurer - OG&E
Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer Williams Cos. Inc. (energy company)

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
Chief Financial Officer First Choice Power (retail electric
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Texas

Vice President Chief Accounting and Information Officer
Texas New Mexico Power Company (electric utility)

Chief Risk and Compliance Officer
Chief Risk Officer
Director, Options Trading Enogex Inc.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

The Company s Common Stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol OGE. Quotes may be obtained in
daily newspapers where the common stock is listed as OGE Engy in the New York Stock Exchange listing table. The following table gives
information with respect to price ranges, as reported in The Wall Street Journal as New York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions, and
dividends paid for the periods shown.

Dividend Price
2005 Paid High Low
First Quarter $ 0.3325 $ 2759 $ 25.15
Second Quarter 0.3325 29.22 26.11
Third Quarter 0.3325 30.60 27.74
Fourth Quarter 0.3325 28.60 24.41
Dividend Price
2006 Paid High Low
First Quarter $ 03325 $  29.60 $ 26.34
Second Quarter 0.3325 35.07 28.29
Third Quarter 0.3325 39.15 34.65
Fourth Quarter 0.3325 40.58 36.10
Dividend Price
2007 Paid High Low
First Quarter (through January 31) $ 0.3400 $ 4048 $ 37.52

The number of record holders of the Company s Common Stock at January 31, 2007, was 25,093. The book value of the Company s Common
Stock at January 31, 2007, was $17.63.

Dividend Restrictions

Before the Company can pay any dividends on its common stock, the holders of any of its preferred stock that may be outstanding are entitled to
receive their dividends at the respective rates as may be provided for the shares of their series. Currently, there are no shares of preferred stock

of the Company outstanding. Because the Company is a holding company and conducts all of its operations through its subsidiaries, the

Company s cash flow and ability to pay dividends will be dependent on the earnings and cash flows of its subsidiaries and the distribution or

other payment of those earnings to the Company in the form of dividends, or in the form of repayments of loans or advances to it. The Company
expects to derive principally all of the funds required by it to enable it to pay dividends on its common stock from dividends paid by OG&E, on
OG&E s common stock, and from Enogex, on Enogex s common stock. The Company s ability to receive dividends on OG&E s common stock is
subject to the prior rights of the holders of any OG&E preferred stock that may be outstanding and the covenants of OG&E s certificate of
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incorporation and its debt instruments limiting the ability of OG&E to pay dividends.

Under OG&E s certificate of incorporation, if any shares of its preferred stock are outstanding, dividends (other than dividends payable in
common stock), distributions or acquisitions of OG&E common stock:

may not exceed 50 percent of net income for a prior 12-month period, after deducting dividends on any preferred stock during the
period, if the sum of the capital represented by the common stock, premiums on capital stock
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Currently, no shares of OG&E preferred stock are outstanding and no portion of the retained earnings of OG&E is presently restricted by this

(restricted to premiums on common stock only by SEC orders), and surplus accounts is less than 20 percent of capitalization;

may not exceed 75 percent of net income for such 12-month period, as adjusted if this capitalization ratio is 20 percent or more, but
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less than 25 percent; and

if this capitalization ratio exceeds 25 percent, dividends, distributions or acquisitions may not reduce the ratio to less than 25 percent
except to the extent permitted by the provisions described in the above two bullet points.

provision.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The shares indicated below represent shares of Company common stock purchased on the open market by the trustee for the Company s Stock

Ownership and Retirement Savings Plan and reflect shares purchased with employee contributions as well as the portion attributable to the

Company s matching contributions.

Period
1/1/06
2/1/06
3/1/06
4/1/06
5/1/06
6/1/06
7/1/06
8/1/06
9/1/06
10/1/06
11/1/06
12/1/06

1/31/06
2/28/06
3/31/06
4/30/06
5/31/06
6/30/06
7/31/06
8/31/06
9/30/06

10/31/06
11/30/06
12/31/06
N/A  not applicable

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
38,100
26,900
49,500
26,400
14,566
40,500

18,200

Average Price Paid
per Share

$27.08

$27.42

L —

$29.41

$37.65
$
$35.09
$38.04
$
$39.55

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced Plan
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that
May Yet Be
Purchased Under the
Plan

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

60



31

Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

61



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

Company Stock Performance

The following graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative total returns for the Company s common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the
S&P 500 Electric Utilities Index. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in the Company s common stock and each index was 100 at

December 31, 2001, and that all dividends were reinvested. As of December 31, 2006, the closing price of the Company s common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange was $40.00.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
OGE Energy Corp. 100 82 120 139 147 229
S&P 500 Index 100 78 100 111 117 135
S&P 500 Electric Utilities 100 85 105 133 157 193
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

HISTORICAL DATA

Year ended December 31
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In millions, except per share data)

Operating revenues

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin on revenues

Other operating expenses

Operating income

Interest income

Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other income (loss)

Other expense

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Cumulative effect on prior years of change in accounting
principle, net of tax of $3.4

Net income

Basic earnings (loss) per average common share

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Loss from cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Net income

Diluted earnings (loss) per average common share
Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Loss from cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Net income

Dividends declared per share

(A) The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment,

2006 (A)

$ 4,005.6
2,902.5
1,103.1
670.4
432.7
6.2

4.1
16.3
16.7
96.0
120.5
226.1
36.0

$ 2.45
0.39

$ 284
$ 1.3375

2005 (B)

$ 2.34

$ 1.77

$ 2.32
$ 1.33

2004 (B)

$ 4.862.6
3,937.7
924.9
630.4
294.5

$ 1.73
$ 1.33

2003 (B)

$ 3,757.4
2,841.6
915.8
617.9
297.9
1.3

2.0

7.6
92.3
70.8
130.5
4.7

54
$ 12938

$ 1.60
0.06
(0.07)

$ 1.59

$ 1.59
0.06
(0.07)

$ 1.58
$ 1.33

2002 (B)

$ 29918
2,105.7
886.1
659.5
226.6

1.7

2.9

4.2

105.1
43.2

78.7

12.1

$ 90.8

$ 1.01

$ 1.16

$ 1.01

$ 1.16
$ 1.33

using the modified prospective transi

(B) Amounts for 2005 and 2004 were restated for discontinued operations related to the sale of Enogex assets in May 2006, as discussed in Note 8 of Notes
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HISTORICAL DATA (Continued)

Year ended December 31 2006 (A) 2005 (B) 2004 (B) 2003 (B) 2002 (B)
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In millions, except per share data)

Long-term debt $ 1,3463 $ 13508 $ 14241 $ 14361 $ 15019
Total assets $ 4902.0 $ 48989 $ 48029 $ 45604 $ 42475
CAPITALIZATION RATIOS (C)

Stockholders equity 54.31% 50.46% 46.85% 44.65% 39.25%
Long-term debt 45.69% 49.54% 53.15% 55.35% 60.75%

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO
FIXED CHARGES (D)
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 4.30 3.37 3.23 3.08 2.10

(A) The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospective trans
(B) Amounts for 2005 and 2004 were restated for discontinued operations related to the sale of Enogex assets in May 2006, as discussed in Note 8 of Note
(C) Capitalization ratios = [Stockholders equity / (Stockholders equity + Long-term debt + Long-term debt due within one year)] and [(Long-term debt

(D) For purposes of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, (1) earnings consist of pre-tax income from continuing operations plus fixed charges,

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Introduction

OGE Energy Corp. (collectively, with its subsidiaries, the Company ) is an energy and energy services provider offering physical delivery and
related services for both electricity and natural gas primarily in the south central United States. The Company conducts these activities through
two business segments, the Electric Utility and the Natural Gas Pipeline segments.

The Electric Utility segment generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. Its operations are

conducted through Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company ( OG&E ) and are subject to regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission

( OCC ), the Arkansas Public Service Commission ( APSC ) and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ( FERC ). OG&E was incorporated in
1902 under the laws of the Oklahoma Territory. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma and its franchised service territory includes the

Fort Smith, Arkansas area. OG&E sold its retail gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the gas distribution business.

The operations of the Natural Gas Pipeline segment are conducted through Enogex Inc. and its subsidiaries ( Enogex ) and consist of three related
businesses: (i) the transportation and storage of natural gas, (ii) the gathering and processing of natural gas and (iii) the marketing of natural gas.
The vast majority of Enogex s natural gas gathering, processing, transportation and storage assets are located in the major gas producing basins

of Oklahoma. In May 2006, Enogex Gas Gathering, L.L.C. ( Gathering ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enogex Inc., sold certain gas gathering
assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma, area, which have been reported as discontinued operations in the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements
(see Results of Operations Enogex Discontinued Operations for a further discussion). In December 2006, Enogex entered into a joint venture
arrangement with a third party. The joint venture, Atoka Midstream LLC, intends to construct, own and operate a gathering system and

processing plant and related facilities relating to production in certain areas in southeastern Oklahoma. Enogex holds its 50 percent membership
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interest in Atoka Midstream LLC through Enogex

34

65



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

Atoka LLC ( Enogex Atoka ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enogex Inc. Enogex Atoka will act as the managing member and operator of the
facilities owned by the joint venture.

Executive Overview

The Company s vision is to be a regional utility-focused energy business recognized for operational excellence and strong financial performance.
The Company intends to execute its vision by focusing on its regulated electric utility business and unregulated midstream gas business. As
explained below, the Company intends to maintain the majority of its assets in the regulated utility business complemented by its natural gas
pipeline business. The Company s long-term financial goals include earnings growth of four to five percent on a weather-normalized basis, an
annual total return in the top third of its peer group, dividend growth, maintenance of a dividend payout ratio consistent with its peer group,
maintenance of strong credit ratings and appropriate returns on invested capital. The Company believes it can accomplish these financial goals
by, among other things, pursuing multiple avenues to build its business, maintaining a diversified asset position, continuing to develop a wide
range of skills to succeed with changes in its industries, providing products and services to customers efficiently, managing risks effectively and
maintaining strong regulatory and legislative relationships.

OG&E has been focused on its Customer Savings and Reliability Plan, which provides for increased investment at the utility to improve
reliability and meet load growth, replace infrastructure equipment, replace aging transmission and distribution system and deploy newer
technology that improves operational, financial and environmental performance. As part of this plan, OG&E purchased, for approximately $160
million, a 77 percent interest in the 520 megawatt ( MW ) natural gas-fired combined cycle NRG McClain Station (the McClain Plant ) in July
2004. Capacity payment savings from reduced cogeneration payments and fuel savings from the McClain Plant will be utilized to help mitigate
the price increases associated with this investment. Also, as part of this plan, on February 20, 2006, OG&E entered into an agreement to
engineer, procure and construct a wind generation energy system for a 120 MW wind farm ( Centennial ) in northwestern Oklahoma. The wind
farm was fully in service in January 2007. Through December 31, 2006, OG&E has spent approximately $171.1 million related to the
Centennial wind farm. On January 17, 2007, OG&E sent notice to the OCC to trigger the Centennial wind farm rider for the first billing cycle in
February 2007. OG&E has announced a six-year construction initiative that is estimated to include up to $3.3 billion in major projects designed
to expand capacity, enhance reliability and improve environmental performance. The first part of this initiative involved OG&E entering into an
agreement for the proposed construction of a 950 MW coal unit at OG&E s existing Sooner plant location near Red Rock, Oklahoma. OG&E
expects construction to begin in 2007 and is targeting the completion of the power plant in the 2011/2012 timeframe. OG&E s share of the
projected $1.8 billion construction cost for the plant will be about $759 million. OG&E s six-year construction initiative also includes
strengthening and expanding the electric transmission, distribution and substation systems and replacing aging infrastructure. Other projects
involve installing new emission-control equipment at existing OG&E power plants to help meet OG&E s commitment to meet environmental
requirements. OG&E also expects to incur a significant amount of capital and operating expenditures in the next several years to comply with
current and future environmental laws and regulations. For additional information regarding the above items and other regulatory matters, see
Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Enogex plans to continue to implement improvements to enhance long-term financial performance of its mid-continent assets through more
efficient operations and effective commercial management of the assets. In addition, Enogex is seeking to diversify its gathering, processing and
transportation businesses principally by expanding into other geographic areas that are complementary with the Company s strategic capabilities.
In August 2006, Enogex completed a project to expand its gathering pipeline capacity on the west side of its system in western Oklahoma and

the Texas Panhandle that should enable Enogex to benefit from growth opportunities in that marketplace. Enogex continues to consider
additional opportunities to expand this project. In addition to focusing on growing its earnings, Enogex has reduced its exposure to changes in
commodity prices and minimized its exposure to keep-whole processing arrangements. Enogex s profitability increased significantly from 2003
to 2006 due to the performance improvement plan initiated in 2002 as well as an overall favorable business environment coupled with higher
commodity prices. While the Company believes substantial progress has been achieved, additional opportunities remain. Enogex continues to
review its work processes, evaluate the rationalization of assets, negotiate better terms for both new contracts and replacement contracts, manage
costs and pursue opportunities for organic growth, all in an effort to further improve its cash flow and net income, while at the same time
decreasing the volatility associated with commodity prices. Enogex s marketing business, which concentrates principally on origination of
physical sales of natural gas, has expanded into the Gulf Coast and Rocky Mountain markets. Also, Enogex s marketing business utilizes a
strategy that seeks to minimize the amount of capital employed and to complement better the natural gas pipeline business. The Company
expects to continue to pursue a disciplined approach to continuous improvement and efficiency of operations. Also, during 2005 and 2006,
Enogex sold its interests in Enogex Arkansas Pipeline Corporation ( EAPC ) and Enerven Compression Services, LLC ( Enerven ) and certain gas
gathering assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma area (the Kinta Assets ) and will continue to review its asset portfolio and seek to divest
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assets. Also, on December 15, 2006, Enogex announced that it had entered into a firm capacity lease agreement with Midcontinent Express
Pipeline, LLC for a primary term of 10 years (subject to possible extensions) for certain capacity on the Enogex system. The leased capacity
provided for in this agreement is up to 0.5 billion cubic feet ( Bcf ) per day and is dependent on the shipper volumes that commit to the project.
The Enogex capacity will be part of the proposed Midcontinent Express Pipeline ( MEP ), a joint venture between Kinder Morgan Energy
Partners, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. In addition to the Enogex leased capacity, the proposed MEP project includes a new pipeline
originating near Bennington, Oklahoma and terminating in Butler, Alabama. Pending necessary regulatory approval, the MEP pipeline project is
currently expected to be in service by February 2009. Depending on the final capacity that MEP subscribes to pursuant to the agreement, Enogex
expects its revenues from this firm capacity lease agreement to be between $12 million and $30 million annually. Enogex currently estimates
that its capital expenditures related to this project during the next two to three years could be approximately $100 million. The Enogex lease
agreement with the MEP is subject to certain contingencies including regulatory approval. Prior to such approval, Enogex may incur
expenditures of between approximately $20 million and $40 million with the majority being for certain commitments for materials that can be
sold or used in normal operations in the event the MEP project does not proceed and the amount not recovered or utilized for such expenditures
is not expected to be material. Enogex also is seeking to provide lease capacity to Boardwalk s Gulf Crossings project. Boardwalk Pipeline
Partners, LP, has announced plans to build the Gulf Crossings pipeline, which includes 355 miles of new interstate natural gas pipeline. It
initially is expected to transport gas from the supply areas in Sherman, Texas, Bennington, Oklahoma and Paris, Texas to the Perryville,
Louisiana Hub. Subject to regulatory approvals, the Gulf Crossings project is expected to be in service during the fourth quarter of 2008.

The Company s business strategy is to continue maintaining the diversified asset position of OG&E and Enogex so as to provide competitive
energy products and services to customers primarily in the south central United States. The Company will continue to focus on those products
and services with limited or manageable commodity exposure. In addition to the incremental growth opportunities that Enogex provides, the
Company believes that many of the risk management practices, commercial skills and market information available from Enogex provide value
to all of the Company s businesses.

In December 2006, the Company and OG&E increased their aggregate available borrowing capacity under their revolving credit agreements
from $750.0 million to $1.0 billion, $600 million for the Company and $400 million for OG&E. Each of the credit facilities has a five-year term
with an option to extend the term for two additional one-year periods. Also, each of these credit facilities has an additional option at the end of
the two renewal options to convert the outstanding balance to a one-year term loan. These revolving credit agreements will provide sufficient
liquidity to meet the Company s daily operational needs, capital improvements at OG&E and expansion projects at Enogex.

Overview

Summary of Operating Results

2006 compared to 2005. The Company reported net income of approximately $262.1 million, or $2.84 per diluted share, in 2006 as compared
to approximately $211.0 million, or $2.32 per diluted share, in 2005. The increase in net income during 2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily
due to:

OG&E reported net income of approximately $149.3 million, or $1.62 per diluted share of the Company s common stock, in
2006 as compared to approximately $129.7 million, or $1.43 per diluted share, in 2005;

Enogex s operations, including discontinued operations, reported net income of approximately $113.5 million, or $1.23 per
diluted share of the Company s common stock (of which $0.39 per diluted share was attributable to discontinued operations),
in 2006 as compared to approximately $89.8 million, or $0.99 per diluted share (of which $0.55 per diluted share was
attributable to discontinued operations) in 2005; and

a net loss at the holding company of approximately $0.7 million, or $0.01 per diluted share, in 2006 as compared to a net

loss of approximately $8.5 million, or $0.10 per diluted share, in 2005 primarily due to higher income tax benefits in 2006

as a result of recording the Employee Stock Ownership Plan ( ESOP ) dividend deduction at the holding company in 2006
which was previously recorded at OG&E in 2005.
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2005 compared to 2004. The Company reported net income of approximately $211.0 million, or $2.32 per diluted share, in 2005 as compared
to approximately $153.5 million, or $1.73 per diluted share, in 2004. The increase in net income during 2005 as compared to 2004 was primarily
due to:

OG&E reported net income of approximately $129.7 million, or $1.43 per diluted share of the Company s common stock, in
2005 as compared to approximately $107.6 million, or $1.22 per diluted share, in 2004;
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Enogex s operations, including discontinued operations, reported net income of approximately $89.8 million, or $0.99 per
diluted share of the Company s common stock (of which $0.55 per diluted share was attributable to discontinued operations),
in 2005 as compared to approximately $60.7 million, or $0.69 per diluted share (of which $0.13 per diluted share was
attributable to discontinued operations), in 2004; and

a net loss at the holding company of approximately $8.5 million, or $0.10 per diluted share, in 2005 as compared to a net

loss of approximately $14.8 million, or $0.18 per diluted share, in 2004 primarily due to lower interest expense of
approximately $9.2 million in 2005 partially offset by a lower income tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million in 2005 due
to a lower taxable loss in 2005.

Recent Developments

OG&E Wind Power Filing

As discussed above, in January 2007, the Centennial wind farm in northwestern Oklahoma was fully in service. Through December 31, 2006,
OG&E has spent approximately $171.1 million related to the Centennial wind farm. The OCC previously had approved a settlement agreement
approving the Centennial wind power contract and a recovery rider for up to $205 million in construction costs and allowance for funds used
during construction. The settlement also indicated that OG&E shall file for a general rate review during 2009 that will permit the OCC to issue
an order no later than December 31, 2009 placing the Centennial wind farm in OG&E s rate base. On January 17, 2007, OG&E sent notice to the
OCC to trigger the Centennial wind farm rider for the first billing cycle in February 2007. The recovery rider is designed to recover
approximately $22.6 million in the first year of operations, which amount will decline over the life of the facility. Because the wind farm rider
was implemented in February 2007, OG&E expects to recover approximately $20.7 million under the rider during the remaining 11 months of
2007. OG&E expects the recovery rider to remain in effect through late 2009. As explained below, the recent rate order from the APSC allows
for the recovery of the portion of the Centennial wind farm allocable to OG&E s customers in Arkansas.

OG&E Arkansas Rate Case Filing

On July 28, 2006, OG&E filed with the APSC an application for an annual rate increase of approximately $13.5 million to recover, among other
things, its investment in, and the operating expenses of, the McClain Plant, the Centennial wind power project and the costs of electric system
expansion and upgrades based on a return on equity of 11.75 percent. On November 29, 2006, OG&E reached a settlement with the other parties
in this case for an annual rate increase of approximately $5.4 million. In the settlement agreement, the parties also agreed that OG&E would be
allowed to recover the full Arkansas portion of the Centennial wind farm. On January 5, 2007, the APSC approved the settlement and issued a
rate order that provides for a $5.4 million annual increase in OG&E s electric rates and a 10.0 percent return on equity. The new Arkansas rates
became effective in February 2007.

Proposed Construction of Power Plant

As discussed above, OG&E has entered into a contract with American Electric Power s subsidiary, Public Service Company of Oklahoma ( PSO ),
and the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority ( OMPA ) to build a new 950 MW coal unit at OG&E s existing Sooner plant location near Red
Rock, Oklahoma. The estimated $1.8 billion project is the result of PSO s December 2005 request for proposals in which it sought bids for up to
600 MW s of new base load generation to be available to PSO. The unit, to be called Red Rock, is expected to be one of the cleanest of its size
using coal from the Powder River Basin, which is located near Gillette, Wyoming. OG&E will operate the facility and expects to spend
approximately $759 million in construction costs related to its 42 percent ownership percentage in the project and approximately $30 million in
transmission costs for the project. PSO will own 50 percent and the OMPA will own eight percent. On December 1, 2006, OG&E submitted an
application to the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality ( ODEQ ) for an air permit for the Red Rock plant. OG&E is seeking to have
the air permit approved by the ODEQ by August 1, 2007. OG&E expects construction to begin in 2007 and is targeting the completion of the

power plant in the 2011/2012 timeframe. OG&E filed an application with the OCC on January 17, 2007 asking the OCC to find that its portion
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of the construction costs are prudent and that a recovery mechanism should be established to recover OG&E s overall cost of capital on the
investment during the construction period. The OCC rules provide that the OCC has up to 240 days to issue an order determining OG&E s
pre-approval request, however OG&E s application requested that the OCC issue an order by July 20, 2007. The project is contingent upon
numerous factors, including the successful completion of contract negotiations and the necessary regulatory and environmental approvals. Under
the construction, ownership and operating agreement between OG&E, PSO and the OMPA, the parties could incur up to $60 million (of which
approximately $25 million would be borne by OG&E) prior to the receipt of acceptable regulatory approvals and permits. If such approvals and
permits were
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not obtained and the Red Rock project was abandoned, the Company can provide no assurance that these expenditures incurred by OG&E would
be recoverable in future rates.

Enogex Expansion Projects

In August 2006, Enogex completed a project to expand its gathering pipeline capacity on the west side of its system in western Oklahoma and
the Texas Panhandle that should enable Enogex to benefit from growth opportunities in that marketplace. Enogex continues to consider
additional opportunities to expand this project.

Termination of Continental Connector Project

Enogex had previously announced that it had entered into a letter of intent with El Paso Corporation ( El Paso ) relating to El Paso s Continental
Connector Project. The letter of intent contemplated arrangements by which El Paso or an affiliate would execute a lease of capacity on the
Enogex pipeline system and the leased Enogex pipeline capacity would become part of the Continental Connector Project. The letter of intent
expired on April 28, 2006. In early October 2006, El Paso determined not to proceed with its proposed Continental Connector project. Enogex

did not incur any material expenditures relating to this proposed project.

Oklahoma City Dayton Tire Plant Closing

In July 2006, the Boards of Directors of Bridgestone Firestone North American Tire and its parent company, Bridgestone Americas Holding
Inc., approved the closing of the Oklahoma City Dayton tire plant, which closed in December 2006. The closing of this plant is expected to
reduce net income by approximately $1.1 million, or $0.01 per diluted share, in 2007.

2007 Outlook

The Company previously disclosed in its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September, 2006 that its 2007 earnings guidance was $213 million to
$231 million of income from continuing operations, or $2.30 to $2.50 per diluted share. The Company has reaffirmed the 2007 earnings
guidance, which excludes any gains on asset sales and assumes approximately 92.5 million average diluted shares outstanding and an effective
tax rate of 32.6 percent. The Company is currently projecting earnings toward the lower half of the guidance due to refinements of its prior
estimates based on its 2006 audited financial results and numerous other factors. At the utility, these factors include reduced tariffs for
fuel-related costs, the slight delay in implementing the Centennial wind farm rider and increased depreciation expense, offset in part by higher
anticipated margin growth. At Enogex, a key factor was the recognition of mark-to-market gains in the marketing business in the fourth quarter
of 2006 that were previously anticipated for the first quarter of 2007. Projected cash flow from operations of between $371 million and $389
million for 2007 has been lowered to $336 million to $354 million primarily due to the collection by OG&E during 2006 under approved tariffs
of approximately $26.7 million of additional fuel-related revenues that was not intended by the OCC rate order in December 2005. The $26.7
million, plus interest, will be credited to OG&E s Oklahoma customers in 2007 and 2008 through OG&E s automatic fuel adjustment clause and
reduced tariffs were filed, effective December 31, 2006, that will cease the continued recovery of these additional fuel-related revenues. See
Financial Condition below.

Earnings guidance per
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2006 10-K
(In millions, except per share data) Dollars Diluted EPS
OG&E $154 - $162 $1.67 - $1.75
Enogex $63 - $72 $0.68 - $0.78
Holding Company ($3) - ($4) ($0.03) - ($0.05)
Total $213 - $231 $2.30 - $2.50

Key assumptions for 2007 are:

As shown above, OG&E s earnings guidance has been reaffirmed at $154 million to $162 million. Key factors and assumptions underlying this
guidance include:

OG&E

38

Normal weather patterns are experienced for the year;
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Gross margin on revenues ( gross margin ) on weather-adjusted, retail electric sales increases approximately two percent;
Centennial wind farm rider increase of approximately $21 million;

Arkansas rate increase of approximately $5 million which began in February 2007;

Operating expenses increase approximately $28 million primarily due to higher employee costs and higher depreciation;
Interest costs increase approximately $7 million primarily due to higher levels of long-term and short-term debt;

Tax credit of approximately $11 million associated with the Centennial wind farm; and

Capital expenditures for investment in OG&E s generation, transmission and distribution system are approximately $427 million in
2007, which includes capital expenditures of up to $94 million associated with OG&E s Red Rock generating plant.

OG&E has significant seasonality in its earnings. OG&E typically shows minimal earnings or slight losses in the first and fourth quarters with a
majority of earnings in the third quarter due to the seasonal nature of air conditioning demand.

Enogex

As shown above, Enogex s earnings guidance remains unchanged from $63 million to $72 million, or $0.68 to $0.78 per diluted share. Key
factors and assumptions underlying this guidance include:

Total Enogex anticipated gross margin of approximately $312 million to $328 million as compared to approximately $307 million in
2006. The 2007 guidance includes:
Transportation and storage gross margin contribution of approximately $136 million. As compared to 2006, margins are
projected to increase approximately $11 million primarily in the storage business as a result of new contracts and higher
storage fees.

Gathering and processing gross margin contribution of approximately $168 million to $183 million as compared to
approximately $168 million in 2006. Key factors affecting the gathering and processing gross margin are:

Gross margin decrease in Enogex s gathering and processing business in 2007 primarily due to lower commodity
spreads offset by higher contractual gains as a result of higher natural gas prices;

Increase of 13 percent in volumes in Enogex s gathering business as compared to 2006 primarily due to new
business;

Forecasted natural gas prices of $6.33 to $6.62 per Million British thermal unit ( MMBtu ) in 2007 as compared to
$6.04 in 2006;

Forecasted commodity spreads of $2.69 to $3.21 per MMBtu in 2007 as compared to $3.99 per MMBtu assumed
in 2006;

Forecasted average natural gas liquids prices of $0.93 to $1.02 per gallon in 2007 as compared to $1.10 per gallon
in 2006; and

Enogex s gathering and processing business is projecting approximately 318 new well connects in 2007 including
wells behind central receipt points.

Marketing gross margin contribution of approximately $9 million in 2007 as compared to approximately $14 million in
2006 primarily due to the recognition of mark-to-market hedging gains in 2006.

Operating expenses increase approximately $16 million primarily due to increased employee costs associated with new business
growth and higher depreciation costs;
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Other income decreases approximately $16 million from 2006 as a result of lower interest income due to the redeployment of cash
from assets sales and the result of a legal settlement received in 2006;
Interest expense remains relatively flat in 2007; and

Capital expenditures for investment in Enogex s pipeline system are approximately $125 million in 2007.
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Enogex expects to continue to evaluate the strategic fit and financial performance of each of its assets in an effort to ensure a proper economic
allocation of resources. The magnitude and timing of any potential impairment or gain on the disposition of any assets have not been included in
the 2007 earnings guidance.

Holding Company

As shown above, the projected loss at the holding company is $3 million to $4 million, or $0.03 to $0.05 per diluted share, primarily due to
projected interest costs.

Dividend Policy

The Company s dividend policy is reviewed by the Board of Directors at least annually and is based on numerous factors, including

management s estimation of the long-term earnings power of its businesses. The target payout ratio for the Company is to pay out as dividends no
more than 65 percent of its normalized earnings on an annual basis. The target payout ratio has been determined after consideration of numerous
factors, including the largely retail composition of our shareholder base, our financial position, our growth targets, the composition of our assets
and investment opportunities. At the Company s November 2006 Board meeting, management, after considering estimates of future earnings and
numerous other factors, recommended to the Board of Directors an increase in the current quarterly dividend rate to $0.34 per share from

$0.3325 per share payable in the first quarter of 2007.

Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis presents factors that affected the Company s consolidated results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the Company s consolidated financial position at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The following
information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Known trends and contingencies of a
material nature are discussed to the extent considered relevant.

Year ended December 31 (In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004
Operating income $ 4327 $ 3224 $ 2945
Net income $ 2621 $ 2110 $ 1535
Basic average common shares outstanding 91.0 90.3 88.0
Diluted average common shares outstanding 92.1 90.8 88.5
Basic earnings per average common share $ 2.88 $ 2.34 $ 1.74
Diluted earnings per average common share $ 2.84 $ 2.32 $ 1.73
Dividends declared per share $ 1.3375 $ 1.33 $ 1.33

In reviewing its consolidated operating results, the Company believes that it is appropriate to focus on operating income as reported in its
Consolidated Statements of Income as operating income indicates the ongoing profitability of the Company excluding unusual or infrequent
items, the cost of capital and income taxes.

Operating Income (Loss) by Business Segment
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Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006
OG&E (Electric Utility) $ 2939
Enogex (Natural Gas Pipeline) 138.8
Other Operations (A) -
Consolidated operating income $ 432.7

2005

$ 2322
89.6
0.6

$ 3224

(A) Other Operations primarily includes unallocated corporate expenses and consolidating eliminations.

The following operating income analysis by business segment includes intercompany transactions that are eliminated in the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

40

2004

$ 192.3
103.3

(1.1)

$ 2945
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OG&E

Year ended December 31 (Dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues $ 1,745.7 $ 1,720.7 $ 1,578.1
Cost of goods sold 950.0 994.2 914.2
Gross margin on revenues 795.7 726.5 663.9
Other operation and maintenance 316.5 309.2 301.9
Depreciation 132.2 134.4 122.7
Taxes other than income 53.1 50.7 47.0
Operating income 293.9 232.2 192.3
Interest income 1.9 2.6 2.7
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4.1 - 0.9
Other income (loss) 4.0 (2.8) 4.5
Other expense 9.7 2.5 2.3
Interest expense 60.1 472 37.5
Income tax expense 84.8 52.6 53.0
Net income $ 149.3 $ 129.7 $ 107.6
Operating revenues by classification

Residential $  698.8 $ 663.6 $ 611.4
Commercial 428.3 418.9 389.9
Industrial 345.0 355.6 326.7
Public authorities 171.0 173.1 158.5
Sales for resale 65.4 67.7 57.0
Provision for rate refund 0.9) 2.0) (6.9)
System sales revenues 1,707.6 1,676.9 1,536.6
Off-system sales revenues 2.7 4.9 0.8
Other 354 38.9 40.7
Total operating revenues $ 1,745.7 $ 1,720.7 $ 1,578.1
MWH (A) sales by classification (in millions)

Residential 8.7 8.5 7.9
Commercial 6.2 6.0 5.7
Industrial 7.1 7.2 7.0
Public authorities 2.9 2.8 2.7
Sales for resale 1.5 1.5 1.4
System sales 26.4 26.0 24.7
Off-system sales - 0.1 0.1
Total sales 26.4 26.1 24.8
Number of customers 754,840 745,493 735,008
Average cost of energy per KWH (B) - cents

Fuel 3.040 3.011 2.887
Fuel and purchased power 3.398 3.300 3.436
Degree days (C)

Heating

Actual 2,746 3,159 3,114
Normal 3,631 3,631 3,650
Cooling

Actual 2,485 2,163 1,839
Normal 1,911 1,911 1,911

(A) Megawatt-hour.
(B) Kilowatt-hour.

(C) Degree days are calculated as follows: The high and low degrees of a particular day are added together and then averaged. If the calculated average is :
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2006 compared to 2005. OG&E s operating income increased approximately $61.7 million or 26.7 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005
primarily due to higher gross margins partially offset by higher operating expenses.

Gross margin, which is operating revenues less cost of goods sold, was approximately $795.7 million in 2006 as compared to approximately
$726.5 million in 2005, an increase of approximately $69.2 million, or 9.5 percent. The gross margin increased primarily due to:

price variance primarily due to rate increases authorized in the OCC order in December 2005, which increased the gross
margin by approximately $47.6 million;
new customer growth in OG&E s service territory, which increased the gross margin by approximately $10.9 million;

increased peak demand by industrial customers in OG&E s service territory, which increased the gross margin by
approximately $6.7 million; and
warmer weather in OG&E s service territory, which increased the gross margin by approximately $6.2 million.

Cost of goods sold for OG&E consists of fuel used in electric generation and purchased power. Fuel expense was approximately $730.3 million
in 2006 as compared to approximately $795.4 million in 2005, a decrease of approximately $65.1 million or 8.2 percent due to lower natural gas
prices. OG&E s electric generating capability is fairly evenly divided between coal and natural gas and provides for flexibility to use either fuel
to the best economic advantage for OG&E and its customers. In 2006 and 2005, respectively, OG&E s fuel mix was 67 percent coal and 33
percent natural gas and 70 percent coal and 30 percent natural gas. Though OG&E has a higher installed capability of generation from natural
gas units of 57 percent, it has been more economical to generate electricity for our customers with lower priced coal. Purchased power costs
were approximately $219.7 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $198.8 million in 2005, an increase of approximately $20.9 million or
10.5 percent. This increase was primarily due to a power purchase contract that allowed OG&E to make economic purchases during peak
demand summer months.

Other operating and maintenance expenses were approximately $316.5 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $309.2 million in 2005, an
increase of approximately $7.3 million or 2.4 percent. The increase in other operating and maintenance expenses was primarily due to:

higher salaries, wages and other employee benefits of approximately $12.5 million;

higher allocations from the holding company of approximately $3.9 million primarily due to an increase in incentive
compensation;
higher bad debt expense of approximately $3.5 million; and

an additional accrual of approximately $2.2 million for the settlement of a claim.

These increases in other operating and maintenance expenses were partially offset by:

a decrease in outside services of approximately $9.3 million; and

an increase in capitalized work of approximately $6.4 million primarily due to increased labor and transportation expenses
related to more capital projects in 2006.

The other operating and maintenance expense variance includes other operating and maintenance expenses associated with the acquisition of the
McClain Plant, which expenses ceased being recorded as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005.
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Depreciation expense was approximately $132.2 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $134.4 million in 2005, a decrease of
approximately $2.2 million or 1.6 percent. The decrease in depreciation expense was primarily due to:

a decrease in depreciation rates that was implemented January 1, 2006 as approved by the OCC in December 2005; and

a decrease due to the retirement of assets at June 30, 2006 related to a power supply contract with a large industrial customer
that expired June 1, 2006.

These decreases in depreciation expense were partially offset by a full year of depreciation expense in 2006 associated with the acquisition of the
McClain Plant.
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Taxes other than income were approximately $53.1 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $50.7 million in 2005, an increase of
approximately $2.4 million or 4.7 percent, primarily due to increased ad valorem taxes. This variance includes ad valorem taxes associated with
the acquisition of the McClain Plant, which expenses ceased being recorded as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005.

Allowance for equity funds used during construction was approximately $4.1 million in 2006 due to construction costs associated with OG&E s
Centennial wind farm that exceeded the average daily short-term borrowings in 2006. There was no allowance for equity funds used during
construction in 2005.

Other income includes, among other things, contract work performed, non-operating rental income and miscellaneous non-operating income.
Other income was approximately $4.0 million in 2006 as compared to a reduction in other income of approximately $2.8 million in 2005, an
increase in other income of approximately $6.8 million. The increase in other income was primarily due to:

a gain of approximately $3.5 million from the sale of miscellaneous assets that were recorded in 2004 and were reclassified
to a regulatory liability in 2005; and

the benefit associated with the tax gross-up of approximately $4.1 million of allowance for equity funds used during
construction.

Other expense includes, among other things, expenses from losses on the sale and retirement of assets, miscellaneous charitable donations,
expenditures for certain civic, political and related activities and miscellaneous deductions and expenses. Other expense was approximately $9.7
million in 2006 as compared to approximately $2.5 million in 2005, an increase of approximately $7.2 million primarily due to a loss on the
retirement of fixed assets of approximately $6.0 million.

Interest expense was approximately $60.1 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $47.2 million in 2005, an increase of approximately
$12.9 million or 27.3 percent. The increase in interest expense was primarily due to:

increased interest of approximately $7.7 million due to the one-time recognition of interest expense associated with a certain
water storage agreement;

increased interest of approximately $4.8 million on debt associated with the McClain Plant acquisition, which OG&E
ceased recording as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005;

increased interest of approximately $3.0 million due to the termination of an interest rate swap in 2005; and

increased interest of approximately $1.5 million due to increased borrowings from the holding company to cover increased
construction costs.

These increases in interest expense were partially offset by:

a decrease in interest expense due to an increase in the allowance for borrowed funds used during construction of
approximately $2.3 million; and

a decrease in interest expense of approximately $1.9 million related to the Company making a deposit with the Internal
Revenue Service ( IRS ) in August 2006 in anticipation that a portion of prior year deductions will be disallowed, which
enabled OG&E to cease accruing interest in August 2006.

Income tax expense was approximately $84.8 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $52.6 million in 2005, an increase of approximately
$32.2 million or 61.2 percent. The increase in income tax expense was primarily due to:
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higher pre-tax income for OG&E;

the ESOP dividend deduction at the holding company in 2006 which was previously recorded at OG&E in 2005 of
approximately $7.4 million; and
a decrease in state tax credits in 2006 of approximately $3.8 million.

2005 compared to 2004. OG&E s operating income increased approximately $39.9 million or 20.7 percent in 2005 as compared to 2004
primarily attributable to higher gross margins partially offset by higher operating expenses.

Gross margin was approximately $726.5 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $663.9 million in 2004, an increase of approximately
$62.6 million or 9.4 percent. The gross margin increased primarily due to:
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warmer weather in OG&E s service territory, which increased the gross margin by approximately $33.4 million;

price variance due to sales and customer mix and rate increases authorized in the OCC order in December 2005 that are
included in the unbilled revenue calculation at December 31, 2005, which increased the gross margin by approximately
$13.2 million;

new customer growth primarily in the residential and commercial sectors of OG&E s service territory, which increased the
gross margin by approximately $6.6 million; and

increased demand by industrial customers in OG&E s service territory, which increased the gross margin by approximately
$5.8 million.

Fuel expense was approximately $795.4 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $645.1 million in 2004, an increase of approximately
$150.3 million or 23.3 percent. The increase was primarily due to increased generation and a higher average cost of fuel per kwh. OG&E s
electric generating capability is fairly evenly divided between coal and natural gas and provides for flexibility to use either fuel to the best
economic advantage for OG&E and its customers. In 2005 and 2004, OG&E s fuel mix was 70 percent coal and 30 percent natural gas. Though
OG&E has a higher installed capability of generation from natural gas units of 58 percent, it has been more economical to generate electricity for
our customers with lower priced coal. Purchased power costs were approximately $198.8 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $269.1
million in 2004, a decrease of approximately $70.3 million or 26.1 percent. The decrease was primarily due to OG&E s completion of the
acquisition of the McClain Plant in 2004, the termination of a power purchase contract in August 2004 which was replaced with a new contract
in September 2004 and the scheduled decrease in cogeneration capacity payments for another power purchase contract, which became effective
in January 2005.

Other operating and maintenance expenses were approximately $309.2 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $301.9 million in 2004, an
increase of approximately $7.3 million or 2.4 percent. The increase in other operating and maintenance expenses was primarily due to:

higher salaries, wages, pension and other employee expenses of approximately $8.6 million; and

higher materials and supplies expense of approximately $2.0 million.

These increases in other operating and maintenance expenses were partially offset by lower allocations from the holding company of
approximately $6.9 million primarily due to lower miscellaneous corporate expenses. This variance includes other operating and maintenance
expenses associated with the acquisition of the McClain Plant, which ceased being recorded as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005.

Depreciation expense was approximately $134.4 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $122.7 million in 2004, an increase of
approximately $11.7 million or 9.5 percent, primarily due to a higher level of depreciable plant in addition to depreciation expense associated
with the acquisition of the McClain Plant, which ceased being recorded as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005.

Taxes other than income were approximately $50.7 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $47.0 million in 2004, an increase of
approximately $3.7 million or 7.9 percent, primarily due to increased ad valorem taxes. This variance includes ad valorem taxes associated with
the acquisition of the McClain Plant, which ceased being recorded as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005.

There was a reduction in other income of approximately $2.8 million in 2005 as compared to income of approximately $4.5 million in 2004, a
decrease of approximately $7.3 million. The decrease in other income was primarily due to gains recognized in 2004 of approximately $3.5
million from the sale of OG&E s interests in its natural gas producing properties and the sale of land near the Company s principal executive
offices which gains were reversed in 2005 and reclassified to Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
a regulatory liability. Also contributing to the decrease in other income was a gain in 2004 of approximately $0.6 million from the repurchase of
outstanding heat pump loans.
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Interest expense was approximately $47.2 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $37.5 million in 2004, an increase of approximately
$9.7 million or 25.9 percent. The increase in interest expense was primarily due to:

increased interest of approximately $4.3 million due to interest on debt associated with the McClain Plant acquisition, which
OG&E ceased recording as a regulatory asset on July 8, 2005;
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increased interest of approximately $4.2 million due to an increase in variable interest rates associated with the Company s
interest rate swap agreement and variable-rate industrial authority bonds; and

increased interest of approximately $3.3 million for additional interest expense related to income taxes as a result of new
guidelines issued by the IRS related to a change in the method of accounting used to capitalize costs for self-construction for
income tax purposes only.

These increases in interest expense were partially offset by:

a decrease in interest expense of approximately $1.2 million due to lower interest rates on short-term debt used to
temporarily fund the repayment of higher cost matured and called long-term debt; and

a decrease in interest expense of approximately $0.5 million due to an increase in the allowance for borrowed funds used
during construction.

Income tax expense was approximately $52.6 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $53.0 million in 2004, a decrease of approximately
$0.4 million or 0.8 percent. The decrease in income tax expense was primarily due to:

a reduction in tax accruals in 2005 related to Medicare Part D of approximately $2.6 million;
a reduction in excess deferred taxes in 2005 of approximately $2.1 million; and

an increase in Oklahoma state income tax credits of approximately $0.6 million in 2005 as compared to 2004.

These decreases in income tax expense were partially offset by higher pre-tax income for OG&E.

Enogex Continuing Operations

Year ended December 31 (Dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues $ 2,367.8 $ 43324 $ 3,379.9
Cost of goods sold 2,060.4 4,090.4 3,118.2
Gross margin on revenues 307.4 242.0 261.7
Other operation and maintenance 110.0 96.6 93.5
Depreciation 42.3 40.4 41.1
Impairment of assets 0.3 - 7.8

Taxes other than income 16.0 154 16.0
Operating income 138.8 89.6 103.3
Interest income 11.1 2.9 32

Other income 7.7 0.8 4.5

Other expense 0.3 0.3 0.3
Interest expense 31.8 32.6 322
Income tax expense 48.0 204 29.4
Income from continuing operations $ 77.5 $ 40.0 $ 49.1
New well connects (A) 206 223 192
Gathered volumes TBtu/d (B) 0.98 0.92 0.84
Incremental transportation volumes TBtu/d 0.46 0.39 0.39

Total throughput volumes TBtu/d 1.44 1.31 1.23
Natural gas processed TBtu/d 0.54 0.52 0.50
Natural gas liquids sold (keep-whole) million gallons 244 219 185
Natural gas liquids sold (purchased for resale) million gallons 113 71 78
Natural gas liquids sold (percentage of liquids) million gallons 14 15 16

Total natural gas liquids sold million gallons 371 311 279
Average sales price per gallon $ 0901 $ 0847 $ 0720

86



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

(A) Excludes wells behind central receipt points.

(B) Trillion British thermal units per day.

2006 compared to 2005. Enogex s operating revenues and cost of goods sold decreased in 2006 approximately $2.0 billion, or 45.4 percent, and
$2.0 billion, or 49.6 percent, respectively, as compared to 2005 primarily due to a lower level of trading activity due to a shift in strategy in
Enogex s marketing business. Enogex s operating income increased approximately $49.2 million in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to
increased gross margins in each of Enogex s
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businesses largely as a result of higher commodity spreads and business growth in 2006 as compared to 2005. The increases in gross margin
were partially offset by higher operating and maintenance expenses.

Transportation and storage contributed approximately $125.6 million of Enogex s gross margin in 200@s compared to approximately $99.1
million in 2005, an increase of approximately $26.5 million or 26.7 percent. The gross margin increased primarily due to:

better management of gas pipeline imbalances as Enogex reduced its exposure to gas imbalances while taking advantage of
favorable market price movement in 2006 and gas imbalance expense recognized by the gathering business in 2006
(previously carried by the transportation and storage business in 2005), which increased the gross margin by approximately
$11.5 million in 2006;

increased commodity, interruptible and low and high pressure revenues primarily due to higher volumes, which increased
the gross margin by approximately $6.2 million;

a change in Enogex s 2005 accounting estimate of the volume of natural gas in its natural gas storage inventory, which
reduced the 2005 gross margin by approximately $5.7 million;

improved recovery of fuel as the Company transitioned to zonal fuel factors in 2006, which increased the gross margin by
approximately $4.7 million;

storage field hedging gains, which increased the gross margin by approximately $3.5 million; and

increased natural gas sales due to higher realized natural gas prices in 2006, which increased the gross margin by
approximately $3.5 million.

These increases in the transportation and storage gross margin were partially offset by a lower of cost or market adjustment related to natural gas
inventory used to operate the pipeline during 2006, which reduced the 2006 gross margin by approximately $8.3 million as there was no
comparable item during 2005.

Gathering and processing contributed approximately $167.6 million of Enogex s gross margin in 2006 as compared to approximately $140.2
million in 2005, an increase of approximately $27.4 million or 19.5 percent. The gathering and processing gross margin increased primarily due
to:

increased net keep-whole margins primarily due to higher commodity spreads in 2006 as compared to 2005 and increased
volumes due to business growth, which increased the gross margin by approximately $33.5 million;

contractual fuel gains primarily due to higher natural gas prices in 2006, which increased the gross margin by approximately
$4.9 million; and

a reduction in the Company s over recovered position as the Company transitioned to zonal fuel rates in 2006, which
increased the gross margin by approximately $2.5 million.

These increases in the gathering and processing gross margin were partially offset by the recognition of imbalance expense in 2006 (previously
carried by the transportation and storage business in 2005), which reduced the gross margin by approximately $13.8 million in 2006.

Marketing contributed approximately $14.2 million of Enogex s gross margin in 2006 as compared to approximately $2.7 million in 2005, an
increase of approximately $11.5 million. The gross margin increased primarily due to:

gains in storage activity due to timing, resulting from recording Enogex s storage hedges at market value at December 31,
2006 and an increase in storage capacity, which increased the gross margin by approximately $13.2 million;
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a correction to the accounting procedure for park and loan transactions (natural gas storage transactions) in the first quarter
of 2005, which decreased the gross margin in the first quarter of 2005 by approximately $7.7 million (see Note 16 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements); and

more favorable market conditions on transportation contracts, which increased the gross margin by approximately $7.6
million.

These increases in the marketing gross margin were partially offset by:

a lower of cost or market adjustment related to natural gas in storage during 2006, which reduced the 2006 gross margin by
approximately $9.9 million; and
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lower gains in trading and park and loan activity due to a lower level of activity in Enogex s marketing business and less
favorable market conditions, which reduced the gross margin by approximately $6.0 million.

Enogex s other operating and maintenance expenses were approximately $110.0 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $96.6 million in
2005, an increase of approximately $13.4 million or 13.9 percent. The increase in other operating and maintenance expenses was primarily due
to:

higher salaries, wages and other employee benefits of approximately $9.5 million primarily due to incentive compensation
and hiring additional employees to support business growth; and

higher materials and supplies costs of approximately $2.7 million primarily related to work performed to maintain the
integrity and safety of Enogex s pipeline, higher cost of materials and increased materials used at newly added facilities.

These increases in other operating and maintenance expenses were partially offset by a sales and use tax refund of approximately $2.0 million
received in May 2006 related to activity in prior years.

Depreciation expense was approximately $42.3 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $40.4 million during the same period in 2005, an
increase of approximately $1.9 million or 4.7 percent, primarily due to new assets placed into service during 2006.

Interest income was approximately $11.1 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $2.9 million in 2005, an increase of approximately $8.2
million primarily due to interest income on cash investments from interest earned on the cash proceeds from the sale of EAPC in October 2005
and the sale of the Kinta Assets in May 2006.

Other income was approximately $7.7 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $0.8 million in 2005, an increase of approximately $6.9
million. The increase in other income was primarily due to:

a litigation settlement of approximately $5.2 million (see Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) in 2006;

a gain of approximately $1.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 from the sale of certain west Texas pipeline asset
segments; and

a gain of approximately $0.5 million in the first quarter of 2006 from the sale of small gathering sections of Enogex s
pipeline.

Income tax expense was approximately $48.0 million in 2006 as compared to approximately $20.4 million in 2005, an increase of approximately
$27.6 million primarily due to higher pre-tax income for Enogex.

For 2006, Enogex s net income, including the discontinued operations discussed below under the caption Enogex Discontinued Operations, was
approximately $113.5 million. During 2006, Enogex had an increase in net income of approximately $41.2 million relating to various items that
the Company does not consider to be reflective of the ongoing profitability of Enogex s business. These increases in net income include:

a gain on the sale of the Kinta Assets in May 2006 of approximately $34.1 million;

litigation settlement (see Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) of approximately $3.2 million;
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income from discontinued operations of approximately $1.9 million;
a sales and use tax refund related to activity in prior years of approximately $1.3 million;
the sale of certain west Texas pipeline asset segments of approximately $0.6 million; and

the sale of small gathering sections of Enogex s pipeline of approximately $0.3 million.

These increases in net income were partially offset by a decrease in net income of approximately $0.2 million related to the impairment of
certain long-lived assets.

For 2005, Enogex s net income, including the discontinued operations discussed below under the caption Enogex Discontinued Operations, was
approximately $89.8 million. During 2005, Enogex had an increase in net income of approximately $45.3 million relating to various items that
the Company does not consider to be reflective of the ongoing profitability of Enogex s business. These increases in net income include:
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a gain on the sale of EAPC in October 2005 of approximately $36.7 million;
income from discontinued operations of approximately $11.3 million;
a gain on the sale of Enerven in August 2005 of approximately $1.8 million; and

income from a sales tax refund related to activity in prior years of approximately $0.2 million.

These increases to net income were partially offset by a correction to the accounting procedure for park and loan transactions in 2005 of
approximately $4.7 million.

2005 compared to 2004. Enogex s operating income decreased approximately $13.7 million in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due to
decreased gross margins in Enogex s marketing business and Enogex s transportation and storage business, which were partially offset by
increased gross margins in Enogex s gathering and processing business. The overall decrease in gross margins was partially offset by an asset
impairment charge of approximately $7.8 million recorded in 2004 with no similar item recorded in 2005.

Transportation and storage contributed approximately $99.1 million of Enogex s gross margin in 2002s compared to approximately $114.5
million in 2004, a decrease of approximately $15.4 million or 13.4 percent. The gross margin decreased primarily due to:

storage field gas losses, increased costs associated with natural gas purchases and sales, increased costs from electric
compression, reduced fuel recoveries due to timing and system fuel volumes previously recorded in Enogex s transportation
and storage business which are now being recorded in Enogex s gathering and processing business, which collectively
reduced the gross margin by approximately $20.5 million; and

reduced demand fees due to fewer overrun service charges with OG&E and the loss of firm contracts, which reduced the
gross margin by approximately $2.1 million.

These decreases in the transportation and storage gross margin were partially offset by:

increased crosshaul prices and volumes, which increased the gross margin by approximately $5.3 million; and

increased commodity and interruptible revenues, which increased the gross margin by approximately $1.5 million.

Gathering and processing contributed approximately $140.2 million of Enogex s gross margin in 2005 as compared to approximately $123.4
million in 2004, an increase of approximately $16.8 million or 13.6 percent. The gathering and processing gross margin increased primarily due

contractual fuel gains primarily due to higher natural gas prices and renegotiated contracts, which increased the gross

margin by approximately $7.2 million;

increased fuel over recoveries due to higher natural gas prices, 2005 fuel reserve and system fuel volumes previously
recorded in Enogex s transportation and storage business which is now being recorded in Enogex s gathering and processing
business, which increased the gross margin by approximately $6.2 million;

increased condensate margins primarily due to higher condensate prices, which increased the gross margin by

approximately $3.0 million;

higher volumes related to compression and dehydration, which increased the gross margin by approximately $2.5 million;

higher volumes on the low pressure gathering systems, which increased the gross margin by approximately $2.2 million;
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increased percent of liquids margins primarily due to higher natural gas prices, which increased the gross margin by
approximately $1.4 million; and

higher margin on natural gas sales reflective of opportunities in the marketplace, which increased the gross margin by
approximately $1.1 million.

These increases in the gathering and processing gross margin were partially offset by:

decreased net keep-whole margins primarily due to higher natural gas prices, which reduced the gross margin by
approximately $3.2 million;
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higher cost of electricity in 2005, which reduced the gross margin by approximately $3.0 million; and

lower volumes on the high pressure gathering systems, which reduced the gross margin by approximately $1.0 million.

Marketing contributed approximately $2.7 million of Enogex s gross margin in 2005 as compared to approximately $23.8 million in 2004, a
decrease of approximately $21.1 million or 88.7 percent. The gross margin decreased primarily due to:

less favorable market conditions and trading activity, which reduced the gross margin by approximately $13.0 million;

a correction to the accounting procedure for park and loan transactions (natural gas storage transactions) in the first quarter
of 2005, which reduced the gross margin by approximately $7.7 million (see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements); and

losses incurred related to Enogex s position on the Cheyenne Plains transportation agreement, which reduced the gross
margin by approximately $3.6 million.

These decreases in the marketing gross margin were partially offset by:

lower demand fees paid for storage services due to establishing new rates for the new storage season, which began April 1,
2004 which increased the gross margin by approximately $2.5 million; and
gains in storage activity, which increased the gross margin by approximately $0.7 million.

Enogex s other operating and maintenance expenses were approximately $96.6 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $93.5 million in
2004, an increase of approximately $3.1 million or 3.3 percent. The increase in other operating and maintenance expenses was primarily due to:

higher outside service costs related to business development projects in 2005, system software implementation in 2005 and
work performed to maintain the integrity and safety of Enogex s pipeline of approximately $4.4 million; and
expenses related to a pipeline rupture in the second quarter 2005 of approximately $0.5 million.

These increases in other operating and maintenance expenses were partially offset by an uncollectible debt reserve of approximately $1.1 million
recorded in 2004 with no similar reserve recorded in 2005.

Impairment of assets was approximately $7.8 million ($4.8 million after tax) in 2004 as a result of recording an impairment charge during the
third quarter of 2004. The impairment charge related to certain Enogex natural gas pipeline assets that served a particular customer s power
plants pursuant to a transportation agreement that was terminated by the customer effective December 31, 2004. There were no impairments
recorded in 2005.

Interest income was approximately $2.9 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $3.2 million in 2004, a decrease of approximately $0.3
million or 9.4 percent, primarily due to a decrease in interest income of approximately $1.9 million due to the interest portion of an income tax
refund related to prior periods which was received in 2004 with no similar activity recorded in 2005 partially offset by an increase in interest
income of approximately $1.1 million from parent due to funds received from the sale of EAPC in October 2005.

Other income was approximately $0.8 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $4.5 million in 2004, a decrease of approximately $3.7
million or 82.2 percent. The decrease in other income was primarily due to a gain in 2004 of approximately $3.0 million from the sale of certain
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of Enogex s compression and processing assets in 2004 in addition to approximately $0.8 million received related to a bankruptcy settlement
from one of Enogex s customers during the third quarter of 2004.

Income tax expense was approximately $20.4 million in 2005 as compared to approximately $29.4 million in 2004, a decrease of approximately
$9.0 million or 30.6 percent. The decrease in income tax expense was primarily due to:

lower pre-tax income for Enogex; and

a reduction in excess deferred taxes of approximately $3.2 million in 2005.
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These decreases in income tax expense were partially offset by a decrease in Oklahoma state income tax credits of approximately $1.6 million in
2005 as compared to 2004.

For 2005, Enogex s net income, including the discontinued operations discussed below under the caption Enogex Discontinued Operations, was
approximately $89.8 million. During 2005, Enogex had an increase in net income of approximately $45.3 million relating to various items that
the Company does not consider to be reflective of the ongoing profitability of Enogex s business. These increases in net income include:

a gain on the sale of EAPC in October 2005 of approximately $36.7 million;
income from discontinued operations of approximately $11.3 million;
a gain on the sale of Enerven in August 2005 of approximately $1.8 million; and

income from a sales tax refund related to activity in prior years of approximately $0.2 million.

These increases to net income were partially offset by a correction to the accounting procedure for park and loan transactions in 2005 of
approximately $4.7 million.

For 2004, Enogex s net income, including the discontinued operations discussed below under the caption Enogex Discontinued Operations, was
approximately $60.7 million. During 2004, Enogex had an increase in net income of approximately $15.6 million relating to various items that
the Company does not consider to be reflective of the ongoing profitability of Enogex s business. These increases in net income include:

income from discontinued operations of approximately $11.7 million;

authorized recovery of previously under recovered fuel of approximately $3.8 million;

a gain on the sale of Enogex compression and processing assets of approximately $1.8 million;
an imbalance settlement with a customer of approximately $1.6 million;

a net Oklahoma investment tax credit of approximately $1.0 million; and

a settlement related to a customer bankruptcy of approximately $0.5 million.

These increases to net income were partially offset by a net impairment charge of approximately $4.8 million.

Enogex Discontinued Operations

In April 2005, Enogex Compression Company, LLC ( Enogex Compression ) received an unsolicited offer to buy its interest in Enerven, a joint
venture focused on the rental of natural gas compression assets. After evaluating this offer, Enogex Compression sold its interest in Enerven for
approximately $7.3 million in August 2005. Enogex Compression recognized an after tax gain of approximately $1.8 million related to the sale
of this business.
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Enogex regularly evaluates the long term stability, profitability and core competency of each of its businesses within the regulatory and market
framework in which each business operates. Based on these evaluations, in September 2005, Enogex announced that it had entered into an
agreement to sell its interest in EAPC, which held a 75 percent interest in the NOARK Pipeline System Limited Partnership. This sale was
completed on October 31, 2005. The Company received approximately $177.4 million in cash proceeds and recognized an after tax gain of
approximately $36.7 million from the sale of this business in the fourth quarter of 2005. Enogex used approximately $31.9 million of the
proceeds to repay principal and accrued interest on long-term debt and approximately $46.7 million to pay taxes associated with EAPC. The
balance of the proceeds of approximately $98.8 million, was used, among other things, to reduce short-term debt levels and fund capital
expenditures.

In March 2006, Enogex announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Gathering, had entered into an agreement to sell certain gas gathering
assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma, area. The Gathering assets included in the transaction were approximately 568 miles of gas gathering pipeline and
22 compressor units with current volumes of approximately 145 million cubic feet per day, all in eastern Oklahoma. The sale price was
approximately $93 million. This transaction closed on May 1, 2006 and Enogex recorded an after tax gain of approximately $34.1 million during
the second quarter of 2006. The proceeds from the sale, were used, among other things, to reduce short-term debt levels and fund capital
expenditures.

As a result of these sale transactions, Enogex Compression s interest in Enerven, Enogex s interest in EAPC and Gathering s Kinta Assets, which
were part of the Natural Gas Pipeline segment, have been reported as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Enogex Compression s sale of its Enerven interest and Enogex s sale of its EAPC interest were
completed during 2005 and,
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therefore, there are no results of operations for these transactions during 2006. Results for these discontinued operations are summarized and
discussed below.

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues $ 9.4 $ 106.0 $ 120.1
Cost of goods sold 4.9 69.5 80.0

Gross margin on revenues 4.5 36.5 40.1

Other operation and maintenance 1.0 7.5 7.9
Depreciation 0.3 5.8 6.5

Taxes other than income 0.1 1.3 1.5
Operating income 3.1 21.9 24.2
Interest income - 0.1 0.3

Other income 56.0 66.2 -—-

Other expense --- 0.2 0.6
Interest expense - 4.0 5.3

Income tax expense 23.1 344 7.0

Net income $ 36.0 $ 49.8 $ 11.6

2006 compared to 2005. Gross margin decreased approximately $32.0 million or 87.7 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to the
sale of EAPC in October 2005, the sale of the Kinta Assets in May 2006 and a decrease in natural gas purchases and sales due to a decrease in
natural gas transported prior to these assets being sold.

Operating and maintenance expense decreased approximately $6.5 million or 86.7 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to the sale
of EAPC in October 2005 and the sale of the Kinta Assets in May 2006.

Depreciation expense decreased approximately $5.5 million or 94.8 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to the sale of EAPC in
October 2005 and ceasing depreciation expense in January 2006 when the Kinta Assets were reported as a discontinued operation.

Taxes other than income decreased approximately $1.2 million or 92.3 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 for ad valorem taxes primarily due
to the sale of EAPC in October 2005.

Other income decreased approximately $10.2 million or 15.4 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 due to the sale of the Kinta Assets in May
2006 partially offset by the sale of EAPC in October 2005 and the sale of Enerven in August 2005.

Interest expense decreased approximately $4.0 million or 100.0 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 due to the sale of EAPC in October 2005
and the use of a portion of the sale proceeds to repay EAPC long-term debt.

Income tax expense increased approximately $11.3 million or 32.8 percent in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to the sale of the Kinta
Assets in May 2006 partially offset by the sale of EAPC in October 2005 and the sale of Enerven in August 2005.
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2005 compared to 2004. Gross margin decreased approximately $3.6 million or 9.0 percent in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due to the
sale of EAPC in October 2005 and a decrease in natural gas purchases and sales due to a decrease in natural gas transported prior to these assets

being sold.

Other income increased approximately $66.2 million in 2005 as compared to 2004 due to a pre-tax gain of approximately $83.4 million
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2005 related to the sale of EAPC and a pre-tax gain of approximately $2.9 million recognized in the third
quarter of 2005 related to the sale of Enerven.

Interest expense decreased approximately $1.3 million or 24.5 percent in 2005 as compared to 2004 due to the sale of EAPC in October 2005
and the use of a portion of the sale proceeds to repay EAPC long-term debt.

Income tax expense increased approximately $27.4 million in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due to the sale of the Kinta Assets in May
2006 partially offset by the sale of EAPC in October 2005 and the sale of Enerven in August 2005.
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Financial Condition

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents was approximately $47.9 million and $26.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, an
increase of approximately $21.5 million or 81.4 percent, primarily due to proceeds received in October 2006 from the sale of Gathering s Kinta
Assets in May 2006.

The balance of Funds on Deposit was approximately $32.0 million at December 31, 2006 due to the Company making a deposit with the IRS on
August 17, 2006 in anticipation that a portion of prior year deductions will be disallowed. The deposit enabled the Company to cease accruing
interest effective August 17, 2006. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion.

The balance of Accounts Receivable, Net was approximately $344.3 million and $591.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, a
decrease of approximately $247.1 million or 41.8 percent, primarily due to lower natural gas sales prices and volumes by Enogex, a decrease in
OG&E s billings to its customers reflecting lower fuel costs in December 2006 as compared to December 2005 and payments received from
other utilities for OG&E s assistance with hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

The balance of current Price Risk Management assets was approximately $41.9 million and $116.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, a decrease of approximately $74.6 million or 64.0 percent. The decrease was primarily due to lower natural gas prices associated
with OGE Energy Resources, Inc. ( OERI ) short-term physical natural gas purchase transactions and associated financial contracts. A reduction
in the volume of OERI s short-term physical natural gas activity and associated financial contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 from
December 31, 2005 also contributed to the decrease.

The balance of Gas Imbalance asset was approximately $2.8 million and $32.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively, a decrease
of approximately $29.2 million or 91.3 percent. The Gas Imbalance asset is comprised of planned or managed imbalances related to OERI s
business, referred to as park and loan transactions, and pipeline and natural gas liquids imbalances, which are operational imbalances. Park and
loan transactions were approximately $15.7 million at December 31, 2005 with no comparable balance at December 31, 2006. The decrease in
park and loan transactions was due to the expiration of 2005 park and loan transactions in OERI s business activities. Operational imbalances
were approximately $2.8 million and $16.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, a decrease of approximately $13.5 million or
82.8 percent. The decrease in operational imbalances was primarily due to Enogex beginning to manage imbalances related to its storage
operations on a combined basis in 2006 for its two storage facilities which resulted in a decrease in net imbalance volumes.

The balance of Construction Work in Progress was approximately $191.1 million and $101.8 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, an increase of approximately $89.3 million or 87.7 percent, primarily due to construction expenditures related to OG&E s
Centennial wind farm in addition to construction expenditures related to the expansion of Enogex s gathering pipeline capacity on the west side
of its system in western Oklahoma and the Texas Panhandle.

The balance of Regulatory Asset SFAS 158 was approximately $231.1 million at December 31, 2006 with no comparable balance at December
31, 2005. The balance of Intangible Asset Unamortized Prior Service Cost was approximately $32.8 million at December 31, 2005 with no
comparable balance at December 31, 2006. The balance of Prepaid Benefit Obligation was approximately $90.2 million at December 31, 2005
with no comparable balance at December 31, 2006. The change in these balances is due to the accounting change required upon adoption of
SFAS No. 158, effective December 31, 2006, which required the Company to record the funded status of its pension and postretirement benefit
plans on the Consolidated Balance Sheet (see Notes 1 and 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion).
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The balance of Deferred Charges Other was approximately $23.1 million and $7.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, an
increase of approximately $15.9 million, primarily due to the creation of a regulatory asset at OG&E of approximately $14.7 million for the
excess pension expense over the amount granted in rates by the OCC in OG&E s last Oklahoma rate case (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion).

The balance of Short-Term Debt was approximately $30.0 million at December 31, 2005 with no comparable balance at December 31, 2006.
The decrease was primarily due to proceeds received in October 2006 from the sale of Gathering s Kinta Assets in May 2006 which were used to
pay down the commercial paper balance.
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The balance of Accounts Payable was approximately $295.0 million and $510.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, a
decrease of approximately $215.4 million or 42.2 percent, primarily due to lower natural gas prices and volumes in December 2006 as compared
to December 2005 and the timing of outstanding checks clearing the bank.

The balance of current Price Risk Management liabilities was approximately $9.2 million and $109.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, a decrease of approximately $100.3 million or 91.6 percent. The decrease was primarily due to lower natural gas prices associated
with OERI s short-term physical natural gas purchase transactions and associated financial contracts. A reduction in the volume of OERI s
short-term physical natural gas activity and associated financial contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 from December 31, 2005 also
contributed to the decrease.

The balance of Gas Imbalance liability was approximately $11.1 million and $36.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, a
decrease of approximately $24.9 million or 69.2 percent. The Gas Imbalance liability is comprised of planned or managed imbalances related to
OERI s business, referred to as park and loan transactions, and pipeline and natural gas liquids imbalances, which are operational imbalances.
Park and loan transactions were approximately $10.2 million at December 31, 2005 with no comparable balance at December 31, 2006. The
decrease in park and loan transactions was due to the expiration of 2005 park and loan transactions in OERI s business activities. Operational
imbalances were approximately $11.1 million and $25.8 million at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively, a decrease of approximately
$14.7 million or 57.0 percent. The decrease in operational imbalances was primarily due to Enogex beginning to manage imbalances related to
its storage operations on a combined basis in 2006 for its two storage facilities which resulted in a decrease in net imbalance volumes.

The balance of Fuel Clause Over Recoveries was approximately $96.3 million at December 31, 2006. The balance of Fuel Clause Under
Recoveries was approximately $101.1 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in fuel clause over recoveries was due to the amount billed to
OG&E s customers during 2006 exceeding OG&E s cost of fuel due to lower than expected natural gas prices and amounts recovered under
approved tariffs exceeding the amounts intended by the December 2005 OCC rate order. OG&E s fuel recovery clauses are designed to smooth
the impact of fuel price volatility on customers bills. As a result, OG&E typically under recovers fuel cost in periods of rising prices above the
baseline charge for fuel and over recovers fuel cost when prices decline below the baseline charge for fuel. Provisions in the fuel clauses are
intended to allow OG&E to amortize under or over recovery. As described in more detail in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, the OCC, in its order dated December 12, 2005, granted OG&E a $42.3 million annual increase in the rates charged by OG&E to its
retail customers in Oklahoma. These increased rates became effective in January 2006 pursuant to approved tariffs filed with the OCC. In
January 2007, OG&E determined that the approved tariffs had inadvertently authorized OG&E to collect, and OG&E had collected,
approximately $26.7 million of additional fuel-related revenues during 2006 that was not intended by the December 12, 2005 order. As a result,
OG&E filed with the OCC in January 2007 amendments to its previously-authorized tariffs, in order to cease recovery of the fuel-related
revenues not intended by the December 12, 2005 order. The $26.7 million, plus $1.2 million of interest, was recorded as a liability under Fuel
Clause Over Recoveries on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the fourth quarter of 2006, and such amounts, along with other Fuel Clause Over
Recoveries, will be credited to OG&E s Oklahoma customers in 2007 and 2008 through OG&E s automatic fuel adjustment clause. In addition,
OG&E recorded a reduction in operating revenues of approximately $26.7 million and an increase in interest expense of approximately $0.5
million, which resulted in an after tax reduction in net income of approximately $16.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. Because the rate
increase authorized in the December 2005 order was not implemented until January 2006 and the tariffs were corrected effective December 31,
2006, the $26.7 million had no impact on net income for the year ended December 31, 2006. See additional discussion in Supplementary Data
Interim Consolidated Financial Information (Unaudited).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Off-balance sheet arrangements include any transactions, agreements or other contractual arrangements to which an unconsolidated entity is a
party and under which the Company has: (i) any obligation under a guarantee contract having specific characteristics as defined in Financial
Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ; (ii) a retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar
arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity for such assets; (iii) any obligation, including a contingent
obligation, under a contract that would be accounted for as a derivative instrument but is indexed to the Company s own stock and is classified in
stockholders equity in the Company s consolidated balance sheet; or (iv) any obligation, including a contingent obligation, arising out of a
variable interest as defined in FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research
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Bulletin No. 51, in an unconsolidated entity that is held by, and material to, the Company, where such entity provides financing, liquidity,
market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing,
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hedging or research and development services with, the Company. The Company has the following material off-balance sheet arrangements.

OG&E Railcar Lease Agreement

OG&E leases more than 1,400 railcars used to deliver coal to OG&E s coal-fired generation units. See Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of OG&E s railcar lease agreement.

Liquidity and Capital Requirements

The Company s primary needs for capital are related to acquiring or constructing new facilities and replacing or expanding existing facilities at
OG&E and at Enogex. Other working capital requirements are primarily related to maturing debt, operating lease obligations, hedging activities,
natural gas storage, delays in recovering unconditional fuel purchase obligations and fuel clause under and over recoveries. The Company
generally meets its cash needs through a combination of internally generated funds, short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank
borrowings and commercial paper) and permanent financings.

Capital requirements and future contractual obligations estimated for the next five years and beyond are as follows:

Less than More than
(In millions) Total 1 year 1 - 3 years 3-5years 5 years
OG&E capital expenditures including AFUDC (A) $3,297.3 $ 4265 $ 14347 $ 1,070.1 $  366.0
Enogex capital expenditures including
capitalized interest 504.6 124.8 199.8 120.0 60.0
Other Operations capital expenditures 66.8 16.8 20.0 20.0 10.0
Total capital expenditures 3,868.7 568.1 1,654.5 1,210.1 436.0
Maturities of long-term debt 1,249.4 3.0 1.0 400.0 845.4
Interest payments on long-term debt 1,068.5 80.6 160.7 98.8 728.4
Pension funding obligations 129.7 50.0 46.1 33.6 N/A
Total capital requirements 6,316.3 701.7 1,862.3 1,742.5 2,009.8
Operating lease obligations
OG&E railcars 52.0 4.0 7.7 40.3
Enogex noncancellable operating leases 8.6 22 3.1 2.9 0.4
Total operating lease obligations 60.6 6.2 10.8 43.2 0.4
Other purchase obligations and commitments
OG&E cogeneration capacity payments 471.3 97.6 190.5 183.2 N/A
OG&E fuel minimum purchase commitments 614.5 198.0 220.0 173.1 23.4
Other 56.3 6.9 13.8 13.8 21.8
Total other purchase obligations and commitments 1,142.1 302.5 4243 370.1 45.2
Total capital requirements, operating lease obligations
and other purchase obligations and commitments 7,519.0 1,010.4 2,297.4 2,155.8 2,055.4
Amounts recoverable through automatic fuel
adjustment clause (B) (1,137.8) (299.6) (418.2) (396.6) (23.4)
Total, net $6,381.2 $710.8 $ 1,879.2 $ 17592 $ 2,032.0

(A) Under current environmental laws and regulations, OG&E may be required to spend approximately $600 million in capital expenditures on
its coal-fired plants. These expenditures are expected to begin in 2007 and would continue over the next five years.
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(B) Includes expected recoveries of costs incurred for OG&E s railcar operating lease obligations and OG&E s unconditional fuel purchase
obligations.

N/A not available

Variances in the actual cost of fuel used in electric generation (which includes the operating lease obligations for OG&E s railcar leases shown
above) and certain purchased power costs, as compared to the fuel component included in the
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cost-of-service for ratemaking, are passed through to OG&E s customers through automatic fuel adjustment clauses. Accordingly, while the cost
of fuel related to operating leases and the vast majority of unconditional fuel purchase obligations of OG&E noted above may increase capital
requirements, such costs are recoverable through automatic fuel adjustment clauses and have little, if any, impact on net capital requirements and
future contractual obligations. The automatic fuel adjustment clauses are subject to periodic review by the OCC, the APSC and the FERC. See
Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the completed proceedings at the OCC regarding OG&E s gas
transportation and storage contract with Enogex.

2006 Capital Requirements and Financing Activities

Total capital requirements, consisting of capital expenditures, maturities of long-term debt, interest payments on long-term debt and pension
funding obligations, were approximately $662.1 million and contractual obligations, net of recoveries through automatic fuel adjustment clauses,
were approximately $10.7 million resulting in total net capital requirements and contractual obligations of approximately $672.9 million in
2006. Approximately $17.8 million of the 2006 capital requirements were to comply with environmental regulations. This compares to net
capital requirements of approximately $448.8 million and net contractual obligations of approximately $4.3 million totaling approximately
$453.1 million in 2005, of which approximately $19.2 million was to comply with environmental regulations. During 2006, the Company s
sources of capital were internally generated funds from operating cash flows, short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank borrowings
and commercial paper) and proceeds from the sale of assets. The Company uses its commercial paper to fund changes in working capital and as
an interim source of financing capital expenditures until permanent financing is arranged. Changes in working capital reflect the seasonal nature
of the Company s business, the revenue lag between billing and collection from customers and fuel inventories. See Financial Condition for a
discussion of significant changes in net working capital requirements as it pertains to operating cash flow and liquidity.

Discontinued Operations

Also contributing to the liquidity of the Company has been the disposition of certain assets classified as discontinued operations in 2005 and
2006. During 2005 and 2006, these dispositions have generated net sales proceeds of approximately $277.6 million. Sales proceeds generated to
date have been used to reduce short-term debt levels and fund capital expenditures.

Additional asset sales could further contribute to the liquidity of the Company.

Long-term Debt Maturities

Maturities of the Company s long-term debt during the next five years consist of $3.0 million in 2007; $1.0 million in 2008 and $400.0 million in
2010. There are no maturities of the Company s long-term debt in years 2009 or 2011.

Future Capital Requirements

Capital Expenditures
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The Company s current 2007 to 2012 construction program includes continued investment in OG&E s distribution, generation and transmission
system and Enogex s pipeline assets. The Company s current estimates of capital expenditures for 2007 through 2012 are approximately $568.1
million, $838.6 million, $815.9 million, $659.9 million, $550.2 million and $436.0 million, respectively, which include capital expenditures of
approximately $94.0 million, $278.8 million, $285.7 million, $97.7 million and $34.1 million, respectively, in 2007 through 2011 related to the
construction of the Red Rock power plant. OG&E also has approximately 550 MW s of contracts with qualified cogeneration facilities ( QF ) and
small power production producers ( QF contracts ) to meet its current and future expected customer needs. OG&E will continue reviewing all of
the supply alternatives to these QF contracts that minimize the total cost of generation to its customers, including exercising its options (if
applicable) to extend these QF contracts at pre-determined rates.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

During 2006, actual asset returns for the Company s defined benefit pension plan were positively affected by growth in the equity markets. At
December 31, 2006, approximately 64 percent of the pension plan assets are invested in listed common stocks with the balance invested in
corporate debt and U.S. Government securities. In 2006, asset returns on the pension plan were approximately 14.5 percent as compared to
approximately 6.2 percent in 2005. During the same time,
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corporate bond yields, which are used in determining the discount rate for future pension obligations, have continued to decline.

Contributions to the pension plan increased from approximately $32.0 million in 2005 to approximately $90.0 million in 2006. This increase in
pension plan contributions in 2006 was to maintain an adequate funded status. The level of funding is dependent on returns on plan assets and
future discount rates. Higher returns on plan assets and increases in discount rates will reduce funding requirements to the plan. In August 2006,
legislation was passed that changed the funding requirement for single- and multi-employer defined benefit pension plans as discussed below.
During 2007, the Company may contribute up to $50 million to its pension plan.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ( SFAS ) No. 88, Employer s Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits, a one-time settlement charge is required to be recorded by an organization when
lump sum payments or other settlements that relieve the organization from the responsibility for the pension benefit obligation during a plan year
exceed the service cost and interest cost components of the organization s net periodic pension cost. During 2006, the Company experienced an
increase in both the number of employees electing to retire and the amount of lump sum payments to be paid to such employees upon retirement
in 2006. As a result, the Company recorded a pension settlement charge for 2006 of approximately $17.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2006.
The pension settlement charge did not require a cash outlay by the Company and did not increase the Company s total pension expense over time,
as the charge was an acceleration of costs that otherwise would have been recognized as pension expense in future periods. OG&E s Oklahoma
jurisdictional portion of this charge was recorded as a regulatory asset (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further
discussion).

As discussed in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, in 2000 the Company made several changes to its pension plan,
including the adoption of a cash balance benefit feature for employees hired after January 31, 2000. The cash balance plan may provide lower
post-employment pension benefits to employees, which could result in less pension expense being recorded. Over the near term, the Company s
cash requirements for the plan are not expected to be materially different than the requirements existing prior to the plan changes. However, as
the population of employees included in the cash balance plan feature increases, the Company s cash requirements should decrease and will be
much less sensitive to changes in discount rates.

At December 31, 2006, the projected benefit obligation and fair value of assets of the Company s pension plan and restoration of retirement
income plan was approximately $585.0 million and $519.4 million, respectively, for an underfunded status of approximately $65.6 million.

Also, at December 31, 2006, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and fair value of assets of the Company s postretirement benefit
plans was approximately $225.4 million and $74.0 million, respectively, for an underfunded status of approximately $151.4 million. The above
amounts have been recorded in Accrued Pension and Benefit Obligations with the offset in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (except
OG&E s portion which is recorded as a regulatory asset as discussed in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) in the Company s
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The entry did not impact the results of operations in 2006 and did not require a usage of cash and is therefore
excluded from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and as a regulatory asset
represent a net periodic pension cost to be recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income in future periods.

During 2005, the Company made contributions to the pension plan that exceeded amounts previously recognized as net periodic pension expense
and recorded a net prepaid benefit obligation at December 31, 2005 of approximately $88.9 million. At December 31, 2005, the Company s
projected pension benefit obligation exceeded the fair value of the pension plan assets by approximately $154.6 million. As a result of recording
a prepaid benefit obligation and having a funded status where the projected benefit obligations exceeded the fair value of plan assets, provisions
of SFAS No. 87 required the recognition of an additional minimum liability in the amount of approximately $181.4 million at December 31,
2005. The offset of this entry was an intangible asset and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, net of a deferred tax asset; therefore, this
adjustment did not impact the results of operations in 2005 and did not require a usage of cash and is therefore excluded from the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows. The amount recorded as an intangible asset equaled the unrecognized prior service cost with the remainder recorded in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The amount in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income represents a net periodic pension cost to
be recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income in future periods.
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Pension Plan Costs and Assumptions

On August 17, 2006, President Bush signed The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Pension Protection Act ) into law. The Pension Protection
Act makes changes to important aspects of qualified retirement plans. Among other things, it

56

109



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

introduces a new funding requirement for single- and multi-employer defined benefit pension plans, provides legal certainty on a prospective
basis for cash balance and other hybrid plans and addresses contributions to defined contribution plans, deduction limits for contributions to
retirement plans and investment advice provided to plan participants. The Company is currently analyzing the impact of the Pension Protection
Act on its pension plans. Long-Term Debt with Optional Redemption Provisions

OG&E s $125.0 million principal amount 6.65 percent Senior Notes ( Senior Notes ) due July 15, 2027, are repayable on July 15, 2007, at the
option of the holders, at 100 percent of the principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest to July 15, 2007. Only holders who
submit requests for repayment between May 15, 2007 and June 15, 2007 are entitled to such repayments. In accordance with SFAS No. 6,

Classification of Short-Term Obligations Expected to Be Refinanced, OG&E reclassified the Senior Notes from long-term debt due within one
year to long-term debt at December 31, 2006 due to OG&E having sufficient long-term liquidity in place as a result of increasing its revolving
credit agreement to $400.0 million in December 2006. Also, based on where the Senior Notes have recently traded, OG&E does not believe it is
probable that this option will be exercised by the note holders.

SPP Letter of Credit

On October 31, 2006, OG&E submitted a commercial letter of credit to the Southwest Power Pool for approximately $2.9 million related to the
costs of upgrades required for OG&E to obtain transmission service from its new Centennial wind farm. This commercial letter of credit is not
recorded as a liability on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Security Ratings

Moody s Standard & Poor s Fitch s
OG&E Senior Notes A2 BBB+ AA-
Enogex Notes Baa3 BBB+ BBB
OGE Energy Corp. Senior Notes Baal BBB A
OGE Energy Corp. Commercial Paper P2 A2 F1

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. Such rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
credit rating agency and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Future financing requirements may be dependent, to varying degrees, upon numerous factors such as general economic conditions, abnormal
weather, load growth, acquisitions of other businesses and/or development of projects, actions by rating agencies, inflation, changes in
environmental laws or regulations, rate increases or decreases allowed by regulatory agencies, new legislation and market entry of competing
electric power generators.

Future Sources of Financing

Management expects that internally generated funds, the issuance of long and short-term debt and proceeds from the sales of common stock to
the public through the Company s Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan or other offerings will be adequate over the next
three years to meet anticipated cash needs. The Company utilizes short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank borrowings and
commercial paper) to satisfy temporary working capital needs and as an interim source of financing capital expenditures until permanent
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financing is arranged.

Short-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings generally are used to meet working capital requirements. In December 2006, the Company and OG&E increased their
aggregate available borrowing capacity under their revolving credit agreements from $750.0 million to $1.0 billion, $600 million for the
Company and $400 million for OG&E. Also, OG&E has the necessary regulatory approvals to incur up to $800 million in short-term
borrowings at any time for a two-year period beginning January 1, 2007 and ending December 31, 2008. See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the Company s short-term debt activity.

Common Stock

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the Company s common stock activity.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contain information that is pertinent to Management s
Discussion and Analysis. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes to these assumptions and
estimates could have a material affect on the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements particularly as they relate to pension expense and
impairment estimates. However, the Company believes it has taken reasonable, but conservative, positions where assumptions and estimates are
used in order to minimize the negative financial impact to the Company that could result if actual results vary from the assumptions and
estimates. In management s opinion, the areas of the Company where the most significant judgment is exercised is in the valuation of pension
plan assumptions, impairment estimates, contingency reserves, asset retirement obligations, fair value and cash flow hedges, regulatory assets
and liabilities, unbilled revenues for OG&E, operating revenues for Enogex, natural gas purchases for Enogex, the allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable and the valuation of energy purchase and sale contracts. The selection, application and disclosure of the following critical
accounting estimates have been discussed with the Company s Audit Committee.

Consolidated (including Electric Utility and Natural Gas Pipeline Segments)

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Pension and other postretirement plan expenses and liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by the market value of plan
assets, estimates of the expected return on plan assets, assumed discount rates and the level of funding. Actual changes in the fair market value
of plan assets and differences between the actual return on plan assets and the expected return on plan assets could have a material effect on the
amount of pension expense ultimately recognized. The pension plan rate assumptions are shown in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. The assumed return on plan assets is based on management s expectation of the long-term return on the plan assets portfolio. The
discount rate used to compute the present value of plan liabilities is based generally on rates of high-grade corporate bonds with maturities
similar to the average period over which benefits will be paid. The level of funding is dependent on returns on plan assets and future discount
rates. Higher returns on plan assets and an increase in discount rates will reduce funding requirements to the pension plan. The following table
indicates the sensitivity of the pension plan funded status to these variables.

Impact on
Change Funded Status
Actual plan asset returns +/- 5 percent +/- $26.0 million
Discount rate +/-0.25 percent +/- $19.5 million
Contributions + $10.0 million + $10.0 million
Expected long-term return on plan assets +/- 1 percent None

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses potential impairments of assets or asset groups when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances require an
analysis of the recoverability of an asset or asset group. For purposes of recognition and measurement of an impairment loss, a long-lived asset
or assets shall be grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash
flows of other assets and liabilities. Estimates of future cash flows used to test the recoverability of a long-lived asset or asset group shall include
only the future cash flows (cash inflows less associated cash outflows) that are directly associated with and that are expected to arise as a direct
result of the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The fair value of these assets is based on third-party evaluations, prices for
similar assets, historical data and projected cash flow. An impairment loss is recognized when the sum of the expected future net cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of any recognized impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the asset subject to
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impairment compared to the carrying amount of such asset. Enogex expects to continue to evaluate the strategic fit and financial performance of
each of its assets in an effort to ensure a proper economic allocation of resources. The magnitude and timing of any potential impairment or gain
on the disposition of any assets have not been included in the 2007 earnings guidance.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent liability. These generally relate
to lawsuits, claims made by third parties, environmental actions or the action of various
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regulatory agencies and income tax related items. Management consults with legal counsel and other appropriate experts to assess the claim. If,
in management s opinion, the Company has incurred a probable loss as set forth by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
an estimate is made of the loss and the appropriate accounting entries are reflected in the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Asset Retirement Obligations

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an entity was required to recognize a
liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation ( ARO ) that was conditional on a future event if the liability s fair value could be
reasonably estimated. The fair value of a liability for the conditional ARO was recognized when incurred. Uncertainty surrounding the timing

and method of settlement of a conditional ARO was factored into the measurement of the liability when sufficient information existed. However,
in some cases, there was insufficient information to estimate the fair value of an ARO. In these cases, the liability was initially recognized in the
period in which sufficient information was available for an entity to make a reasonable estimate of the liability s fair value. In the fourth quarter
of 2006, OG&E recorded an ARO for approximately $0.9 million related to its Centennial wind farm. Beginning January 1, 2007, the Company
will amortize the remaining value of the related ARO asset over the estimated remaining life of 99 years. The Company has also identified other
ARO s that have not been recorded because the Company determined that these assets have indefinite lives primarily related to Enogex s
processing plants and compression sites.

Hedging Policies

Enogex engages in cash flow hedge transactions to manage commodity risk. Enogex may hedge its forward exposure to manage changes in
commodity prices. Anticipated transactions are documented as cash flow hedges pursuant to SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, hedging requirements and are executed based upon management established price targets. During 2004 and
2005, Enogex and OERI utilized hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133 to manage commodity exposure for contractual length and operational
storage natural gas, keep-whole natural gas and certain types of natural gas liquid hedges. During 2006, Enogex and OERI utilized hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133 to manage commodity exposure for contractual length and operational storage natural gas, keep-whole natural
gas, natural gas liquid hedges and certain transportation hedges. Hedges are evaluated prior to execution with respect to the impact on the
volatility of forecasted earnings and are evaluated at least quarterly after execution for the impact on earnings. OG&E and Enogex engage in
cash flow and fair value hedge transactions to modify the rate composition of the debt portfolio. During 2004, OG&E and Enogex entered into
interest rate swap agreements and, during 2005 and 2006, OG&E entered into treasury lock agreements relating to managing interest rate
exposure on the debt portfolio or anticipated debt issuances to modify the interest rate exposure on fixed rate debt issues. These interest rate
swaps and treasury lock agreements qualified as fair value or cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133. The objective of the interest rate swaps
was to achieve a lower cost of debt and to raise the percentage of total corporate long-term floating rate debt to reflect a level more in line with
industry standards. The objective of the treasury lock agreements in late 2005 was to protect against the variability of future payments of interest
expense of debt that was issued by OG&E in January 2006 and the objective of the treasury lock agreement in November 2006 is to protect
against the variability of future interest payments of long-term debt that is expected to be issued during the first half of 2007.

Electric Utility Segment

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to the accounting principles prescribed by SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation. SFAS No. 71 provides that certain actual or anticipated costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as
regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would
otherwise reduce expense can be deferred as regulatory liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management s
expected recovery of deferred costs and flowback of deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators granting such
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ratemaking treatment.

OG&E records certain actual or anticipated costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, that the cost or obligation will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund in future rates. The Company
adopted certain provisions of SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment
of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R, effective December 31, 2006, which requires the Company to separately disclose the items that
have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic pension cost including, net loss, prior service cost and net transition obligation at
December 31, 2006. For companies not subject to SFAS No. 71, SFAS No. 158 required this information to be included in
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. However, for companies subject to SFAS No. 71, this information is allowed to be recorded as a
regulatory asset if: (i) the utility has historically recovered and currently recovers pension and postretirement benefit plan expense in its electric
rates; and (ii) there is no negative evidence that the existing regulatory treatment will change. Therefore, OG&E has recorded the net loss, prior
service cost and net transition obligation as a regulatory asset as these expenses are probable of future recovery. If, in the future, the regulatory
bodies indicated a change in policy related to the recovery of pension and postretirement benefit plan expenses, this could cause the SFAS No.
158 regulatory asset balance to be reclassified to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

Unbilled Revenues

OG&E reads its customers meters and sends bills to its customers throughout each month. As a result, there is a significant amount of customers
electricity consumption that has not been billed at the end of each month. Unbilled revenue is presented in Accrued Unbilled Revenues on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Operating Revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income based on estimates of usage and prices
during the period. At December 31, 2006, if the estimated usage or price used in the unbilled revenue calculation were to increase or decrease by
one percent, this would cause a change in the unbilled revenues recognized of approximately $0.2 million. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
Accrued Unbilled Revenues were approximately $39.7 million and $41.8 million, respectively. The estimates that management uses in this
calculation could vary from the actual amounts to be paid by customers.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

Customer balances are generally written off if not collected within six months after the final billing date. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable is calculated by multiplying the last six months of electric revenue by the provision rate. The provision rate is based on a
12-month historical average of actual balances written off. To the extent the historical collection rates are not representative of future collections,
there could be an effect on the amount of uncollectible expense recognized. At December 31, 2006, if the provision rate were to increase or
decrease by 10 percent, this would cause a change in the uncollectible expense recognized of approximately $0.3 million. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable is a reduction to Accounts Receivable, Net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and is included in Other
Operation and Maintenance Expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was
approximately $3.3 million and $2.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Natural Gas Pipeline Segment

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues for transportation, storage, gathering and processing services for Enogex are recorded each month based on the current
month s estimated volumes, contracted prices (considering current commodity prices), historical seasonal fluctuations and any known
adjustments. The estimates are reversed in the following month and customers are billed on actual volumes and contracted prices. Gas sales are
calculated on current month nominations and contracted prices. Operating revenues associated with the production of natural gas liquids are
estimated based on current month estimated production and contracted prices. These amounts are reversed in the following month and the
customers are billed on actual production and contracted prices. Estimated operating revenues are reflected in Accounts Receivable, Net on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Operating Revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Natural Gas Purchases
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Estimates for gas purchases are based on sales volumes and contracted purchase prices. Estimated gas purchases are included in Accounts
Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Cost of Goods Sold on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Energy Purchase and Sale Contracts

OERI s activities include the marketing of natural gas and natural gas liquids. The vast majority of these contracts expire within three years,
which is when the cash aspect of the transactions will be realized. A substantial portion of these contracts qualify as derivatives under SFAS No.
133 and are marked-to-market with offsetting gains and losses recorded in earnings. In nearly all cases, independent market prices are obtained
and compared to the values used for this mark-to-market valuation, and an oversight group outside of the marketing organization monitors all
modeling methodologies and assumptions. The recorded value of the energy contracts may change significantly in the future as the market
price for the commodity changes, but the value is still subject to the risk loss limitations provided under the Company s risk policies. The
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Company utilizes models to estimate the fair value of its energy contracts including derivatives that do not have an independent market price. At
December 31, 2006, unrealized mark-to-market gains were approximately $31.2 million, which included approximately $0.5 million of
unrealized mark-to-market gains that were calculated utilizing models. At December 31, 2006, a price movement of one percent for prices
verified by independent parties would result in changes in unrealized mark-to-market gains of less than $0.1 million and a price movement of
five percent on model-based prices would result in changes in unrealized mark-to-market gains of approximately $0.1 million. Energy contracts
are presented in Price Risk Management assets, liabilities or against the brokerage deposits in Other Current Assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and in Operating Revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Natural Gas Inventory

Natural gas inventory is held by Enogex Inc. and OERI. Enogex Inc. maintains of natural gas inventory to provide operational support for its
pipeline deliveries. As part of its recurring business activity, OERI injects and withdraws natural gas in to and out of inventory under the terms
of its storage capacity contracts. In order to mitigate market price exposures, OERI enters into contracts or hedging instruments to protect the
cash flows associated with its inventory. OERI has elected not to designate inventory hedging contracts as fair value or cash flow hedges under
SFAS No. 133. The fair value of the hedging instruments is recorded on the books of OERI as Price Risk Management assets, liabilities or
against the brokerage deposits in Other Current Assets with an offsetting gain or loss recorded in current earnings. All natural gas inventory held
by Enogex is recorded at the lower of cost or market. During 2006, Enogex recorded write-downs to market value related to natural gas storage
inventory of approximately $18.7 million. The amount of Enogex s natural gas inventory was approximately $35.9 million and $35.7 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Natural gas storage inventory is presented in Fuel Inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and in Cost of Goods Sold on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is calculated based on outstanding accounts receivable balances over 180 days old. In
addition, other outstanding accounts receivable balances less than 180 days old are reserved on a case-by-case basis when the Company believes
the required payment of specific amounts owed is unlikely to occur. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is a reduction to
Accounts Receivable, Net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and is included in Other Operation and Maintenance Expense on the Consolidated
Statements of Income. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for the Natural Gas Pipeline segment was approximately $1.1 million
and $1.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Accounting Pronouncements

See Notes 2 and 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements that are applicable to the
Company.

Electric Competition; Regulation

OG&E and Enogex have been and will continue to be affected by competitive changes to the utility and energy industries. Significant changes
already have occurred and additional changes are being proposed to the wholesale electric market. Although retail restructuring efforts in
Oklahoma and Arkansas have been postponed for the time being, if such efforts were renewed, retail competition and the unbundling of
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regulated energy service could have a significant financial impact on the Company due to an impairment of assets, a loss of retail customers,
lower profit margins and/or increased costs of capital. Any such restructuring also could have a significant impact on the Company s
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. The Company cannot predict when it will be subject to changes in
legislation or regulation, nor can it predict the impact of these changes on the Company s consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. The Company believes that the prices for electricity and the quality and reliability of the Company s service currently place us in a
position to compete effectively in the energy market. These developments at the federal and state levels are described in more detail in Note 18
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. OG&E is also subject to competition in various degrees from state-owned electric systems,
municipally-owned electric systems, rural electric cooperatives and, in certain respects, from other private utilities, power marketers and
cogenerators. OG&E has a franchise to serve in more than 270 towns and cities throughout its service territory. In a citywide election in May
2006, Oklahoma City voters approved a 25-year franchise for OG&E which is the largest city in OG&E s service territory.

61

119



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

Commitments and Contingencies

Except as disclosed otherwise in this Form 10-K, management, after consultation with legal counsel, does not currently anticipate that liabilities
arising out of these pending or threatened lawsuits, claims and contingencies will have a material adverse effect on the Company s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Notes 17 and 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 3 of Part I in
this Form 10-K for a discussion of the Company s commitments and contingencies.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risks are, in most cases, risks that are actively traded in a marketplace and have been well studied in regards to quantification. Market
risks include, but are not limited to, changes in commodity prices, commodity price volatilities and interest rates. The Company is exposed to
commodity price and commodity price volatility risks in its operations. The Company s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to
short-term variable-rate debt, interest rate swap agreements, treasury lock agreements and commercial paper. The Company also engages in
price risk management activities for both trading and non-trading purposes.

Risk Committees and Oversight

The Company monitors market risks using a risk committee structure. The Risk Oversight Committee, which consists primarily of corporate
officers, is responsible for the overall development, implementation and enforcement of strategies and policies for all risk management activities
of the Company. This committee s emphasis is a holistic perspective of risk measurement and policies targeting the Company s overall financial
performance. The Risk Oversight Committee is authorized by, and reports quarterly to, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Unregulated Business Unit Risk Management Committee is comprised primarily of business unit leaders within Enogex. This committee s
purpose is to develop and maintain risk policies for Enogex, to provide oversight and guidance for existing and prospective Enogex business
activities and to provide governance regarding compliance with Enogex risk policies. This group is authorized by and reports to the Risk
Oversight Committee.

The Company also has a Corporate Risk Management Department led by our Chief Risk and Compliance Officer. This group, in conjunction
with the aforementioned committees, is responsible for establishing and enforcing the Company s risk policies.

Risk Policies

The Company utilizes risk policies to control the amount of market risk exposure. These policies, which include value-at-risk ( VaR ) limits,
position limits, tenor limits and stop loss limits, are designed to provide the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and senior executives of
the Company with confidence that the risks taken on by the Company s business activities are in accordance with their expectations for financial
returns and that the approved policies and controls related to risk management are being followed.

Interest Rate Risk
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The Company s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to short-term debt, interest rate swap agreements, treasury lock agreements
and commercial paper. The Company manages its interest rate exposure by limiting its variable-rate debt to a certain percentage of total
capitalization and by monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates. The Company utilizes interest rate derivatives to alter interest

rate exposure in an attempt to reduce interest expense related to existing debt issues. Interest rate derivatives are used solely to modify interest
rate exposure and not to modify the overall leverage of the debt portfolio.

Cash Flow Hedge of Interest Rates

OG&E entered into a treasury lock agreement, effective November 17, 2006, to hedge interest payments on the first $50.0 million of long-term
debt that is expected to be issued during the first half of 2007. This treasury lock expires March 29, 2007.

The fair value of the Company s long-term debt is based on quoted market prices and management s estimate of current rates available for similar
issues with similar maturities. At December 31, 2006, the Company had no outstanding
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interest rate swap agreements. The following table shows the Company s long-term debt maturities and the weighted-average interest rates by
maturity date.

Year ended December 31 12/31/06
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Fixed-rate debt (A)

Principal amount $ 3.0 $ 1.0 $ - $400.0 $ - $ 810.0 $1,214.0 $1,2542
Weighted-average

interest rate 8.28% 7.07% 8.13% - 6.05% 6.74%
Variable-rate debt (B)

Principal amount - --- --- -—- -—- $ 135.4 $ 1354 $ 1354
Weighted-average

interest rate - - - --- --- 3.56% 3.56% -

(A) Prior to or when these debt obligations mature, the Company may refinance all or a portion of such debt at then-existing market interest rates
which may be more or less than the interest rates on the maturing debt.

(B) A hypothetical change of 100 basis points in the underlying variable interest rate would change interest expense by approximately $1.4
million annually.
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The Company s price risk management assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

December 31 (In millions)

TRADING

Price Risk Management Assets
Physical Purchases

Physical Purchases

Total Physical Purchases

Physical Sales
Short Physical Options
Short Financial Swaps (excluding basis)

Long Basis Positions
Long Basis Positions
Long Basis Positions
Total Long Basis Positions

Short Basis Positions
Total Trading Price Risk Management Assets

TRADING

Price Risk Management Liabilities
Physical Purchases

Physical Purchases

Total Physical Purchases

Physical Sales
Long Physical Options
Long Financial Swaps (excluding basis)

Short Basis Positions
Short Basis Positions
Short Basis Positions
Total Short Basis Positions

Total Trading Price Risk Management Liabilities

NON-TRADING

Price Risk Management Assets
Treasury Lock

Short Financial Swaps (excluding basis)

Total Non-Trading Price Risk Management Assets

NON-TRADING
Price Risk Management Liabilities
Short Basis Positions

Total Non-Trading Price Risk Management Liabilities

Commodity

Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas

Natural Gas
Natural Gas

Natural Gas

Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Natural Gas

Natural Gas
Natural Gas

Interest Rates
Natural Gas

Natural Gas

Notional Volume
(MMBtu)

12.4
1.5
24.7
39.9
0.4
15.0

2.8
0.9

1.2

19.1
0.5
9.1
1.5
0.3
11.0

33
0.9

N/A
0.1

0.2

Maturity

2007

2007

2008

2007

2007

2007

2007

2008
2009

2007

2007
2008

2007

2007

2007
2008
2009

2007
2007

2007

Fair Value

$14
0.3
1.7
28.1

2.7

7.6
1.1
0.2
8.9
0.1

$42.6

$1.7
0.3
2.0

33
0.5
0.3
4.1

$10.1

$09
0.1

$1.0

$0.2

$0.2
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The valuation of the Company s price risk management assets and liabilities were determined primarily based on quoted market prices. However,
in certain instances where market quotes are not available, other valuation techniques or models are used to estimate market values. The

valuation of instruments also considers the credit risk of the counterparties and the potential impact of liquidating the position in an orderly
manner over a reasonable period of time.

Commodity Price Risk

The market risks inherent in the Company s market risk sensitive instruments, positions and anticipated commodity transactions are the potential
losses in value arising from adverse changes in the commodity prices to which the Company is exposed. These market risks can be classified as
trading, which includes transactions that are entered into voluntarily to
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capture subsequent changes in commodity prices, or non-trading, which includes the exposure some of the Company s assets have to commodity
prices.

Trading Activities

The trading activities are conducted throughout the year subject to daily and monthly trading stop loss limits set by the Risk Oversight
Committee. Those trading stop loss limits currently are $2.5 million. The daily loss exposure from trading activities is measured primarily using
VaR, which estimates the potential losses the trading activities could incur over a specified time horizon and confidence level. The VaR limit set
by the Risk Oversight Committee for the Company s trading activities, assuming a one day time horizon and 95 percent confidence level,
currently is $1.5 million. These limits are designed to mitigate the possibility of trading activities having a material adverse effect on the
Company s operating income.

A sensitivity analysis has been prepared to estimate the Company s exposure to market risk created by trading activities. The value of trading
positions is a summation of the fair values calculated for each commodity by valuing each net position at quoted market prices. Market risk is
estimated as the potential loss in fair value resulting from a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change in quoted market prices over the next 12
months. The result of this analysis, which may differ from actual results, is as follows for 2006.

(In millions) Trading

Commodity market risk, net $0.1

Non-Trading Activities

The prices of natural gas, natural gas liquids and natural gas liquids processing spreads are subject to fluctuations resulting from changes in
supply and demand. The changes in these prices have a direct effect on the compensation received by the Company for operating some of its
assets. To partially reduce non-trading commodity price risk, the Company hedges, through the utilization of derivatives and other forward
transactions, the effects these market fluctuations have on the operating income of the Company. Because the commodities covered by these
hedges are substantially the same commodities that the Company buys and sells in the physical market, no special studies other than monitoring
the degree of correlation between the derivative and cash markets are deemed necessary.

A sensitivity analysis has been prepared to estimate the Company s exposure to the market risk of the Company s non-trading activities. The
Company s daily net commodity position consists of natural gas inventories, commodity purchase and sales contracts, financial and commodity
derivative instruments and anticipated natural gas processing spreads and fuel recoveries. Quoted market prices are not available for all of the
Company s non-trading positions, therefore, the value of non-trading positions is a summation of the forecasted values calculated for each
commodity based upon internally generated forecast prices. Market risk is estimated as the potential loss in fair value resulting from a
hypothetical 10 percent adverse change in such prices over the next 12 months. The result of this analysis, which may differ from actual results,
is as follows for 2006.

(In millions) Non-Trading

Commodity market risk, net $10.8
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The Company may designate certain derivative instruments for the purchase or sale of physical commodities, purchase or sale of electric power
and fuel procurement as normal purchases and normal sales contracts under the provisions of SFAS No. 133. Normal purchases and normal sales
contracts are not recorded in Price Risk Management assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and earnings recognition is recorded
in the period in which physical delivery of the commodity occurs. The Company applies normal purchases and normal sales to (i) commodity
contracts for the purchase and sale of natural gas by its subsidiaries, Enogex Inc. and Enogex Gas Gathering, L.L.C.; (ii) commodity contracts
for the sale of natural gas liquids produced by its subsidiary, Enogex Products Corporation; (iii) electric power contracts by OG&E; and (iv) fuel
procurement by OG&E.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk includes the risk that counterparties that owe us money or energy will breach their obligations. If the counterparties to these
arrangements fail to perform, we may be forced to enter into alternative arrangements. In that event, our financial results could be adversely
affected and we could incur losses.

For OG&E, new business customers are required to provide a security deposit in the form of cash, a bond or irrevocable letter of credit that is
refunded when the account is closed. New residential customers, whose outside credit scores indicate risk, are required to provide a security
deposit that is refunded after 12 months of good payment history based on the applicable utility regulation. The payment behavior of all existing
customers is continuously monitored and, if the payment behavior indicates sufficient risk within the meaning of the applicable utility
regulation, customers will be required to provide a security deposit.

Enogex maintains credit policies with regard to its counterparties that management believes minimize overall credit risk. These policies include
the evaluation of a potential counterparty s financial condition (including credit rating), collateral requirements under certain circumstances and
the use of standardized agreements that provide for the netting of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. Enogex also monitors the
financial condition of existing counterparties on an ongoing basis.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31 (In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004
OPERATING REVENUES

Electric Utility operating revenues $ 1,745.7 $ 1,720.7 $ 1,578.1
Natural Gas Pipeline operating revenues 2,259.9 4,190.8 3,284.5
Total operating revenues 4,005.6 5911.5 4,862.6
COST OF GOODS SOLD (exclusive of depreciation shown below)

Electric Utility cost of goods sold 902.5 946.6 869.1
Natural Gas Pipeline cost of goods sold 2,000.0 3,995.7 3,068.6
Total cost of goods sold 2,902.5 4,942.3 3,937.7
Gross margin on revenues 1,103.1 969.2 924.9

Other operation and maintenance 416.6 394.9 384.2
Depreciation 181.4 182.6 172.1
Impairment of assets 0.3 - 7.8

Taxes other than income 72.1 69.3 66.3
OPERATING INCOME 432.7 3224 294.5
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Interest income 6.2 35 4.9
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4.1 - 0.9

Other income (loss) 16.3 0.3) 10.5

Other expense (16.7) 5.5) 4.7)

Net other income (expense) 9.9 2.3) 11.6
INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on long-term debt 874 80.0 69.4
Interest expense unconsolidated affiliate --- - 13.7
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 4.5) 2.2) (1.7)
Interest on short-term debt and other interest charges 13.1 12.5 9.4

Interest expense 96.0 90.3 90.8
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES 346.6 229.8 215.3
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 120.5 68.6 73.4
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 226.1 161.2 141.9
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NOTE 8)

Income from discontinued operations 59.1 84.2 18.6
Income tax expense 23.1 344 7.0

Income from discontinued operations 36.0 49.8 11.6

NET INCOME $ 262.1 $ 211.0 $ 153.5
BASIC AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 91.0 90.3 88.0
DILUTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 92.1 90.8 88.5

BASIC EARNINGS PER AVERAGE COMMON SHARE

Income from continuing operations $ 2.48 $ 1.79 $ 1.61
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 0.40 0.55 0.13

NET INCOME $ 2.88 $ 2.34 $ 1.74
DILUTED EARNINGS PER AVERAGE COMMON SHARE

Income from continuing operations $ 2.45 $ 1.77 $ 1.60
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 0.39 0.55 0.13

NET INCOME $ 2.84 $ 2.32 $ 1.73
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE $ 1.3375 $ 1.33 $ 1.33

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 47.9 $ 26.4
Funds on deposit 32.0 -
Accounts receivable, net 344.3 591.4
Accrued unbilled revenues 39.7 41.8
Fuel inventories 65.6 63.6
Materials and supplies, at average cost 58.7 56.5
Price risk management 41.9 116.5
Gas imbalances 2.8 32.0
Accumulated deferred tax assets 10.6 14.3
Fuel clause under recoveries --- 101.1
Prepayments 9.0 10.6
Other 11.6 19.4
Total current assets 664.1 1,073.6
OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS, at cost 35.2 29.2
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In service 6,307.7 5,999.4
Construction work in progress 191.1 101.8
Total property, plant and equipment 6,498.8 6,101.2
Less accumulated depreciation 2,631.3 2,568.7
Net property, plant and equipment 3,867.5 3,532.5
In service of discontinued operations --- 60.6
Less accumulated depreciation --- 25.7
Net property, plant and equipment of discontinued operations --- 349
Net property, plant and equipment 3,867.5 3,567.4
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS

Income taxes recoverable from customers, net 31.1 32.8
Regulatory asset - SFAS 158 231.1 ---
Intangible asset - unamortized prior service cost --- 32.8
Prepaid benefit obligation - 90.2
Price risk management 1.7 9.0
McClain Plant deferred expenses 18.7 24.9
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 20.1 21.3
Unamortized debt issuance costs 9.4 8.1
Other 23.1 7.2
Deferred charges and other assets of discontinued operations --- 2.4
Total deferred charges and other assets 335.2 228.7
TOTAL ASSETS $ 49020 $ 48989

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

December 31 (In millions)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term debt

Accounts payable

Dividends payable

Customers deposits

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest

Accrued compensation

Long-term debt due within one year
Price risk management

Gas imbalances

Fuel clause over recoveries

Other

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 17)

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension and benefit obligations
Accumulated deferred income taxes

Accumulated deferred investment tax credits
Accrued removal obligations, net

Price risk management

Other

Total deferred credits and other liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stockholders equity

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Total stockholders equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2006

231.3
859.2
26.8
125.5
1.1
35.0
1,278.9

741.0
890.8
(28.0)
1,603.8

$  4,902.0

2005

$ 30.0
510.4

30.1

47.8

67.1

31.9

40.3

109.5

36.0

47.5
950.6

1,350.8

234.5
807.1
31.7
114.3
10.7
23.4
1,221.7

715.5
750.5
(90.2)
1,375.8

$ 4,8989
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

December 31 (In millions)

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; authorized 125.0 shares;
and outstanding 91.2 and 90.6 shares, respectively

Premium on capital stock

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total stockholders equity

LONG-TERM DEBT
SERIES DATE DUE

Senior Notes - OGE Energy Corp.

5.00 % Senior Notes, Series Due November 15, 2014

Unamortized discount

Senior Notes - OG&E

5.15 % Senior Notes, Series Due January 15, 2016
6.50 % Senior Notes, Series Due July 15, 2017
6.65 % Senior Notes, Series Due July 15, 2027
6.50 % Senior Notes, Series Due April 15, 2028
6.50 % Senior Notes, Series Due August 1, 2034
5.75 % Senior Notes, Series Due January 15, 2036

Other Bonds - OG&E

3.11% - 4.05% Garfield Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025
3.20% - 4.13% Muskogee Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025
3.03% - 4.06% Muskogee Industrial Authority, June 1, 2027
Other long-term debt (NOTE 14)

Unamortized discount

Enogex Notes

8.28% Medium-Term Notes, Series Due 2007
7.07% Medium-Term Notes, Series Due 2008
8.125% Medium-Term Notes, Series Due 2010

Unamortized swap monetization

Total long-term debt

Less long-term debt due within one year

Total long-term debt (excluding long-term debt due within one year)

Total Capitalization

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2006

$ 0.9
740.1

890.8

(28.0)

1,603.8

100.0
0.7)

110.0
125.0
125.0
100.0
140.0
110.0

47.0
324
56.0

2.1)

3.0
1.0
400.0

2.7
1,349.3
3.0
1,346.3

$ 2,950.1

2005

$ 0.9
714.6

750.5

(90.2)

1,375.8

100.0
(0.8)

125.0
125.0
100.0
140.0

47.0
324
56.0

220.0

(1.4)

3.0
1.0
400.0

3.6
1,350.8

1,350.8

$ 2,726.6
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD $ 750.5 $ 659.8
ADD: Net income 262.1 211.0

Total 1,012.6 870.8
DEDUCT: Dividends declared on common stock 121.8 120.3
BALANCE AT END OF PERIOD $ 890.8 $ 750.5
OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005

Net income $ 262.1 $ 211.0
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Minimum pension liability adjustment [$148.6, ($30.0) and ($21.2) pre-tax,
respectively] 91.1 (18.4)
Deferred hedging gains (losses) [$4.1, $4.7 and ($1.1) pre-tax, respectively] 2.5 2.9
Reversal of unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities [($0.6) pre-tax] - -
Settlement and amortization of cash flow hedge [$0.5, $0.5, and ($4.0)

pre-tax, respectively]

0.3 0.3
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 93.9 (15.2)
Total comprehensive income $ 356.0 $ 195.8

2004

$ 623.9
153.5
777.4
117.6

$ 659.8

2004

$ 153.5

(13.0)
0.7
0.4)

(2.5)
(16.6)

$ 136.9
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The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from continuing operations $ 226.1 $ 161.2

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net

cash provided from operating activities

Depreciation 1814 182.6
Impairment of assets 0.3 -
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 323 21.9
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4.1) -
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (1.6) 0.1
Loss on retirement of fixed assets 6.0 -
Stock-based compensation expense 3.8 0.9
Excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation (1.4) -
Price risk management assets 81.9 (62.6)
Price risk management liabilities (101.7) 80.1
Other assets (73.4) 6.4)
Other liabilities 12.3 2.9)
Change in certain current assets and liabilities

Funds on deposit (32.0) ---
Accounts receivable, net 247.1 (106.9)
Accrued unbilled revenues 2.1 3.7
Fuel, materials and supplies inventories 4.4) 22.1
Gas imbalance asset 29.2 67.8
Fuel clause under recoveries 101.1 (46.8)
Other current assets 9.3 12.4
Accounts payable (215.4) 40.1
Customers deposits 5.6 0.5)
Accrued taxes (7.2) 53.9
Accrued interest 5.8 0.9)
Accrued compensation 5.7 2.9
Gas imbalance liability (24.9) 19.7
Fuel clause over recoveries 96.3 -
Other current liabilities (10.7) 4.5)
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities 569.5 4379

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (less allowance for equity funds used during construction)

(486.6) (297.2)
Proceeds from sale of assets 3.2 5.8
Other investing activities 0.1) 0.1
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (483.5) (291.3)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt 217.5 -
Retirement of long-term debt - (254.3)
(Decrease) increase in short-term debt, net (250.0) 125.0
Issuance of common stock 14.5 14.7
Excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation 14 -
Dividends paid on common stock (120.8) (120.0)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 137.4) (234.6)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash (used in) provided from operating activities 19.9) (43.0)
Net cash provided from (used in) investing activities 92.8 146.4
Net cash used in financing activities --- 0.1)
Net Cash Provided from Discontinued Operations 72.9 103.3

2004

$ 141.9

(136.5)
(7.5)
52.5
(29.8)
(50.3)
10.0
194.2
6.7
4.5)
0.7
0.7
6.5)
(32.4)
11.1
344.2

(428.6)
9.2
0.7
(418.7)

186.0
(206.2)
(77.5)
62.5
(114.6)
(149.8)

474
3.1)
(21.4)
22.9
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NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21.5 15.3
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 264 11.1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 47.9 $ 26.4

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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(201.4)

212.5
$

11.1
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OGE ENERGY CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

OGE Energy Corp. (collectively, with its subsidiaries, the Company ) is an energy and energy services provider offering physical delivery and
related services for both electricity and natural gas primarily in the south central United States. The Company conducts these activities through
two business segments, the Electric Utility and the Natural Gas Pipeline segments. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Electric Utility segment generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. Its operations are

conducted through Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company ( OG&E ) and are subject to regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission

( OCC ), the Arkansas Public Service Commission ( APSC ) and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ( FERC ). OG&E was incorporated in
1902 under the laws of the Oklahoma Territory. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma and its franchised service territory includes the

Fort Smith, Arkansas area. OG&E sold its retail gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the gas distribution business.

The operations of the Natural Gas Pipeline segment are conducted through Enogex Inc. and its subsidiaries ( Enogex ) and consist of three related
businesses: (i) the transportation and storage of natural gas, (ii) the gathering and processing of natural gas and (iii) the marketing of natural gas.
The vast majority of Enogex s natural gas gathering, processing, transportation and storage assets are located in the major gas producing basins

of Oklahoma. In May 2006, Enogex Gas Gathering, L.L.C. ( Gathering ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enogex Inc., sold certain gas gathering
assets in the Kinta, Oklahoma, area, which have been reported as discontinued operations in the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements
(see Note 8 for a further discussion). In December 2006, Enogex entered into a joint venture arrangement with a third party. The joint venture,
Atoka Midstream, LLC, intends to construct, own and operate a gathering system and processing plant and related facilities relating to

production in certain areas in southeastern Oklahoma. Enogex holds its 50 percent membership interest in Atoka Midstream LLC through

Enogex Atoka LL.C ( Enogex Atoka ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enogex Inc. Enogex Atoka will act as the managing member and operator
of the facilities owned by the joint venture.

The Company allocates operating costs to its affiliates based on several factors. Operating costs directly related to specific affiliates are assigned

to those affiliates. Where more than one affiliate benefits from certain expenditures, the costs are shared between those affiliates receiving the
benefits. Operating costs incurred for the benefit of all affiliates are allocated among the affiliates, based primarily upon head-count, occupancy,
usage or the Distrigas method. The Distrigas method is a three-factor formula that uses an equal weighting of payroll, net operating revenues and
gross property, plant and equipment. The Company adopted the Distrigas method in January 1996 as a result of a recommendation by the OCC
Staff. The Company believes this method provides a reasonable basis for allocating common expenses.

Accounting Records

The accounting records of OG&E are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the FERC and adopted by

the OCC and the APSC. Additionally, OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to the accounting principles prescribed by the Financial

Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types
of Regulation. SFAS No. 71 provides that certain actual or anticipated costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as

regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would
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otherwise reduce expense can be deferred as regulatory liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management s
expected recovery of deferred costs and flowback of deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators granting such
ratemaking treatment.

OG&E records certain actual or anticipated costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if it is probable, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, that the cost or obligation will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund in future rates.

73

140



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

The following table is a summary of OG&E s regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31:

December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
Regulatory Assets

Regulatory asset - SFAS 158 $ 231.1 $ -
Income taxes recoverable from customers, net 31.1 32.8
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 20.1 21.3
McClain Plant deferred expenses 18.7 24.9
Pension plan expenses 14.7 -
Cogeneration credit rider under recovery 31 3.7

Fuel clause under recoveries --- 101.1
Recoverable take or pay gas charges --- 4.9
Miscellaneous 0.4 0.5

Total Regulatory Assets $ 319.2 $ 189.2
Regulatory Liabilities

Accrued removal obligations, net $ 125.5 $ 114.3
Fuel clause over recoveries 96.3 -
Deferred gain on sale of assets 2.7 3.8

Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 224.5 $ 118.1

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R, effective December 31, 2006, which requires the Company to separately disclose the items that
have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic pension cost including, net loss, prior service cost and net transition obligation at
December 31, 2006. For companies not subject to SFAS No. 71, SFAS No. 158 required this information to be included in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income. However, for companies subject to SFAS No. 71, this information is allowed to be recorded as a regulatory asset if: (i)
the utility has historically recovered and currently recovers pension and postretirement benefit plan expense in its electric rates; and (ii) there is
no negative evidence that the existing regulatory treatment will change. Therefore, OG&E has recorded the net loss, prior service cost and net
transition obligation as a regulatory asset as these expenses are probable of future recovery. If, in the future, the regulatory bodies indicated a
change in policy related to the recovery of pension and postretirement benefit plan expenses, this could cause the SFAS No. 158 regulatory asset
balance to be reclassified to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

The components of the SFAS No. 158 regulatory asset at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

December 31 (In millions) 2006
Defined benefit pension plan:

Net loss $ 1299
Prior service cost 21.9
Defined benefit postretirement plans:

Net loss 60.3

Net transition obligation 15.2

Prior service cost 3.8

Total $ 2311

The following amounts in the SFAS No. 158 regulatory asset at December 31, 2006 are expected to be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost in 2007:

Defined benefit pension plan:
Net loss $ 8.1
Prior service cost 4.7
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Defined benefit postretirement plans:

Net loss

Net transition obligation
Prior service cost

Total
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54
2.5
1.5
$

22.2
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Income taxes recoverable from customers represent income tax benefits previously used to reduce OG&E s revenues. These amounts
are being recovered in rates as the temporary differences that generated the income tax benefit turn around. The provisions of SFAS No. 71
allowed OG&E to treat these amounts as regulatory assets and liabilities and they are being amortized over the estimated remaining life of the
assets to which they relate. The income tax related regulatory assets and liabilities are netted on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets in
the line item, Income Taxes Recoverable from Customers, Net. The OCC authorized approximately $30.1 million of the $32.8 million regulatory
asset balance at December 31, 2005 to be included in OG&E s rate base for purposes of earning a return.

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt is comprised of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the early retirement of OG&E s long-term debt.
These amounts are being amortized over the term of the long-term debt which replaced the previous long-term debt. The unamortized loss on
reacquired debt is not included in OG&E s rate base and does not otherwise earn a rate of return.

As aresult of the acquisition of a 77 percent interest in the 520 megawatt ( MW ) natural gas-fired combined cycle NRG McClain Station (the

McClain Plant ) completed on July 9, 2004, and consistent with the 2002 agreed-upon settlement of an OG&E rate case (the 2002 Settlement
Agreement ) with the OCC, OG&E had the right to accrue a regulatory asset, for a period not to exceed 12 months subsequent to the acquisition
and operation of the McClain Plant, consisting of the non-fuel operation and maintenance expenses, depreciation, cost of debt associated with
the investment and ad valorem taxes. At December 31, 2005, the McClain Plant regulatory asset was approximately $24.9 million which is being
recovered over a four-year time period as authorized in the OCC rate order which began in January 2006. The OCC authorized approximately
$15.5 million of the $24.9 million regulatory asset balance at December 31, 2005 to be included in OG&E s rate base for purposes of earning a
return.

In accordance with the OCC order received by OG&E in December 2005 in its Oklahoma rate case, OG&E was allowed to recover a certain
amount of pension plan expenses. At December 31, 2006, there was approximately $14.7 million of expenses exceeding this level primarily
related to a pension settlement charge recorded by the Company during the fourth quarter of 2006 (see Note 15 for a further discussion). These
excess amounts have been recorded as a regulatory asset as OG&E believes these expenses are probable of future recovery.

In January 2005, a cogeneration credit rider was implemented at OG&E as part of the Oklahoma retail customer electric rates in order to return
purchase power capacity payment reductions and any change in operating and maintenance expense related to cogeneration previously included

in base rates to OG&E s customers. The balance of the cogeneration credit rider under recovery was approximately $3.1 million and $3.7 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005. OG&E s cogeneration credit rider has been updated and approved by the OCC in December of
each year through December 2006 and any over/under recovery of the cogeneration credit rider in the current year and prior periods has been
automatically included in the next year s rider. OG&E s current cogeneration credit rider expired December 31, 2006. The 2007 cogeneration
credit rider is approximately $80.7 million and the total under recovery through 2006 was approximately $3.1 million. OG&E expects to file an
application with the OCC in late 2007 to request a cogeneration credit for years after 2007. The cogeneration credit rider under recovery was not
included in OG&E s rate base and did not otherwise earn a rate of return. The cogeneration credit rider under recovery is included in Other
Current Assets on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Fuel clause under recoveries are generated from under recoveries from OG&E s customers when OG&E s cost of fuel exceeds the amount billed
to its customers. Fuel clause over recoveries are generated from over recoveries from OG&E s customers when the amount billed to its customers
exceeds OG&E s cost of fuel. OG&E s fuel recovery clauses are designed to smooth the impact of fuel price volatility on customers bills. As a
result, OG&E typically under recovers fuel cost in periods of rising prices above the baseline charge for fuel and over recovers fuel cost when
prices decline below the baseline charge for fuel. Provisions in the fuel clauses allow OG&E to amortize under or over recovery. In accordance
with the OCC order received by OG&E in December 2005 in its rate case, beginning in January 2006, OG&E s mechanism for the recovery of
over or under recovered fuel costs from its customers was modified to allow interest to be applied to the over or under recovery. As described in
more detail in Note 18, the OCC, in its order dated December 12, 2005, granted OG&E a $42.3 million annual increase in the rates charged by
OG&E to its retail customers in Oklahoma. These increased rates became effective in January 2006 pursuant to approved tariffs filed with the
OCC. In January 2007, OG&E determined that the approved tariffs had inadvertently authorized OG&E to collect, and OG&E had collected,
approximately $26.7 million of additional fuel-related revenues during 2006 that was not intended by the December 12, 2005 order. As a result,
OG&E filed with the OCC in January 2007 amendments to its previously-authorized tariffs, in order to cease recovery of the fuel-related
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revenues not intended by the December 12, 2005 order. The $26.7 million, plus $1.2 million of interest, was recorded as a liability under Fuel
Clause Over Recoveries on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the fourth quarter of 2006,
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and such amounts, along with other Fuel Clause Over Recoveries, will be credited to OG&E s Oklahoma customers in 2007 and 2008 through
OG&E s automatic fuel adjustment clause. In addition, OG&E recorded a reduction in operating revenues of approximately $26.7 million and an
increase in interest expense of approximately $0.5 million, which resulted in an after tax reduction in net income of approximately $16.7 million
in the fourth quarter of 2006. Because the rate increase authorized in the December 2005 order was not implemented until January 2006 and the
tariffs were corrected effective December 31, 2006, the $26.7 million had no impact on net income for the year ended December 31, 2006. See
additional discussion in Supplementary Data  Interim Consolidated Financial Information (Unaudited).

Accrued removal obligations represent asset retirement costs previously recovered from ratepayers for other than legal obligations. In
accordance with SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, OG&E was required to reclassify its accrued removal
obligations, which had previously been recorded as a liability in Accumulated Depreciation, to a regulatory liability.

During 2004, OG&E sold assets including its interest in certain natural gas producing properties and the sale of land near the Company s
principal executive offices for a gain of approximately $3.5 million. During 2005, OG&E sold certain assets for a gain of approximately $0.3
million. In December 2005, the OCC order in OG&E s Oklahoma rate case required that any previously recognized gain in 2004 related to the
sale of assets should be returned to customers through electric rates at a rate of approximately $1.3 million annually. During 2005, OG&E
reversed these gains and reclassified them to Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities as a regulatory liability. OG&E recorded gains from
the sale of assets in 2005 and 2006 in a similar manner and expects to continue that treatment for future gains from the sale of assets.

Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory assets. When in management s judgment future recovery becomes
impaired, the amount of the regulatory asset is reduced or written off, as appropriate. If the Company were required to discontinue the
application of SFAS No. 71 for some or all of its operations, it could result in writing off the related regulatory assets; the financial effects of
which could be significant.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes to these assumptions and estimates could have a material affect
on the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements particularly as they relate to pension expense and impairment estimates. However, the
Company believes it has taken reasonable, but conservative, positions where assumptions and estimates are used in order to minimize the
negative financial impact to the Company that could result if actual results vary from the assumptions and estimates. In management s opinion,
the areas of the Company where the most significant judgment is exercised is in the valuation of pension plan assumptions, impairment
estimates, contingency reserves, asset retirement obligations, fair value and cash flow hedges, regulatory assets and liabilities, unbilled revenues
for OG&E, operating revenues for Enogex, natural gas purchases for Enogex, the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable and the
valuation of energy purchase and sale contracts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.
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The Company s cash management program utilizes controlled disbursement banking arrangements. Outstanding checks in excess of cash
balances were approximately $45.0 million and $55.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are classified as Accounts
Payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Sufficient funds were available to fund these outstanding checks when they were presented for
payment.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

For OG&E, customer balances are generally written off if not collected within six months after the final billing date. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable for OG&E is calculated by multiplying the last six months of electric revenue by the provision rate. The
provision rate is based on a 12-month historical average of actual balances written off. To the extent the historical collection rates are not

representative of future collections, there could be an effect on the amount of uncollectible expense recognized. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable for Enogex is calculated based on outstanding accounts receivable balances over 180 days old. In addition, other outstanding

accounts receivable balances less

76

146



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

than 180 days old are reserved on a case-by-case basis when the Company believes the required payment of specific amounts owed is unlikely to
occur. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was approximately $4.4 million and $3.7 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

For OG&E, new business customers are required to provide a security deposit in the form of cash, bond or irrevocable letter of credit that is
refunded when the account is closed. New residential customers, whose outside credit scores indicate risk, are required to provide a security
deposit that is refunded after 12 months of good payment history based on the applicable utility regulation. The payment behavior of all existing
customers is continuously monitored and if, the payment behavior indicates sufficient risk within the meaning of the applicable utility
regulation, customers will be required to provide a security deposit.

For Enogex, credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Enogex if counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. Enogex maintains
credit policies with regard to its counterparties that management believes minimize overall credit risk. These policies include the evaluation of a
potential counterparty s financial condition (including credit rating), collateral requirements under certain circumstances and the use of
standardized agreements which provide for the netting of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. Enogex also monitors the financial
condition of existing counterparties on an ongoing basis.

Fuel Inventories

OG&E

Fuel inventories for the generation of electricity consist of coal, natural gas and oil. These inventories are accounted for under the last-in,
first-out ( LIFO ) cost method. The estimated replacement cost of fuel inventories was higher than the stated LIFO cost by approximately $13.7
million and $19.1 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively, based on the average cost of fuel purchased. The amount of fuel inventory was
approximately $29.7 million and $27.9 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Enogex

Natural gas inventory is held by Enogex Inc. and OGE Energy Resources, Inc. ( OERI ). Enogex Inc. maintains of natural gas inventory to
provide operational support for its pipeline deliveries. As part of its recurring business activity, OERI injects and withdraws natural gas in to and
out of inventory under the terms of its storage capacity contracts. In order to mitigate market price exposures, OERI enters into contracts or
hedging instruments to protect the cash flows associated with its inventory. OERI has elected not to designate inventory hedging contracts as fair
value or cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended. The fair value of
the hedging instruments is recorded on the books of OERI as a Price Risk Management asset or liability with an offsetting gain or loss recorded
in current earnings. All natural gas inventory held by Enogex is recorded at the lower of cost or market. During 2006, Enogex recorded
write-downs to market value related to natural gas storage inventory of approximately $18.7 million. The amount of Enogex s natural gas
inventory was approximately $35.9 million and $35.7 million at December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively. Natural gas storage inventory is
presented in Fuel Inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Cost of Goods Sold on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Gas Imbalances
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Gas imbalances occur when the actual amounts of natural gas delivered from or received by Enogex s pipeline system differ from the amounts
scheduled to be delivered or received. Imbalances are due to or due from shippers and operators and can be settled in cash or made up in-kind.
Enogex values all imbalances at an average of current market indices applicable to Enogex s operations, not to exceed net realizable value. Also
included in Gas Imbalances on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are planned or managed imbalances related to OERI s business, referred to as
park and loan transactions. Park and loan assets were approximately $15.7 million at December 31, 2005 and park and loan liabilities were
approximately $10.2 million at December 31, 2005. There were no park and loan assets or liabilities at December 31, 2006. Operational
imbalance assets were approximately $2.8 million and $16.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and operational imbalance
liabilities were approximately $11.1 million and $25.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

OG&E

All property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Newly constructed plant is added to plant balances at cost which includes contracted
services, direct labor, materials, overhead, transportation costs and the allowance for funds used during construction ( AFUDC ). Replacements of
units of property are capitalized as plant. For assets that belong to a common plant account, the replaced plant is removed from plant balances

and the cost of such property less net salvage is charged to Accumulated Depreciation. For assets that do not belong to a common plant account,
the replaced plant is removed from plant balances with the related accumulated depreciation and the remaining balance is recorded as a loss in

the Consolidated Statements of Income as Other Expense. Repair and replacement of minor items of property are included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income as Other Operation and Maintenance Expense.

OG&E owns a 77 percent in the McClain Plant and, as disclosed below, only OG&E s 77 percent interest is reflected in the balances in the table
below. The owner of the remaining 23 percent interest in the McClain Plant is the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority ( OMPA ). OG&E and
the OMPA are responsible for providing their own financing of capital expenditures. Also, only OG&E s proportionate interest of any direct
expenses of the McClain Plant such as fuel, maintenance expense and other operating expenses is included in the applicable financial statements
captions in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The balance of OG&E s interest in the McClain Plant asset is approximately $176.2 million
and $174.0 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The accumulated depreciation associated with OG&E s interest in the McClain
Plant is approximately $24.9 million and $14.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Enogex

All property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Newly constructed plant is added to plant balances at cost which includes contracted
services, direct labor, materials, overhead, transportation costs and capitalized interest. Replacements of units of property are capitalized as
plant. For assets that belong to a common plant account, the replaced plant is removed from plant balances and charged to Accumulated
Depreciation. For assets that do not belong to a common plant account, the replaced plant is removed from plant balances with the related
accumulated depreciation and the remaining balance is recorded as a loss in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Other Expense. Repair
and removal costs are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Other Operation and Maintenance Expense.

The Company s property, plant and equipment are divided into the following major classes at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
OGE Energy Corp. (holding company)

Property, plant and equipment $ 80.7 $ 76.3
OGE Energy Corp. property, plant and equipment 80.7 76.3
OG&E

Distribution assets 2,205.3 2,080.6
Electric generation assets 2,057.4 1,907.1
Transmission assets 663.2 610.2
Intangible plant 32.0 8.6
Other property and equipment 196.5 2214
OG&E property, plant and equipment 5,154.4 4,827.9
Enogex
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Transportation and storage assets
Gathering and processing assets
Marketing assets

Enogex property, plant and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
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691.5
564.6

7.6

1,263.7

$ 64988

683.6

505.9

7.5

1,197.0

$ 6,101.2
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Depreciation

OG&E

The provision for depreciation, which was approximately 2.7 percent and 3.0 percent, respectively, of the average depreciable utility plant for
2006 and 2005, is provided on a straight-line method over the estimated service life of the utility assets. Depreciation is provided at the unit level
for production plant and at the account or sub-account level for all other plant, and is based on the average life group method. In 2007, the
provision for depreciation is projected to be approximately 2.7 percent of the average depreciable utility plant. Amortization of intangibles other
than debt costs is computed using the straight-line method. Approximately 81 percent of the amortizable intangible plant balance at December
31, 2006 will be amortized over three years with the remaining intangible plant being amortized over their respective lives ranging up to 25
years.

Enogex

Depreciation is computed principally on the straight-line method using estimated useful lives of three to 83 years for transportation and storage
assets, three to 30 years for gathering and processing assets and three to 10 years for marketing assets. Amortization of intangibles other than
debt costs is computed using the straight-line method over the respective lives of the intangibles ranging up to 20 years.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses potential impairments of assets or asset groups when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances require an
analysis of the recoverability of an asset or asset group. For purposes of recognition and measurement of an impairment loss, a long-lived asset
or assets shall be grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash
flows of other assets and liabilities. Estimates of future cash flows used to test the recoverability of a long-lived asset or asset group shall include
only the future cash flows (cash inflows less associated cash outflows) that are directly associated with and that are expected to arise as a direct
result of the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The fair value of these assets is based on third-party evaluations, prices for
similar assets, historical data and projected cash flow. An impairment loss is recognized when the sum of the expected future net cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of any recognized impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the asset subject to
impairment compared to the carrying amount of such asset. Enogex expects to continue to evaluate the strategic fit and financial performance of
each of its assets in an effort to ensure a proper economic allocation of resources. The magnitude and timing of any potential impairment or gain
on the disposition of any assets is not known at this time.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

For OG&E, AFUDC is calculated according to the FERC pronouncements for the imputed cost of equity and borrowed funds. AFUDC, a
non-cash item, is reflected as a credit in the Consolidated Statements of Income and as a charge to Construction Work in Progress in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. AFUDC rates, compounded semi-annually, were 7.79 percent, 3.78 percent and 4.99 percent for the years 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in the AFUDC rates in 2006 was primarily due to increased equity funds in the AFUDC calculation
that resulted from a higher level of construction costs partially offset by a lower level of short-term borrowings in 2006.
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Revenue Recognition

OG&E

OG&E reads its customers meters and sends bills to its customers throughout each month. As a result, there is a significant amount of customers
electricity consumption that has not been billed at the end of each month. An amount is accrued as a receivable for this unbilled revenue based

on estimates of usage and prices during the period. The estimates that management uses in this calculation could vary from the actual amounts to
be paid by customers.

Enogex

Operating revenues for transportation, storage, gathering and processing services for Enogex are recorded each month based on the current
month s estimated volumes, contracted prices (considering current commodity prices), historical seasonal fluctuations and any known
adjustments. The estimates are reversed in the following month and customers are
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billed on actual volumes and contracted prices. Gas sales are calculated on current month nominations and contracted prices. Operating revenues
associated with the production of natural gas liquids are estimated based on current month estimated production and contracted prices. These
amounts are reversed in the following month and the customers are billed on actual production and contracted prices. Estimated operating
revenues are reflected in Accounts Receivable, Net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Operating Revenues on the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Estimates for gas purchases are based on sales volumes and contracted purchase prices. Estimated gas purchases are included in Accounts
Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in Cost of Goods Sold on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company recognizes revenue from natural gas gathering, processing, transportation and storage services to third parties as services are
provided. Revenue associated with natural gas liquids is recognized when the production is sold. Substantially all of OERI s natural gas contracts
qualify as derivatives and, therefore, are accounted for at fair value as prescribed in SFAS No. 133. Under fair value accounting, fixed-price
forwards, swaps, options, futures and other financial instruments with third parties are recorded at estimated fair market values, net of reserves,
with the corresponding market changes in fair value recognized in earnings and offsetting amounts recorded as Price Risk Management assets,
liabilities or against the brokerage deposits in Other Current Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Automatic Fuel Adjustment Clauses

Variances in the actual cost of fuel used in electric generation and certain purchased power costs, as compared to the fuel component in the
cost-of-service for ratemaking, are passed through to OG&E s customers through automatic fuel adjustment clauses, which are subject to periodic
review by the OCC, the APSC and the FERC.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospective transition method, effective January 1,
2006, which required the Company to measure and recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant date fair value of the award. See Note 3 for a further discussion related to the Company s stock-based
compensation. The following table reflects pro forma net income and income per average common share for 2005 and 2004 had the Company
elected to adopt the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, for options granted under
the Company s stock-based employee compensation plans. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of the options was determined
using a Black-Scholes option pricing formula and amortized to expense over the options vesting periods. Pro forma information is not included
for 2006 as all share-based payments have been accounted for under SFAS No. 123(R).

Year ended December 31 (In millions, except per share data) 2005 2004
Net income, as reported $ 211.0 $ 1535
Add:

Stock-based employee compensation expense included
in reported net income, net of related tax effects - —

Deduct:

Stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of

related tax effects 0.5 1.0
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Pro forma net income

Income per average common share
Basic as reported

Diluted as reported

Basic  pro forma

Diluted pro forma

Accrued Vacation
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$ 2105
$ 234
$ 232
$ 233
$ 232

$

©H L PH LB

152.5

1.74
1.73
1.73
1.72

The Company accrues vacation pay by establishing a liability for vacation earned during the current year, but not payable until the following

year.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

December 31 (In millions) 2006 2005
Defined benefit pension plan:

Net loss, net of tax $ (214 $ ---
Prior service cost, net of tax 3.4 -
Defined benefit postretirement plans:

Net loss, net of tax 5.4) -

Net transition obligation, net of tax 0.8) -

Prior service cost, net of tax 0.7) ---
Deferred hedging gains, net of tax 5.6 3.1
Settlement and amortization of cash flow hedge, net of tax (1.9) 2.2)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax - 9L.1)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax $ (28.0) $ (90.2)

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Plans

The Company adopted certain provisions of SFAS No. 158 effective December 31, 2006, which requires the Company to separately disclose the
items that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic pension cost including, net loss, prior service cost and net transition
obligation at December 31, 2006. The below amounts exclude amounts related to OG&E, since under SFAS No. 71, OG&E is allowed to record
these expenses as a regulatory asset (see Note 1 for a future discussion). Accumulated other comprehensive loss included an after tax loss of
approximately $21.4 million ($34.9 million pre-tax) and $3.4 million ($5.6 million pre-tax) at December 31, 2006 related to the net loss and
prior service cost of its defined benefit pension plan, respectively. Accumulated other comprehensive loss included an after tax loss of
approximately $5.4 million ($11.7 million pre-tax), $0.8 million ($1.2 million pre-tax) and $0.7 million ($1.2 million pre-tax) at December 31,
2006 related to the net loss, net transition obligation and prior service cost of its defined benefit postretirement plans, respectively.

The following amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2006 are expected to be recognized as components of net
periodic benefit cost in 2007:

Defined benefit pension plan:

Net loss, net of tax $ 13
Prior service cost, net of tax 0.7
Defined benefit postretirement plans:

Net loss, net of tax 0.6
Prior service cost, net of tax 0.3

Net transition obligation, net of tax 0.1
Total $ 3.0

Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment

Accumulated other comprehensive loss included an after tax loss of approximately $91.1 million ($148.6 million pre-tax) at December 31, 2005
related to a minimum pension liability adjustment based on a review of the funded status of the Company s pension plan by the Company s
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actuarial consultants as of December 31, 2005.

Environmental Costs

Accruals for environmental costs are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be
reasonably estimated. Costs are charged to expense or deferred as a regulatory asset based on expected recovery from customers in future rates,
if they relate to the remediation of conditions caused by past operations or if they are not expected to mitigate or prevent contamination from
future operations. Where environmental expenditures relate to facilities currently in use, such as pollution control equipment, the costs may be
capitalized and depreciated over the future service periods. Estimated remediation costs are recorded at undiscounted amounts, independent of
any insurance or rate recovery, based on prior experience, assessments and current technology. Accrued obligations are regularly adjusted as
environmental assessments and estimates are revised, and remediation efforts proceed. For sites where OG&E and Enogex
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have been designated as one of several potentially responsible parties, the amount accrued represents OG&E s and Enogex s estimated share of
the cost.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified on the Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the 2006 presentation primarily
related to discontinued operations.

2. Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This interpretation is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted this new interpretation effective January 1, 2007. As prescribed in the
interpretation, the cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN No. 48 shall be reflected as an adjustment to the opening balance of
Stockholders Equity. The Company estimates that this cumulative effect will be between approximately $3 million and $5 million. The
Company also anticipates additional interest expense will be incurred during 2007 related to the method of accounting used to capitalize costs

for self-constructed assets (see Note 10 for a further discussion).

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 expands

disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities in interim and annual periods subsequent to initial recognition. The
guidance in SFAS No. 157 applies to derivatives and other financial instruments measured at fair value under SFAS No. 133 at initial

recognition and in all subsequent periods. Therefore, SFAS No. 157 nullifies the guidance in footnote 3 of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue

No. 02-3, Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk
Management Activities. SFAS No. 157 also amends SFAS No. 133 to remove the guidance similar to that nullified in EITF 02-3. SFAS No. 157
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
provisions of SFAS No. 157 should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which it is initially applied, except in

certain conditions. The Company will adopt this new standard effective January 1, 2008. Management has not yet determined what the impact of
this new standard will be on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 which requires an employer to: (i) recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to
recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income of a business entity; and (ii) to
measure the fair value of the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited exceptions. The
requirement to initially recognize the funded status of the defined benefit postretirement plan and the disclosure requirements are effective for
the year ended December 31, 2006 for the Company. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations at fair value in accordance
with SFAS No. 157 as of the date of the employer s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008. The Company adopted provision (i) above of this new standard effective December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2006, the
projected benefit obligation and fair value of assets of the Company s pension plan and restoration of retirement income plan was approximately
$585.0 million and $519.4 million, respectively, for an underfunded status of approximately $65.6 million. Also, at December 31, 2006, the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and fair value of assets of the Company s postretirement benefit plans was approximately $225.4
million and $74.0 million, respectively, for an underfunded status of approximately $151.4 million. The above amounts have been recorded in
Accrued Pension and Benefit Obligations with the offset in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (except OG&E s portion which is recorded
as a regulatory asset as discussed in Note 1) in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company will adopt provision (ii) above of this
new standard effective December 31, 2008. Management has not yet determined what the impact of provision (ii) of this new standard will be on
its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

157



82

Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

158



Edgar Filing: OGE ENERGY CORP - Form 10-K

3. Stock-Based Compensation

On January 21, 1998, the Company adopted a Stock Incentive Plan (the 1998 Plan ). In 2003, the Company adopted, and its shareowners
approved, a new Stock Incentive Plan (the 2003 Plan and together with the 1998 Plan, the Plans ). The 2003 Plan replaced the 1998 Plan and no
further awards will be granted under the 1998 Plan. As under the 1998 Plan, under the 2003 Plan, restricted stock, stock options, stock

appreciation rights and performance units may be granted to officers, directors and other key employees. The Company has authorized the

issuance of up to 2,700,000 shares under the 2003 Plan.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the Plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles
Board ( APB ) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as permitted by SFAS No. 123. The Company also previously
adopted the disclosure provisions under SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation  Transition and
Disclosure. The Company recorded compensation expense of approximately $0.9 million pre-tax ($0.5 million after tax) and $3.5 million pre-tax
($2.1 million after tax) in 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to its performance units in Other Operation and Maintenance Expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. No compensation expense related to stock options was recognized in 2005 or 2004 as all options granted
under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company s common stock on the grant date. Effective January 1, 2006,
the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost
recognized in the first quarter of 2006 included: (i) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of
January 1, 2006, based on the fair value calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R); and (ii) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted in the first quarter of 2006 based on the fair value calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
123(R). Results for prior periods were not restated.

As aresult of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company recorded a cumulative effect adjustment of approximately $0.4
million pre-tax ($0.2 million after tax, or less than $0.01 per basic and diluted share) on January 1, 2006 for outstanding non-vested share-based
compensation grants at December 31, 2005, which is not included in the amounts discussed below. The Company determined that the
cumulative effect adjustment was immaterial for presentation purposes and is, therefore, included in Other Operation and Maintenance Expense
in the Consolidated Statement of Income. The Company recorded compensation expense of approximately $8.6 million pre-tax ($5.3 million
after tax, or $0.06 per basic and diluted share) in 2006 related to the Company s share-based payments.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options or
other share-based payments as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires cash flows
resulting in tax benefits from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for share-based payments ( excess tax benefits ) to be
classified as financing cash flows. The Company recorded an excess tax benefit of approximately $2.8 million in 2006 related to the Company s
2006 share-based payments, which amount will be presented as a financing cash inflow and realized when the Company s 2006 income tax return
is completed in 2007. The Company realized an excess tax benefit of approximately $1.4 million in 2006 related to the Company s 2005
share-based payments, which amount was presented as a financing cash inflow and realized when the Company s 2005 income tax return was
filed in August 2006. The Company realized an excess tax benefit of approximately $0.8 million during 2005 related to the Company s 2004
share-based payments. The Company did not realize an excess tax benefit during 2004 related to the Company s 2003 share-based payments.

Performance Units

Under the Plans, the Company has issued performance units which represent the value of one share of the Company s common stock. The
performance units provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as defined in the Plans). Each performance unit is subject to
forfeiture if the recipient terminates employment with the Company or a subsidiary prior to the end of the three-year award cycle for any reason
other than death, disability or retirement. In the event of death, disability or retirement, a participant will receive a prorated payment based on
such participant s number of full months of service during the three-year award cycle, further adjusted based on the achievement of the
performance goals during the award cycle. The following table is a summary of the terms of the Company s outstanding performance units
awarded during 2004, 2005 and 2006.
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Condition Settlement Vesting Period SFAS No. 123(R)
Classification
Total Shareholder Return 2/3  Stock (A) 3